






































FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Continuing operations

Net sales

Operating income loss

Income loss before income taxes

Income loss

Income loss attributable to Hilishire Brands

Effective tax rate

Income loss per
share of common

Basic 131 90.16 $11.37 0.22 2.39 80.09 1.10 3.57

Diluted 1.31 0.16 1.37 0.22 2.39 0.09 1.10 3.57

Financial position

Total assrts $9419 43 $9376 $10831 21 $10810

Note The amounts above include the
impact of certain significant items Significant items may include but are not limited to exit activities asset and business dispositions other restructuring charges

impairment charges spin -off
related coats settlement and curtailment

gains
or lees and various significant tax matters Further details of these items are included in the Financial Review Operating

income is reconciled between the income from each of the
companys

business
segments

to income from continuing operations before income taxes in Note 19- Business Segment information

The Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes and the Financial Review should be read in conj
unction with the Financial Summary

Dollars in millions except per
share data

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Continuing operations

Net sales

Operating income loss

Income loss before income taxes

Income loss

Income loss attributable to Hillshire Brands

Effective tax rate

Income loss per share of common stock2

Basic

July 22011 July3 2010 June 27 2009 June 28 2008

Jane 30 2012 As Restated As Restated As Restated As Restated

$4094 $4019 $3972 $4124 4123

74 225 179 95 438

37 83 63 37 582

22 56 127 31 511

22 56 127 31 511

41.7% 32.5% 102.1% 16.3% 12.2%

0.18 0.45 0.92 0.22 3.57

0.92 0.22 3.57Diluted 0.18 0.45

FINANCIAL POSITION

Total assets $2450 $9482 $8778 $9376 $10810

Total debt 944 2109 2247 2247 2620

Per common share

Dividends declared 1.15 2.30 2.20 2.20 2.10

Bookvalueatyear-end 1.95 16.12 11.00 14.42 19.74

Market value at year-end
28.99 96.60 69.95 47.90 60.90

Shares used in the determination of net income per share2

Basic in millions 119 124 138 140 143

Diluted in millions 119 125 138 140 143

OTHER INFORMATION CONTINUING OPERATIONS ONLY

Depreciation 166 121 136 130 132

Media advertising expense
87 82 93 58 71

Total media advertising and promotion expense 137 124 145 107 123

Capital expenditures 177 144 179 139 207

Common stockholders of record 52000 60000 64000 67000 70000

Number of employees 9500 11000 11000 11000 11000

53 -week year

Reflects the impact of 1-for-5 reverse stock split in June 2012

As of the latest practicable date

June 27 2009 Discnntmnued June 27 2009 June 28 2008 Discontinued June 28 2008

Dollars in millions except per
share data As Reported Adjustments Operations As Restated As Reported Adjustments Operations

As Restated

$8366 24 84218 $4124 8650 845201 4123

418 35 288 95 154 15 269 4381

298 351 300 371 2541 151 313 582

184 23 192 31 341 13 157 511

184 23 192 311 341 13 157 1511

38.4% 16.3% 34.61% 12.21%

The company has corrected seeerul errors related to continuing and discontisued operations and has restated its financial statements for fiscal 2010 and 2011 for these items

The table abooe identifies the restatement adjustments for fiscal 2009 and 2008 The adjustments made to net sales relate to the companys former operations in Brazil that were part of the international

coffee and tea operations
that were span off in June 2012 The adjusted results for Brazil were subsequently recognized as part of the results of discontinued operations as result of the

spin off

See Note Nature of Operations
and Basis of Presentation for additional information regarding these restatements
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

This Financial Review discusses the companys results of operations

financial condition and liquidity risk management activities and

significant accounting policies
and critical estimates This discussion

should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial

Statements and related notes thereto contained elsewhere in this

annual report The companys fiscal year ends on the Saturday closest

to June 30 Fiscal years 2012 and 2011 were 52-week years while

fiscal 2010 was 53-week year Unless otherwise stated references

to years relate to fiscal years The following is an outline of the

analysis included herein

Business Overview

Summary of Results/Outlook

Review of Consolidated Results

Operating Results by Business Segment

Financial Condition

Liquidity

Risk Management

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Critical Accounting Estimates

Issued But Not Yet Effective Accounting Standards

Forward -Looking Information

SUSINESS OVERVIEW

SPIN-OFF

On June 28 2012 Sara Lee Corporation successfully completed

the previously announced spin-off of its international coffee and tea

business spin-off into an independent new public company named

DE MASTER BLENDERS 1753 NV Immediately after the spin-off

Sara Lee Corporation changed its name to The Flillshire Brands

Company Hilishire Brands or company

On August 2012 D.E MASTER BLENDERS 1753 N.y announced

that it had discovered accounting irregularities involving previously

issued financial results for its Brazilian operations which would

require the restatement of their previously issued financial state

ments for the periods from fiscal 2009 to 2012 The financial results

of the Brazilian operations are reported as part of discontinued

operations in the Hillshire Brands financial statements as result of

the spin-off of the international coffee and tea operations As such

1-lillshire Brands has restated the historical financial results of its

discontinued operations to reflect the correction of the accounting

irregularities in the Brazilian operations

In addition the company has corrected several errors related

to its continuing and discontinued operations and has restated its

financial statements for 2010 2011 and the quarterly financial data

for the first three quarters of 2011 and 2012 for these items These

errors had been previously identified and corrected in fiscal years

subsequent to their origination The company originally recorded

the error corrections in the periods in which they were discovered

Management continues to believe that these errors did not materi

ally
misstate the financial results of the periods in which the errors

originated or the periods in which the errors were corrected but it

has decided to record these adjustments in the periods in which

they originated See Note Nature of Operations and Basis of

Presentation for additional information regarding these restatements

OUR BUSINESS

Hillshire Brands is manufacturer and marketer of high-quality

brand name food products The majority of its sales are in the

United States where it is one of the leaders in meat-centric food

solutions for the retail and foodservice markets In the retail chan

nel the company sells variety of packaged meat products that

include hot dogs corn dogs breakfast sausages
dinner sausages

and lunchmeats as well as variety of frozen baked products and

specialty items including cakes and cheesecakes These products

are sold primarily to supermarkets warehouse clubs and national

chains The company also sells variety of meat and bakery prod

ucts to foodservice customers Internationally the company sells

bakery and other food products to retail and foodservice customers

in Australia and the other parts of the Pacific-rim region

The companys portfolio of brands includes Jimmy Dean

Ball Park Hi//shire Farm State Fair Sara Lee and Chef Pierre

as well as artisanal brands Aide/is and Gal/a

STRATEGY

The company is focused on building sustainable profitable growth

through margin-accretive innovation improved management

agility achieving and maintaining share leadership in key categories

delivering superior quality and value to our customers and driving

operating efficiencies

SUMMARY OF RESULTS/OUTLOOK

The business highlights for 2012 include the following

Net sales for the year were $4.1 billion an increase of $75 million

or 1.9% over the prior year as pricing actions in response to higher

commodity costs and the impact of full years results related to an

acquisition made in May 2011 offset the negative impact of lower

volumes Adjusted net sales which excludes the results of businesses

that have been exited or disposed of increased 4.0

Reported operating income for the year was $74 million

decrease of $151 million which resulted from $170 million

increase in net charges related to significant items and lower oper

ating results for the Foodservice/Other business segment partially

offset by lower general corporate expenses excluding significant

items Adjusted operating income was $327 million an increase

of $14 million or 4.3% over the prior year

Operating segment income was negatively impacted by the

year-over-year decrease in volumes higher distribution costs higher

MAP and trade spending discounts associated with aged inventories

and the disruptions in the foodservice bakery business resulting

from the Tarboro NC bakery plant upgrades These declines were

partially offset by cost savings achieved from restructuring actions

and continuous improvement initiatives The company was able to

offset the impact of higher commodity costs with pricing actions
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Net loss from continuing operations attributable to Hillshire

Brands was $22 million or $0.18 per share on diluted basis

decline of $78 million The year-over-year decline was due to

$104 million increase in after tax charges related to significant

items which includes charges for restructuring actions and spin

off related costs Net income attributable to Hillshire Brands was

$845 million or $7.13 per share on dduted basis which includes

$405 million after tax gain on the sale of businesses

Cash from operating activities was $249 million in 2012

decrease of $198 million due to an increase in cash payments for

restructuring charges and contributions to pension plans and the

impact of business dispositions partially offset by lower cash pay

ments for taxes improved operating results on an adjusted basis

and improved working capital management

FISCAL YEAR 2013 OUTLOOK

The company expects certain headwinds to impact results in 2013

including the absorption of approximately $20 million of stranded

overhead costs inflation increased investment behind innovation

and research and development higher MAP spending and higher

variable compensation expense The tailwinds expected in 2013

include modest favorability in commodity costs and the benefit

of cost reduction
programs

which are expected to reduce costs by

approximately $40 million The favorability in commodity costs

is expected to be primarily in the first half of 2013 with inflation

expected in the back half of 2013 and into 2014

REVIEW OF CONSOLIDATE RESULTS

The following tables summarize net sales and operating income for

2012 versus 2011 and 2011 versus 2010 and certain items that

affected the comparability of these amounts

2012 VERSUS 2011

In millions

Net sales

Less lncrease/decrease

in net sales from

Dispositions
_________

Adjusted net sales

Operating income

Less Increase/decrease

in operating
income from

Significant items impacting

operating income

Dispositions
__________

Adjusted operating income

Is millions

Net sales

Less Increase/Idecrease

in net sales fsom

Dispositions

Impact of 53rd week

Adjusted net sales

Operating income

Less Increase/Idecrease

in operating income from

Significant
itmuns impacting

opeeating inclmnse

Dispositions

Impact of 53rd week

Adjusted operating income

2011 VERSUS 2010

2111 2010

As sosoosod As sosioood

$4019 $3972

OslIor Porson

Chongo Choego

47 1.2%

135 195 60

73 73

$3884 $3704 $180 4.9%

225 179 $46 25.5%

91j j66j 25

313 240 $73 30.7%

NON-GAAP MEASURES

Management measures and reports Hillshire Brands financial results

in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

GAAP In this report Hillahire Brands highlights certain items

that have significantly impacted the companys financial results and

uses several non-GAAP financial measures to help investors under

stand the financial impact of these significant items The non-GAAP

financial measures used by Hillshire Brands in this annual report are

adjusted net sales adjusted operating segment income and adjusted

operating incnme which exclude from financial measure computed

in accordance with GAAP the impact of significant items the impact

of the 53rd week and the impact of businesses that have been exited

or disposed of for all periods presented Previously the adjusted

sales and operating income measures excluded the results of acqui

sitions net of dispositions for the periods for which there were no

comparable results Another non-GAAP financial measure is Adjusted

BPS which excludes from reported dduted EPS from continuing

operations the impact of significant items and the 53rd week

2012 A5omotod Management believes that these non-GAAP financial measures

$4094 $4019 75 1.9 reflect an additional way of viewing aspects of Hillshire Brands

business that when viewed together with Hillshire Brands financial

results computed in accordance with GAAP provide more complete
j8Oj

understanding of factors and trends affecting Hillshire Brands his-

155 4.0

$151j 67 oj%
torical financial performance and projected future operating results

greater transparency of underlying profit trends and greater compa

rability of results across periods These non-GAAP financial measures

are not intended to be substitute for the comparable GAAP measures

and should be read only in conjunction with our consolidated financial

statements prepared in accordance with GAAP

55

$4039

74

135

$3884

225

261

327

91

313
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Management also uses certain of these non-GAAP financial

measures in conjunction with the G.AAP financial measures to

understand manage and evaluate our businesses in planning for

and forecasting financial results for future periods and as one factor

in determining achievement of incentive compensation Two of the

three performance measures under Hilishire Brands annual incen

tive plan are net sales and operating income which are the reported

amounts as adjusted for significant items and possibly other items

Operating income as adjusted for significant items also may be

used as component of Hilishire Brands long-term incentive plans

Many of the significant items will recur in future periods however

the amount and frequency of each significant item varies from

period to period

See Non-GAAP Measures Definitions in the Financial Review

section of this report for additional information regarding these

financial measures

NET SALES

Net sales in 2012 were $4094 billion an increase of $75 million or

1.9% versus 2011 Net sales were impacted by dispositions after the

beginning of 2011 which reduced net sales by $80 million Adjusted

net sales increased $155 million or 4.0% due to price increases in

response to higher commodity costs and the year-over-year impact

of an acquisition made in 2011 partially offset by lower volumes

Net sales in 2011 were $4019 billion an increase of $47 million

or 1.2% versus 2010 Net sales were impacted by dispositions after

the beginning of 2010 which reduced net sales by $60 million and

$73 million of sales in 2010 related to the 53rd week Adjusted net

sales increased $180 million or 4.9% due to price increases in

response to higher commodity Costs and favorable shift in sales

mix partially offset by lower unit volumes

The following table summarizes the Components of the change

in sales on percentage basis versus the prior year

NET SALES BRIDGE COMPONENTS

OF CHANGE VERSUS PRIOR YEAR

OPERATING INCOME

Operating income decreased by $151 million or 67.0% in 2012

The year-over-year net impact of the change in significant items and

the other factors identified in the preceding table of consolidated

results decreased operating income by $165 million As result

adjusted operating income increased $14 million or 4.3% due to

significant decline in general corporate expense excluding signifi

cant items partially offset by lower adjusted operating results in

the Foodservice/Other business segment

Operating income increased by $46 million or 25.5% in 2011

The year-over-year net impact of the change in significant items and

the other factors identified in the preceding table of consolidated

results decreased operating income by $27 million As result

adjusted operating income increased $73 million or 30.7% due to

significant dedine in general corporate expense excluding signifi

cant items and the favorable impact of $6 million improvement

in unrealized commodity mark-to-market derivatives as operating

results of the business segments excluding significant items

remained relatively unchanged year-over-year

The changes in the individual components of operating income

are discussed in more detail below

GROSS MARGIN

The gross margin which represents net sales less cost of sales

decreased by $64 million in 2012 driven by the negative impact

of higher discounts associated with aged inventories lower volumes

the negative impact of disruptions associated with the Tarboro N.C

bakery plant upgrade and the generally weak economic conditions

in the foodservice category which were only partially offset by the

benefits of cost saving initiatives

2012 versus 2011

VlrExrJdg
Aqiiton/Disposif ion Mo Pri.o Aoqu.oton Otho/PX Dispostio

27% 0.1% 4.2% 2.7% 0.3% 2.1%

Total

1.9%

Aoquisitio/ Inport of

Mm Pro Dmopootmo OtIo/FX 53d Wook

2.3% 0.8% 5.5% 1.5% 0.6 1.9%2011 versus 2010

Volorno Eooisdng

Aoqumnition/Dspositioo

53dWok Tot

1.2%
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The
gross margin percentage decreased from 29.8% in 2011

to 27.7% in 2012 due to gross margin percentage declines for all

business segments but primarily at Foodservice/Other The gross

margin percentage was negativeLy impacted by higher commodity

costs lower volumes and higher discounts associated with aged

inventories which were partially offset by pricing actions and

continuous improvement savings

The gross margin decreased by $42 million in 2011 driven by

the negative impact of higher commodity costs net of pricing actions

and lower unit volumes partially offset by the benefits of cost saving

initiatives and an improved sales mix

The gross margin percent decreased from 31.2% in 2010 to

29.8% in 2011 due to declines in the Retail business segment

The gross margin percentage was negatively impacted by higher

commodity costs and lower volumes which were partially offset by

pricing actions favorable shift in product mix and continuous

improvement savings

SELLING GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

srslluss 2017 2011 2010

SGA expenses in the business

segment results

Media advertising and promotion $137 $124 145

Other 627 655 683

Total business segments 764 779 828

Amortization of identifiable intangibles

General corporate expenses 195 136 190

Mark-to-market derivative

gainsIlosses

Total SGA $964 $918 $1027

Total selling general and administrative SGA expenses in

2012 increased $46 million or 5.1% Measured as percent of sales

SGA expenses increased from 22.8% in 2011 to 23.6% in 2012

The results reflect the impact of an increase in charges related to

restructuring and spin-off actions and higher MAP expenses par

tially offset by the benefits of cost saving initiatives and lower

general corporate expenses excluding restructuring and spin-off

related charges SGA expenses as percent of sales decreased in

each of the business segments

Total SGA expenses reported in 2012 by the business segments

decreased by $15 million or 1.9% versus 2011 primarily due to the

benefits of cost saving initiatives partially offset by higher MAP

spending and the impact of inflation on wages
and employee benefits

General corporate expenses which are not allocated to the

individual business segments
increased by $59 million in 2012 due to

$148 million increase in restructuring actions and other significant

items partially offset by reduction in information technology costs

the impact of headcount reductions and lower stranded overhead

costs related to sold businesses

Total selling general and administrative expenses in 2011

decreased $109 million or 10.6% Measured as percent of sales

SGA expenses decreased from 25.9% in 2010 to 22.8% in 2011

SGA expenses as percent of sales decreased in each of the busi

ness segments with the exception of Australian Bakery The results

reflect the impact of lower MAP expenses
and the benefits of cost

saving initiatives

Total SGA expenses reported in 2011 by the business segments

decreased by $49 million or 5.9% versus 2010 primarily due to lower

MAP spending and the benefits of cost saving initiatives partially

offset by the impact of inflation on wages and employee benefits

General corporate expenses in 2011 decreased by $54 million

due to reduction in information technology costs the impact of

headcount reductions lower employee benefit costs lower franchise

taxes and gain on the sale of the corporate airplane Unrealized

mark-to-market gains on commodity derivatives included in SGA
increased by $6 million as compared to the prior year

As previously noted reported SGA reflects amounts recognized

for restructuring actions spin-off related costs and other significant

amounts These amounts include the following

Is eIluss 2012 2011 2010

Restructuring/spin-off costs $137 $35 $18

Curtailment gain 13

Gain on HBI tax settlement 15

Tax indemnification charge 26

Litigation accrual 11

Other

Total $135 $35 31

Additional information regarding the restructuring and

spin-off related costs can be found in Note Exit and

Transformation Activities

The company recognized curtailment gains in 2010 related to its

defined benefit pension plans Additional information regarding the

pension charges and curtailment gains can be found in Note 16

Defined Benefit Pension Plans
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IMPAIRMENT CHARGES

In 2012 the company recognized $14 million impairment charge

which related to the writedown of computer software which was no

longer in use The charge was recognized as part of general corporate

expenses In 2011 the company recognized $15 million impairment

charge which related to the writedown of manufacturing equipment

associated with the North American foodservice bakery reporting unit

In 2010 the company recognized $15 million impairment charge

which related to the writedown of manufacturing equipment associ

ated with the North American foodservice bakery reporting unit

Additional details regarding these impairment charges are

discussed in Note Impairment Charges

NET INTEREST EXPENSE

Net interest expense decreased by $15 million in 2012 to $72 million

due to decline in interest expense as result of the repayment of

approximately $970 million of debt in April 2012 using existing cash

on hand Interest income remained unchanged Net interest expense

in 2011 was $29 million lower than the prior year due to $28 million

decline in interest expense resulting from the refinancing of approx

imately $800 million of debt at lower interest rates earlier in the

fiscal
year

DEBT EXTINGUISHMENT COSTS

In 2012 the company completed cash tender offer for $348 million

of its 6.125% Notes due November 2032 and $122 million of its

2010 4.10% Notes due 2020 and it redeemed all of its 3.875% Notes due

2011 As testated

2013 with an aggregate principal amount of $500 million and recog

nized $39 million of charges associated with the early extinguishment

of this debt In 2011 the company redeemed its $1.1 billion 6.25%

Notes due September 15 2011 and recognized $55 million charge

associated with the early redemption of this debt

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The effective tax rate on continuing operations in 2012 2011 and

2010 was impacted by number of significant items that are shown

in the reconciliation of the companys effective tax rate to the U.S

statutory rate in Note 18 Income Taxes Additional information

regarding income taxes can be found in Critical Accounting Estimates

within Managements Discussion and Analysis

sIhoss

Continuing operations

Income loss before income taxes 37 83 63

Income tax expense benefit 15 27 64

Effective tax races 41.71% 32.5% 102.1%

2012 versus 2011 In 2012 the company recognized tax benefit

on continuing operations of $15 million or an effective tax rate

of 41.7% compared to tax expense of $27 million or an effective

tax rate of 32.5% in 2011 The higher tax rate in 2012 was impacted

by non-taxable indemnification agreements employee benefit

deductions and tax provision adjustments partially offset by non

deductible professional fees See the tax rate reconciliation table in

Note 18 Income Taxes for additional information

2011 versus 2010 In 2011 the
company recognized tax expense

on continuing operations of $27 million or an effective tax rate

of 32.5% compared to tax benefit of $64 mfflion or an effective

tax rate of 102.1% in 2010 The 2011 effective tax rate was changed

from 2010 due to $93 million decrease in tax benefits resulting

from the resolution of tax audits the expiration of statutes of limi

tations and changes in estimate on tax contingencies in the U.S

and various state and local jurisdictions that increased the 2011

effective tax rate by 148 percentage points

EXIT ACTIVITIES ASSET AND BUSINESS DISPOSITIONS

Exit activities asset and business dispositions are as follows

In n00ons 2022

Charges for exit accivities

Severance $27 $30

Exit of leases and ocher

cnntractual obligations 54

Total $81 $39 $18

The net charges in 2012 are $42 million higher than 2011 as

result of $45 million increase in lease and contractual obligation

exit costs which were incurred in conjunction with the spin-off

The net charges in 2011 are $21 million higher than 2010 as

result of $21 million increase in severance costs related to restruc

turing actions partially offset by the decline in lease and contractual

obligation exit costs

2021 2010

2012 Restated As Resated
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

INCOME LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE EPS
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The loss from continuing operations in 2012 was $22 million

decrease of $78 million over the prior year The decline was due to

$104 million increase in net after tax charges incurred in conjunc

tion with the spin-off restructuring actions and other significant

items Income from continuing operations in 2011 was $56 million

decrease of $71 million over the prior year
The decline was due

to the lower results for the business segments $55 million of debt

extinguishment costs and an increase in income taxes

Diluted EPS from continuing operations was loss of $0.18 in

2012 and income of $0.45 in 2011 and $0.92 in 2010 The diluted

EPS from continuing operations in each succeeding year was favor

ably impacted by lower average shares outstanding as the company

had been repurchasing shares of its common stock as part of share

repurchase program
The

company repurchased 16.0 million shares

in 2011 and 7.3 million shares irk 2010 The number of shares and

earnings per share amounts above reflect the impact of 1-for-5

reverse stock split in June 2012

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The results of the companys North American fresh bakery

refrigerated dough and foodservice beverage businesses and the

international coffee and tea household and body care and European

bakery businesses which have been classified as discontinued oper

ations are summarized below The results of the international coffee

and tea businesses have been restated to reflect the correction of

various errors and accounting irregularities
related to its subsidiary in

Brazil See Note Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation

for additional information

201 2010

As Reststsd As ResIsted

$8088 $8960

Is siIIios 2012

Net sales $5229

lncorne loss from discontinued

operations before income taxes 138 567 996

Income tax expense benefit on income

from discontinued operations
603 82 668

Gain on disposition of discontinued

operations before income taxes 772 1304 158

Income tax expense on disposition

of discontinued operations 367 573 74

Net income from discontinued operations
870 $1216 412

Net Sales arid Income Loss from Discontinued Operations before

Income Taxes Net sales for discontinued operations were $5229 bil

lion in 2012 compared to $8088 billion in the prior year 35%

decrease The sales decline was primarily driven by the impact of

business dispositions after the start of 2011 and resulted from there

being less than full twelve months of sales in each fiscal year

Income before income taxes in 2012 was loss of $138 million

decrease of $705 million compared to 2011 The decrease was again

driven by the impact of business dispositions and $414 million of

impairment charges in 2012 primarily related to the European bakery

operations as well as various restructuring and other charges The

change in income from discontinued operations was decrease of

$20 million cver the prior year despite the much larger decline in

pretax income due to significant tax benefits that increased income

from discontinued operations by $685 million in 2012 In 2012 the

international coffee and tea business reported $438 million income

tax benefit which included $623 million benefit associated with

the reversal of deferred tax liability related to the repatriation of

foreign earnings The remaining significant tax benefits related to

tax basis differences and tax settlements and reserve reversals

Net sales for discontinued operations were $8088 billion in

2011 compared to $8960 billion in the prior year The sales decline

was primarily driven by the impact of business dispositions after

the start of 2010 as well as the impact of the additional 53rd week

in 2010 Income before income taxes in 2011 was $567 million

decrease of $429 million compared to 2010 The decrease was again

driven by the impact of business dispositions the additional 53rd

week and various other restructuring and other charges Income from

discontinued operations was $485 million in fiscal 2011 an increase

of $157 million over the prior year due to the impact of income

taxes In 2011 the North American fresh bakery business reported

$101 million income tax benefit which included $122 million tax

benefit that was associated with the excess tax basis related to these

assets In 2010 the international household and body care businesses

reported $453 million of income tax expense which included

$428 million tax charge related to the deemed repatriation of over

seas earnings attributable to the existing overseas cash and book

value of the International Household and Body Care businesses
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Gain Loss on Sale of Discontinued Operations In 2012 the

company completed the disposition of the fresh bakery foodservice

beverage and refrigerated dough businesses in North America as

well as the European bakery businesses in Spain and France It also

completed the disposition of the remainder of the businesses that

comprised the household and body care business primarily the non-

European insecticides business and portions of the air care and shoe

care businesses It recognized pretax gain of $772 million $405 mil

lion after tax on the disposition of these businesses in 2012 The

tax provision on the disposition of the refrigerated dough business

was negatively impacted by book/tax basis difference related to

$254 million of goodwill that is not deductible for tax purposes In

2011 the company completed the disposition of the majority of the

businesses that comprised the household and body care business

global body care European detergents and Australia/New Zealand

bleach businesses as well as majority of the air care and shoe care

businesses and recognized pretax gain of $1.3 billion $731 million

after tax In 2010 the company completed the disposition of its

insecticide business in India which had been part of the household

and body care business and recognized pretax gain of $150 million

and an after tax gain of $78 million Further details regarding these

transactions are included in Note Discontinued Operations

CONSOLIDATED ET INCOME AND

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE EPS
The consolidated net income and related diluted earnings per

share includes the results of both continuing and discontinued

operations see the Consolidated Statements of Income in this

report for additional information Net income was $848 million in

2012 decrease of $424 million over the prior year The decrease

in net income was primarily due to $326 million decrease in the

gain on sale of discontinued operations The decrease in net income

was also due to the $78 million reduction in income from continuing

operations noted previously

Net income in 2011 was $1272 billion an increase of $733 million

over the prior year due to an $804 million increase in net income

from discontinued operations The income from discontinued oper

ations increased $157 million primarily due to year-over-year

reduction in the tax provision related to the repatriation of foreign

earnings and tax benefit related to the North American fresh bakery

operations The gain on sale of discontinued operations increased

$647 million due to the completion of the disposition of several

household and body care businesses in 2011 The increase in the net

income of discontinued operations was partially offset by $71 mfflion

reduction in income from continuing operations noted previously

The net income attributable to 1-lilishire Brands was $845 million

in 2012 $1263 billion in 2011 and $518 million in 2010

Diluted EPS were $7.13 in 2012 $10.11 in 2011 and $3.75 in 2010

The diluted EPS in each succeeding year was favorably impacted by

lower average shares outstanding due to prior share repurchase

program The earnings per share amounts reflect the impact of

1-for-5 reverse stock split in June 2012

OPERATING RESULTS BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
The companys structure is currently organized around three business

segments which are described below

Retail sells variety of packaged meat and frozen bakery products

to retail customers in North America

Foodservice/Other sells variety of meat and bakery products

to foodservice customers in North America Sales are made in the

foodservice channel to distributors restaurants hospitals and other

large institutions This segment also includes results for the companys

Senseo coffee business in the United States which was exited in March

2012 as well as the hog commodity pork and turkey businesses

which were previously reported in the Retail business segment

Australian Bakery sells variety of bakery and other food products

to retail and foodservice customers in Australia and other parts of

the Pacific rim region

The following is summary of results by business segment

illisss

Net sales

Retail

Foodservice/Other

Australian Bakery

Total business segments

Intersegment sales

Net sales

$2884 $2760 $2708

1080 1136 1145

136 135 135

4100 4031 3988

12 16

$4094 $4019 $3972

2012 2011 2010
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The following tables summarize the components of the

percentage change in net sales as compared to the prior year

VoIooc Eoclothg

Aqoist ton/Dopossmo
Mx Price Other Acquitoo

Ice pact of

OX DispooOo 53rd Week Total

2012 versus 2011

4.4% 2.1% 5.7% 0.4% 19% 1.9%

2.1 0.6 5.5 0.7 6.3 2.2 0.8

2.9 8.1 1.9 0.8 11.4 1.8 0.3

2.3% 0.8% 5.5% 02% 0.3% 0.4% 1.8% 1.9% 1.2

Operating segment income and income from continuing opera-
General corporate expenses were $159 million in 2011

tions before income taxes for 2012 2011 and 2010 are as follows decrease of $52 million over the prior year The decrease versus the

prior year was due primarily to reduction in information technology

2012 2011 2010 costs the impact of headcount reductions lower employee benefit

costs lower franchise taxes and gain on the disposition of the

Is ntllioos

Income from continuing operations

before income taxes

corporate Jet
Retail 274 303 343

The company uses derivative financial instruments to manage
Foodservice/Other 79 85 50

Australian Bakery
its exposure to commodity prices commodity derivative not

Total operating segment income 351 386 7i dedared hedge in accordance with the accounting rules is accounted

General corporate expenses as restatect 272 159 211 for under mark-to-market accounting with changes in fair value

Mark-to-market derivative gains/losses recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Income The company

Atization of intangibles excludes these unrealized mark-to-market gains and losses from the

Total operating income as restated 74 225 179

operating segment results until such time that the exposure being

Interest expense net 72 87 116
hedged affects the earnings of the business segment

At that time
Debt extinguishment costs 39 55

Income loss from
continuing operations

the cumulative gain or loss previously reported as mark-to-market

before income taxes as restated 37 83 63 derivative gains/losses for the derivative instrument will be

reclassified into the business segments results

discussion of each business segments sales and operating The unrealized mark-to-market gain/loss incurred on commodity

segment income is presented on the following pages The change derivative contracts was loss of $1 million in 2012 as compared

in volumes for each business segment excludes the impact of acqui- to gain of $2 million in 2011 and loss of $4 million in 2010 The

sitions and dispositions and the impact of the 53rd week in 2010 unrealized mark-to-market gains and losses are primarily related to

General corporate expenses. which are not allocated to the commodity derivative contracts associated with energy contracts

individual business segments were $272 million in 2012 an increase The amortization of intangibles in the table relates to acquired

of $113 million over the prior year due to an increase in charges trademarks and customer relationships It does not include software

related to restructuring actions and costs incurred in conjunction amortization portion of which is recognized in the earnings of

with the spin-off partially offset by reduction in information tech- the segments and portion is recognized as part of general corpo

nology costs the impact of headcount reductions and reduction rate expenses

in stranded overhead costs associated with divested businesses

Retail

Foodservice/Other

Australian Bakery

Total business segments

3.8% 0.5 4.6% O.6% 3.8%

0.1 0.5 3.2 0.2 --

6.7 0.4 2.9 0.1 4.3 0.8

2.7% 0.1% 4.2% OA% 21% OJ% 211% 1.9%

Retail

Foodservice/Other

Australian Bakery

Total business segments

-% -% 4.5%

-- 7.3 ---- 4.9

Ilolome Hoelodtcg

Aqutsitron/Otspostios Impact of

53rd Week Mto lrrc Other Aqutotoo OX Dispositicct 53rd Week Total

2011 versus 2010
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RETAIL

It milisms

Net sales

Less lncrease/decrease in net sales from

Impact of 53rd week

Adjusted net sales

Operating segment income

Less Increase/decrease in

operating segment income from

Restructuring
and other charges

Pension curtailment/withdrawal/other

Accelerated depreciation

Impact of 53rd week

Adjusted operating segment income

Gross margin

274 303

14 11

20 20

313 314

29.3 31.1

11

0.6% 314 335

1.8% 31.1 33.9

2012 versus 2011 Net sales and adjusted net sales increased

by $124 million or 4.5% due to an acquisition made in May 2011

pricing actions and an improved sales mix which offset the negative

impact of lower volumes discounts to move aged inventory and

higher slotting costs The acquisition increased net sales by 3.8 per

centage points while the pricing actions which were taken to offset

higher commodity costs increased net sales by 4.6 percentage points

Unit volumes declined 3.8% excluding the impact of acquisitions

due to lower volumes for frozen bakery products hot dogs break

fast sandwiches deli meats lunchmeats and smoked sausages which

more than offset volume increases for breakfast sausages

Operating segment income decreased $29 million or 9.8%

which includes the impact of restructuring and spin-off related

charges Adjusted operating segment income decreased $1 million

or 0.6% The decrease in adjusted operating segment income was

the result of the impact of lower volumes discounts to move aged

inventory higher slotting expenses and higher MAP and distribu

tion costs which were only partially offset by the favorable income

impact of an acquisition made in May 2011 lower SGA costs

positive pricing to commodities and savings from continuous

improvement programs

2011 versus 2010 Net sales increased by $52 million or 1.9% while

adjusted net sales increased 3.9% after adjusting for the impact of

the additional 53rd week in the prior year Sales increased as result

of pricing actions and an improved sales mix which offset lower

unit volumes Unit volumes decreased 4.4% as result of declines

for frozen bakery products hot dogs and smoked sausage partially

offset by higher volumes for breakfast sandwiches and lunchmeats

Unit volumes were negatively impacted by pricing actions and the

rationalization of low-margin promotional programs Pricing actions

net of trade promotions increased net sales by 5.7% The improved

sales mix was driven in part by the sale of innovative new products

in the breakfast and lunchmeat categories

Operating segment income decreased by $40 million or 11.8%

while adjusted operating segment income decreased by $21 million

or 6.1% The decrease in operating segment income was due to sig

nificant increase in commodity costs net of pricing actions higher

costs related to the implementation of new information systems

start up costs associated with the new Kansas City meat plant

and lower unit volumes partially offset by an improved sales mix

savings from continuous improvement programs and lower MAP

and other SGA expenses

Dollar Percent Dollar Percent

2012 2011 Change Chsnge 2011 2010 Clnsge Changs

$2884 $2760 $124 4.5% $2760 $2708 52 1.9%

$2884 $2760

50 50

$124 4.5 $2760 $2658 $102

29 9.8% 303 343 40 11.8%

3.9%

21 6J%
2.8%

The lilinhir Ilridn Company 27



FINANCIAL REVIEW

FOODSERVICE/OTH ER

Dollar lrrnnt

Chango Change

$56 4.9%

Dollar

Change Change

0.8%

Operating segment income loss

Less Increase/decrease in

operating segment income loss from

Restructuring
and other

charges

Accelerated depreciation

Impairment charge

Pension plan curtailment
gain

Disposition

Impact of 53rd week

Adjusted operating segment income

Gross margin

15 15

102 73 $29

26.5 24.8%

2012 versus 2011 Net sales decreased by $56 million or 4.9% while

adjusted net sales increased by $24 million or 2.4% The impact of

price increases in response to higher commodity costs and an increase

in sales of commodity products offset lower foodservice bakery

volumes The pricing actions increased sales by 3.2% Overall net

unit volumes declined 0.1% as lower bakery volumes due to demand

softness caused by the continued weak economic conditions and

the impact of production disruptions resulting from manufacturing

plant upgrades at the companys Tarboro NC facility were only

partially offset by higher volumes for meat products

Operating segment income decreased by $6 million or 6.4%

Adjusted operating segment income decreased by $23 million or

2.4% as the unfavorable impact of higher commodity costs net

of pricing actions the impact of lower volumes for non-commodity

products the manufacturing plant disruptions noted above which

reduced operating segment income by approximately $9 million

higher trade spending and discounts for aged inventory were only

partially offset by continuous improvement savings and lower

SGA costs

2011 versus 2010 Net sales decreased by $9 million or 0.8% while

adjusted net sales which excludes the impact of the additional 53rd

week in the prior year and the impact of businesses that have been

exited or disposed of since the beginning of 2010 increased by

$72 million or 7.7% The increase in adjusted net sales was due to the

impact of price increases in response to an increase in commodity

costs and higher volumes The pricing actions increased sales by 5.5%

Overall net unit volumes increased by 2.1% as demand softness in

bakery resuiting from the continued weak economic conditions

was offset by higher meat volumes driven in part by growth in

breakfast
sausage

Operating segment income increased by $35 million or 71.1%

Adjusted operating segment income increased by $29 million or

39.1% as the negative impact of higher commodity costs were effec

tively offset by pricing actions continuous improvement savings

and the increase in volumes

In

Net sales

Less Increase/decrease in net sales from

Dispositions

Impact of 53rd week

Adjusted net sales

2012 21111 2011 21110

$1080 $1136 $1136 $1145

55 135 80

$1025 $1001 24

79 85

135

2.4% $1001

195

21

929

60

21

72

6.41% 85 50 35 71.1

7.7%

15 15

79 102

23.7% 26.5%

523 224%
2.8%

39.1%

1.7%
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AUSTRALIAN BAKERY

In rnillen

Net sales

Less increase/decrease in net sales from

Impact of 53rd week

Adjusted net sales

2012 versus 2011 Net sales and adjusted net sales increased by

$1 million or 0.8% which includes $5 million increase related

to the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates The

remaining $4 million decrease in net sales was the result of lower

unit volumes which offset the positive impact of price increases

which increased net sales by 2.9% Net unit volumes decreased 6.7%

Operating segment income was unchanged versus the prior year

while adjusted operating segment income increased by $6 million

The net change in foreign currency exchange rates increased oper

ating segment income by less than $1 million Adjusted operating

segment income increased as result of pricing actions favorable

change in sales mix and lower SGA costs which offset the negative

impact of lower volumes and higher commodity costs

2011 versus 2010 Net sales were virtually unchanged versus the

prior year down 0.3% The impact of the 53rd week decreased net

sales by $2 million Adjusted net sales increased by $2 million or

1.5% as result of the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange

rates which increased net sales by $15 million and pricing actions

that increased sales by 1.9% These sales increases were partially off

set by negative shift in sales mix and the impact of lower volumes

that declined by 2.9%

Operating segment income and adjusted operating segment

income decreased by $7 million to loss of $2 million due to the

negative impact of lower volumes higher SGA costs higher com

modity costs and an unfavorable shift in sales mix partially offset

by pricing actions

Do/Icr Percent Dc//cr

2012 2011 Chongo Cltonge 2011 2010 C/cnge

136 135 0.8 135 135

Percent

Chongs

O.3%

136 135 0.8% 135 133 1.5%

Operating segment income loss 18.6 $7 NM

Less Increase/decrease in

operating segment income loss from

Restructuring
and other

charges

Pension curtailment/withdrawal/other

Impact of 53rd week

Adjusted operating segment income loss NM $7 NM

Gross margin 23.9% 24.9% 1.O% 24.9 25.8% O.9%
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

The companys cash flow statements include amounts related to

discontinued operations through the date of disposal The discon

tinued operations had significant impact on the cash flows from

operating investing and financing activities in each fiscal year

CASH FROM USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The cash from used in operating activities generated by continuing

and discontinued operations is summarized in the following table

2012 2011 2010

Cash from used in operating activities

Continuingoperations $137 $145 16

Discontinued operations 112 302 936

Total $249 $447 $952

2012 versus 2011 The decrease in cash from operating activities of

$198 million in 2012 was due to the completion of business disposi

tions prior to the end of the current fiscal year and $335 million

increase in cash paid for restructuring actions as well as an $89 million

increase in pension contributions These uses of cash were partially

offset by improved operating results on an adjusted basis better

working capital management and reduction in cash taxes paid

2011 versus 2010 The decrease in cash from operating activities

of $505 million in 2011 was due primarily to decline in the cash

generated by discontinued operations resulting from the completion

of the business dispositions as well as the impact of increased

working capital usage with respect to inventories and an increase

in cash paid for restructuring actions which were partially offset by

decrease in cash payments for taxes lower pension contributions

as well as improved operating results

CASH FROM USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

The cash from used in investing activities generated by continuing

and discontinued operations is summarized in the following table

2012 2011 2010

Cash from used in investment activities

Continuing operations $157 167 $169

Discontinued operations 364 2296 117

Total $521 $2129 52

2012 versus 2011 In 2012 $521 million of cash was used in investing

activities while in 2011 $2129 billion of cash was received from

investing activities The decrease in cash generated by investing

activities was due to 2.061 billion of cash transferred as part of the

spin-off of the international coffee and tea business $475 million

decline in the cash received from business dispositions including the

deposit receoved in 2011 and an increase in cash paid for software

and other intangibles which is primarily related to the $153 million

115 million paid to acquire the remaining ownership interest

in the Senseo coffee trademark In addition $31 million of cash

was received from derivative transactions in 2012 which related

primarily to hedges of foreign currency exposures as compared to

$81 million in 2011

The company received 2.033 billion on the disposition of

businesses in 2012 related primarily to the disposition of its North

American fresh bakery refrigerated dough and foodservice beverage

businesses and its international bakery businesses in 2011 the com

pany
received $2.3 billion related to the disposition of the majority

of the international household and body care business and also

received $203 million deposit related to the disposition of its

insecticides business that closed in the first half of 2012

The company expended $30 million in 2012 for the acquisition

of several coffee companies which were transferred as part of the

spin-off of the international coffee and tea business During 2011

the company expended $119 million of cash for the acquisition of

two businesses Aidells retail sausage business and Damasco

Brazilian coffee company

The company spent $314 million for the purchase of property

and equipment in 2012 as compared to $337 million in 2011 The

slightly higher level of spending in 2011 was due to the higher

expenditures related to the expansion of meat production capacity

in North America The company expects capital expenditures for

property and equipment related to continuing operations to be

approximately $150 million in 2013 as compared to $159 million

in 2012 The year-over-year decline is due to various planned

capacity expansion plant upgrades and other investments being

completed in 2012

2011 versus 2010 In 2011 the cash from investing activities

increased by $2.2 billion over the prior year due to $2.3 billion

increase in cash proceeds received from the disposition of busi

nesses and $107 million increase in cash received from

derivative transactions

The company received $2.3 billion in 2011 primarily related to

the dispositoon of the majority of the household and body care busi

nesses while it received $204 million in 2010 primarily related to

the sale of its insecticide business in India In 2011 the company

also received $203 million deposit related to the disposition of its

insecticides business
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The company expended $119 million of cash for the acquisition

of two businesses during 2011 Aidells retail sausage business and

Damasco Brazilian coffee company

In 2011 $81 million of cash was received from derivative

transactions as compared to cash used of $26 million in 2010 which

related primarily to hedges of foreign currency exposures

The company spent $355 million for the purchase of property

equipment computer software and intangibles in 2011 as compared

to $385 million in 2010 The slightly higher level of spending in

2010 was to expand meat production capacity in the North American

retail business and to implement new software to improve North

American operations

Cash from investing activities was negatively impacted by the

cessation of contingent sale proceeds as the $133 million received

in 2010 represented the final payment that was to be received

CASH FROM USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The net cash from used in financing activities is split between

continuing and discontinued operations as follows

2012 2011 2010

Cash from used in financing activities

Continuing operations 178 51 55

Discontinued operations 1524 1802 856

Total $1346 $1751 $801

The cash used in the financing activities of the discontinued

operations primarily represents the net transfers of cash with the

corporate office as most of the cash of these businesses has been

retained as corporate asset with the exception of the cash related

to the international coffee and tea business which was transferred

as part of the spin-off

2012 versus 2011 The cash used in financing activities in 2012

decreased by $405 million over the prior year
due to $1.3 billion

reduction in cash paid to repurchase shares of its common stock par

tially offset by $959 million increase in the net repayments of debt

In 2011 the company repurchased 16.0 million shares of common

stock for $1.3 billion In 2010 the company expended $500 million

to repurchase 7.3 million shares of its common stock under an accel-

erated share repurchase program The number of shares repurchaseci

has been adjusted to reflect the 1-for-5 reverse stock split in June

2012 There were no repurchases of common stock in 2012 and

the company currently does not have plans for additional share

repurchases

In 2012 the company repaid $348 million of its 6.125% Notes

due November 2032 and $122 million of its 4.10% Notes due 2020

as part of tender offer It also redeemed all of its 3.875% Notes due

2013 which had an aggregate principal amount of $500 million The

company also repaid $841 million of long-term debt and derivatives

which included the payment of $156 million related to derivatives

associated with this debt and $204 million of debt with maturities

less than 90 days The company utilized cash on hand and new bor

rowings to repay
this debt The company issued $851 million of new

borrowings in 2012 which included note purchase agreement with

group of institutional investors related to the private placement of

$650 million aggregate principal amount of indebtedness On June 28

2012 the company transferred its obligation under the private

placement debt as part of the spin-off

During 2011 the company repaid its $1.1 billion 6.25% Note due

in September 2011 and issued $400 million of 2.75% Notes due in

September 2015 and $400 million of 4.1% Notes due in September

2020 The remaining portion of the debt repayment was funded

through short term borrowings and cash on hand

In 2012 the company recognized $15 million tax benefit

related to stock compensation that occurs when compensation cost

from non-qualified share-based compensation recognized for tax

purposes exceeds compensation cost from equity-based compensation

recognized in the financial statements This tax benefit increased

net cash provided by financing activities

Dividends paid during 2012 were $271 million as compared to

$285 million in 2011 The reduction in dividends is due in part to

the impact of the share repurchases

2011 versus 2010 The cash used in financing activities in 2011

increased by $950 million over the prior year due primarily to

$813 million increase in cash used to repurchase shares of the

companys common stock and $199 million increase in the net

repayment of both long-term and short-term debt

In 2011 the company repurchased 16.0 million shares of

common stock for $1.3 billion In 2010 the company expended

$500 million to repurchase 7.3 million shares of its common stock

under an accelerated share repurchase program As noted previously

the number of shares repurchased has been adjusted to reflect the

1-for-5 reverse stock split in June 2012

In 2011 the company had net repayments of other debt and

financings less than 90 days of $205 million which was $199 mil

lion higher than the prior year The company
utilized combination

of cash on hand short-term borrowings and new borrowings of

long-term debt to repay maturing long-term debt During 2011 the

company repaid its $1.1 billion 6.25% Note due in September 2011

and issued $400 million of 2.75% Notes due in September 2015 and

$400 million of 4.1% Notes due in September 2020 The remaining

portion of the debt repayment was funded through short term

borrowings and cash on hand

Dividends paid during 2011 were $285 million as compared to

$308 million in 2010 The reduction in dividends is due in part to

the impact of the share repurchases
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LIQUIDITY

SPIN-OFF/DIVIDENDS

On June 28 2012 the company completed the spin-off of its

international coffee and tea business into new independent public

company named D.E MASTER BLENDERS 1753 NV As previously

announced the company spun-off all the shares of its U.S subsidiary

that held the coffee and tea business Immediately after the spin

off the subsidiary that was spun off paid $3.00 per share special

dividend which totaled $1.8 billion to Sara Lee shareholders who

received shares of the spun-off business

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS SHORT-TERM

INVESTMENTS AND CASH FLOW

At the end of 2012 the companys cash and cash equivalents

balance was $235 million which was invested in interest-bearing

bank deposits that are redeemable on demand by the company

significant portion of this cash is expected to be used to fund cash

commitments of approximately $190-$210 million over the next

several years primarily related to severance lease and contractual

payments costs incurred in conjunction with the spin-off and the

settlement of derivative instrument The majority of these com

mitments are expected to be paid in 2013 At the end of 2012 the

company had recognized liability for the restructuring actions of

approximately $80 million These amounts will be paid when the

obligations become due and the company expects significant por

tion of these amounts will be paid in 2013 The anticipated cash

payments for the amounts associated with previously recognized

restructuring activities will have significant negative impact on

cash from operating activities in 2013

There was no commercial paper or other notes payable balance

outstanding as of June 30 2012 The notes payable balance at July

2011 of $198 million was repaid during 2012 using cash on hand

and additional borrowings

DIVIDEND

On August 2012 the Hillshire Brands Board of Directors approved

the payment of its first regular quarterly dividend after the spin-off

of the international coffee and tea business The quarterly dividend

amount is $0125 per share which is $0.50 on an annualized basis

The per share dividend amount reflects the impact of 1-for-S reverse

stock split in June 2012 Future dividends will be determined by the

companys Board of Directors and are not guaranteed

BUSINESS DISPOSITIONS

During 2012 and 2011 the company completed the disposition

of significant number of businesses

Business Dispositions in 2012 In September 2011 the company

closed on the sale of its North American refrigerated dough business

to Ralcorp for $545 million In November 2011 the company closed

on the sale cf its North American fresh bakery business to Grupo

Bimbo for $709 million which included the assumption of $34 mil

lion of debt In December 2011 the company closed on the sale of

its North American foodservice beverage operations to Smucker

for $350 million In August 2011 the company also made the decision

to divest its Spanish bakery business to Grupo Bimbo for 115 million

and closed on this sale in the second quarter of 2012 The company

also divested its French refrigerated dough business for 115 million

and closed on this deal in the third quarter of 2012 The
company

closed on the divestiture of certain of the international household

and body care businesses during 2012 and received proceeds of

approximately $117 million

Business Dispositions in 2011 The company closed on the divestiture

of the majority of its air care business and the global body care and

European detergents business for approximately $2 billion in the

first half of 2011 The company also closed on the sale of its Australia/

New Zealand bleach business for 37.9 million in February 2011

and closed on the sale of the majority of its global shoe care business

for $276 million in April 2011

SHARE REPURCHASES

The company repurchased 16.0 million shares of common stock

at cost of $1.3 billion in 2011 The company also bought back

approximately 7.3 million shares of common stock through an accel

erated share repurchase ASR program begun in March 2010 and

completed in the first quarter of 2011 at total cost of $513 million

of which $500 million was paid in 2010 and an additional $13 mil

lion was paid in the first quarter of 2011 as final settlement The

share amounts reflect the impact of the 1-for-S reverse stock
split

in June 2012

As of June 30 2012 after adjusting for the 1-for-S reverse stock

split in June 2012 approximately $1.2 billion remains authorized for

share repurchase by the board of directors in addition to the 2.7 mil

lion share authorization remaining under the prior share repurchase

program However the company currently does not have plans to

make any additional share repurchases

DEBT

The total debt outstanding at June 30 2012 is $944 million In

anticipation of the spin-off of the international coffee and tea busi

ness the
company recapitalized portion of its debt during 2012

The company completed cash tender offer for $348.4 million of the

6.125% Notes due November 2032 and $122 million of the 4.10%

Notes due 2020 The company also redeemed all of its 3.875% Notes

due 2013 which had an aggregate principal amount outstanding of

$500 million charge of $39 million was recognized related to the

early extinguishment of this debt
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The company
also entered into note purchase agreement with

group of institutional investors related to the private placement of

$650 million aggregate principal amount of indebtedness On June 28

2012 the company
transferred its obligation under these notes as

part of the spin-off of the international coffee and tea business

In 2011 the company redeemed all of its 6.25% Notes due

September 2011 of which $1.11 billion aggregate principal amount

was outstanding The company
issued $400 million 2.75% Notes

due in September 2015 and $400 million 4.1% Notes due September

2020 the proceeds of which were used to fund portion of the

redemption of the 6.25% Notes

The total long-term debt of $944 billion is due to be repaid as

follows $5 million in 2013 $18 million in 2014 $82 million in

2015 $400 million in 2016 nil in 2017 and $439 million thereafter

The debt obligations are expected to be satisfied with cash on hand

cash from operating activities or with additional borrowings

From time to time the company opportunistically may repurchase

or retire its outstanding debt through cash purchases and/or exchanges

for equity securities in open market purchases privately negotiated

transactions or otherwise Such repurchases or exchanges if any

will depend on prevailing market conditions the companys liquidity

requirements contractual restrictions and other factors The amounts

involved could be material

Including the impact of swaps which are effective hedges and

convert the economic characteristics of the debt the companys

long-term debt and notes payable is virtually 100% fixed-rate debt

as of June 30 2012 as compared with 82.5% as of July 2011

PENSION PLANS

As shown in Note 16 Defined Benefit Pension Plans the funded

status of the companys defined benefit pension plans is defined as

the amount the projected benefit obligation exceeds the plan assets

The funded status of the plans for total continuing operations is an

underfunded position of $165 million at the end of fiscal 2012 as

compared to an underfunded position of $118 million at the end

of fiscal 2011

The company expects to contribute approximately $4 million

of cash to its pension plans in 2013 as compared to approximately

$9 million in 2012 and $6 million in 2011 The contribution amounts

are for pension plans of continuing operations and pension plans

where the company has agreed to retain the pension liability after

certain business dispositions were completed The exact amount of

cash contributions made to pension plans in any year is dependent

upon number of factors including minimum funding requirements

As result the actual funding in 2013 maybe materially different

from the estimate

The company had participated in number of multi-employer

pension plans that provided retirement benefits to certain employees

covered by collective bargaining agreements MEPP It currently

only participates in one MEPP Participating employers in MEPP

are jointly responsible for any plan underfunding MEPP contributions

are established by the applicable collective bargaining agreements

however the MEPPs may impose increased contribution rates and

surcharges based on the funded status of the plan and the provi

sions of the Pension Protection Act which requires substantially

underfunded MEPPs to implement rehabilitation plans to improve

funded status Factors that could impact funded status of MEPP

include investment performance changes in the participant demo

graphics financial stability of contributing employers and changes

in actuarial assumptions

In addition to regular contributions the company
could be

obligated to pay additional contributions known as complete or

partial withdrawal liability if MEPP has unfunded vested benefits

These withdrawal liabilities which would be triggered if the company

ceases to make contributions to MEPP with respect to one or more

collective bargaining units would equal the companys proportionate

share of the unfunded vested benefits based on the year in which

liability is triggered The company
believes that the MEPP in which

it participates has significant unfunded vested benefits Withdrawal

liability triggers could include the companys decision to close plant

or the dissolution of collective bargaining unit Due to uncertainty

regarding future withdrawal liability triggers we are unable to deter

mine the amount and timing of the companys future withdrawal

liability if any or whether the companys participation in this MEPP

could have any material adverse impact on its financial condition

results of operations or liquidity Disagreements over potential

withdrawal liability may lead to legal disputes

The companys regular scheduled contributions to MEPPs related

to continuing operations totaled approximately $2 million in 2012

$3 mfflion in 2011 and $4 million in 2010 For continuing operations

the company incurred withdrawal liabilities of an immaterial amount

in 2012 2011 and 2010

REPATRIATION OF FOREIGN EARNINGS

AND INCOME TAXES

The company intends to permanently reinvest all of its earnings

from continuing operations outside of the U.S and therefore has

not recognized U.S tax expense on these earnings In 2012 the dis

continued operations of the international coffee and tea business

recognized $15.5 million of expense for repatriating portion of

2012 and prior year foreign earnings to the U.S In addition the

company has recognized $25 million of tax expense in 2012 related

to the repatriation of the gain on the sale of the insecticides business
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In the third quarter of 2010 the company established deferred

tax
liability

in anticipation of the repatriation of foreign earnings

required to satisfy commitments to shareholders This deferred

liability was subsequently updated each quarter as proceeds of non-US

divestments and other cash movements were realized As conse

quence of the spin-off of the international coffee and tea business the

repatriation of unremitted earnings was no longer required As such

the company released approximately $623 million of deferred tax

liabilities on its balance sheet with corresponding reduction in the

tax expense of the discontinued international coffee and tea business

CREDIT FACILITIES AND RATINGS

The
company

has $750 million credit facility that expires in May

2017 It replaced $1.2 billion credit
facility

that was scheduled

to mature on the earlier of June 20 or the date on which the

spin-off of the international beverage business was completed The

$750 million credit facility has an annual fee of 0.15% as of June 30

2012 and pricing under this facility is based on the companys cur

rent credit rating At June 30 2012 the company did not have any

borrowings outstanding under this
facility

but it did have approxi

mately $57 million of letters of credit outstanding under this credit

facility The facility does not mature or terminate upon credit

rating downgrade

The companys debt agreements and credit facility contain

customary representations warranties and events of default as

well as affirmative negative and financial Covenants with which

the company is in compliance CIne financial covenant includes

requirement to maintain an interest coverage ratio of not less than

2.0 to 1.0 The interest coverage ratio is based on the ratio of EBIT

to consolidated net interest expense with consolidated EBIT equal

to net income plus interest expense income tax expense and

extraordinary or non-recurring non-cash charges and gains For the

12 months ended June 30 2012 the companys interest coverage

ratio was 8.0 to 1.0

The financial covenants also include requirement to maintain

leverage ratio of not more than 3.50 to 1.00 The leverage ratio is

based on the ratio of consolidated total indebtedness to an adjusted

consolidated EBITDA For the 12 months ended June 30 2012

the leverage ratio was 2.3 to 1.0

The companys credit ratings by Standard Poors Moodys

Investors Service and FitchRatings as of June 30 2012 were

as follows

Unsecured SIort-tem

Obligotio Boecoisgs Outlook

Standard Poors BBB A-2 Stable

Moodys Baa2 P-2 Stable

FitchRatings EBB F-2 Stable

In June 2012 Moodys Investor Services lowered the companys

long-term rating to Baa2 with stable outlook from Baal with

negative outlook It also affirmed the companys P-2 rating on short-

term borrowings Standard Poors and FitchRatings reaffirmed

their previotis ratings on the companys long-term and short-

term borrowings

Changes in the companys credit ratings result in changes in

the companys borrowing costs The companys current short-term

credit rating allows it to participate in commercial paper market

that has number of potential investors and historically high

degree of liquidity downgrade of the companys short-term credit

rating would place the company in commercial paper market that

would contain significantly less market liquidity than it currently

operates in with rating of A-2 P-2 or F-2 This would reduce

the amount of commercial paper the company could issue and raise

its commercial paper borrowing cost and would require immediate

payment or the posting of collateral on the derivative instruments

in net liability positions in accordance with ISDA rules See Note 15

Financial Instruments for more information To the extent that the

companys operating requirements were to exceed its ability to issue

commercial paper following downgrade of its short-term credit

rating the
company

has the ability to use available credit facilities

to satisfy operating requirements if necessary

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The off-balance sheet arrangements that are reasonably likely to

have current or future effect on the companys financial condition

are lease transactions for facilities warehouses office space vehicles

and machinery and equipment

LEASES

The company has numerous operating leases for manufacturing

facilities warehouses office space vehicles and machinery and

equipment Operating lease obligations are scheduled to be paid

as follows $23 million in 2013 $19 million in 2014 $13 million

in 2015 $11 million in 2016 $10 million in 2017 and $82 million

thereafter The company is also contingently liable for certain long-

term leases on property operated by others These leased properties

relate to certain businesses that have been sold The company con

tinues to be liable for the remaining terms of the leases on these

properties in the event that the owners of the businesses are unable

to satisfy the lease
liability

The minimum annual rentals under

these leases are as follows $9 million in 2013 $9 million in 2014

$8 million in 2015 $1 million in 2016 and nil thereafter
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FUTURE CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMITMENTS

The company has no material unconditional purchase obligations as

defined by the accounting principles associated with the Disclosure of

Long-Term Purchase Obligations The following table aggregates infor

mation on the companys contractual obligations and commitments

Payments Due by Fiscal Year

In millions Total 2013 2014 21115 2010 201 /Thvreaftee

Long-term debt 944 18 82 $400 $439

Interest on debt obligationst
355 45 44 33 24 21 188

Operating lease obligations
158 23 19 13 11 10 82

Purchase obligations2
1738 661 436 269 162 161 49

Other long-term liabilities3 41 21

Subtotal 3236 755 524 399 598 194 766

Contingent lease obligations4
27

Total5 $3263 $764 $533 $407 $599 $194 $766

In terest obligat lana an floating rate debt instruments are calculated for future periods using tn terest rates in effect at the end sf2012 See Note 12 Debt Instruments fSr flirt/icr details on the companys lang-term debt

Purchase obligations include expenditures to purchase goods and services in the ordin ary courses business far production and inventory needs such at raw materials supplies packaging manuf scttsrtng arrangements

asorage distribution and union wags agreements capital expenditures marketing ue-oicea information technology seroi ten and main tensnce and othei
pro fessional servcea where as of the end of 2012 the company baa

agreed apes fioedor minimum quantity to purchase fioed minimum or variable Itricing arrangement and the
approximate delivery date Pu ture coals espendi tacos will vary from the amounts shown in the table above

The tom/s any enters into purchase obligations when term.c arvenditiono are favorable or when long-term ciinimttment is necessary Many of these arrangements are cancelable after notice period without significant

pciialty .Sddiiosially certain costs aft/it oompany arc not ineluded in the table suite as she end of 2012 an obligation did not evisi An example of these isitludea situations so tore purchasing dotistoiss for thvso future periods

kate sot been made at the end of 2012 Ultimately the companys decisions and cash espendivures to purchase these various items sot11 be based upon the vompanys sales of products which are driven by consumer demand

The companys obligations for accounts payable and accrued liabilities retarded on the balances beet are a/no escluded from the table

Repevoents the projected payment foe long-term liabilitios rncsrdedon the balance sheet for deferred compensation restructuring vests defet red income sales and other incentives The company
has employee benefit obligations

consisting of pensions snd other postresivement benefits including medical pension
and poatsetirement obligations including any costin gent amounts that may be due related to multi-employer pessios plans have been

excluded from the table discussion oft/ic companys pension and poet retirement plans including funding mattere is included in Notes lR Defined Benefit Pension Plans rind 17 Post retirement P/cole/icaressd life Itso seance

Plans The corn patsys obligations employee health and property and casualty csses are also cod tided ram the table Finally lie amount does not include any reserve far income toots because we are usiable to reasonably

predict the ultimate amount or timing of settlement of ouerasercea for income tooes See Ncte 08 Income Isecu re.garding income laces foe further details

Contingent lease obligati ons re present lassessn psoyeety operated by others that only became an obligation of the com pony
in the event that the owners of the busi nesacs see usable so satisfy thy lesse liability significant

ysotios cf these am ounts relates to leasea o1erated by Csach Inc At June 30 2012 the cam pany has not recognised acontin gent
lease liability on the Ccnsolidsted Balance Sheets

ioneactualcamminnento and abligaeionu identified under the accounting rules assay isted with accsunting far contingencras ate ref lected and discloses on the anoalidated Balane Sheets and ins/ic related notm Amouts exclude

any payments rclatnd to dof erred tax balances istoluding osiy tax related lv foture repotriotiosi of foreign earsvngs See Nate 18 Income Toots regarding income tavyx fiorthec details

GUARANTEES

The company is party to variety of agreements under which it

may be obligated to indemnify third party with respect to certain

matters Typically these obligations arise as result of contracts

entered into by the company under which the company agrees to

indemnify third party against losses arising from breach of repre

sentations and covenants related to such matters as title to assets

sold the collectibility
of receivables specified environmental mat

ters lease obligations assumed and certain tax matters In each of

these circumstances payment by the company is conditioned on the

other party making claim pursuant to the procedures specified in

the contract These procedures allow the company to challenge the

other partys claims In addition the companys obligations under

these agreements may be limited in terms of time and/or amount

and in some cases the company may have recourse against third

parties for certain payments made by the company It is not possible

to predict the maximum potential amount of future payments under

certain of these agreements due to the conditional nature of the

companys obligations and the unique facts and circumstances

involved in each particular agreement Historically payments made

by the
company

under these agreements have not had material

effect on the companys business financial condition or results of

operations The company believes that if it were to incur loss in

any of these matters such loss would not have material effect on

the companys business financial condition or results of operations

In 2010 the company recognized $26 million charge for tax

indemnification related to the companys direct selling business

that was divested in 2006

The material guarantees for which the maximum potential

amount of future payments can be determined include the com

panys contingent liability on leases on property operated by others

that is described above and the companys guarantees of certain

third-party debt These debt guarantees require the company to

make payments under
specific

debt arrangements in the event that

the third parties default on their debt obligations The maximum

potential amount of future payments that the company
could be

required to make in the event that these third parties default on

their debt obligations is approximately $15 million At the present

time the company does not believe it is probable that any of these

third parties will default on the amount subject to guarantee
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RISK MANAGEMENT

CHALLENGES AND RISKS

As consumer products company we face certain risks and challenges

that impact our business and financial performance The risks and

challenges described below have impacted our performance and are

likely to impact our future results as well

The food and consumer products businesses are highly competitive

In many product categories we compete not only with widely adver

tised branded products but also with private label products that are

generally sold at lower prices As result from time to time we may

need to reduce the prices for some of our products to respond to

competitive pressures Economic uncertainty may result in increased

pressure to reduce the prices for some of our products limit our abil

ity to increase or maintain prices or lead to continued shift toward

private label products Any reduction in prices or our inability to

increase prices when raw material costs increase could negatively

impact profit margins and the overall profitability of our reporting

units which could potentially trigger goodwill impairment

Commodity prices directly impact our business because of their

effect on the cost of raw materials used to make our products and

the cost of inputs to manufacture package and ship our products

Many of the commodities we use including pork beef poultry

packaging energy cheese fruit seasoning blends flour and sugar

have experienced price volatility
due to factors beyond our control

The companys objective is to offset commodity price increases with

pricing actions and to offset any operating cost increases with contin

uous improvement savings During 2012 commodity costs excluding

mark-to-market derivative gains/losses increased approximately

$167 million over the prior year This increase in commodity costs

was only partially offset by approximately $162 million in pricing

actions The company expects commodity costs to decline modestly

in 2013 but increase in 2014

The company has targeted cost reduction opportunities of

$100 million achievable over the next three years of which $40 mil

lion is expected to be realized in 2013 These cost reductions result

from the downsizing of corporate resources and the reduction of

overhead within the meat businesses The company expects to rec

ognize charges of approximately $65 million to $75 million in 2013

relating to the above cost savings initiatives and other actions

INTEREST RATE FOREIGN EXCHANGE

AND COMMODITY RISKS

To mitigate the risk from interest rate foreign currency exchange

rate and commodity price fluctuations the company enters into

various hedging transactions that have been authorized pursuant

to the companys policies and procedures The company does not

use financial instruments for trading purposes and is not party

to any leveraged derivatives

Interest Rates The company uses interest rate swaps to modify its

exposure to interest rate movements reduce borrowing costs and to

lock in interest rates on anticipated debt issuances Interest rate risk

management is accomplished through the use of swaps to modify

interest payments under these instruments During 2012 and 2011

the company had market risk sensitive instruments related to inter

est rates due to floating and fixed rate debt The companys net

exposure to interest rate risk consisted of floating rate instruments

that were benchmarked to U.S short-term money market interest

rates During 2012 the company settled all interest rate swaps as

result of the settlement of virtually all variable rate debt As of the

end of 2012 the company has no significant exposure to changing

interest rates on our long-term debt because the interest rates are

fixed on virtually 100% of the companys long-term debt Market

risk for fixed-rate long-term debt is estimated as the potential

decrease in fair value resulting from hypothetical 10% increase in

interest rates which would result in maximum potential loss of

approximately $9.3 million The underlying fair values of our long-

term debt were estimated based on quoted market prices or on

the current rates offered for debt with similar maturities

The company has interest rate risk associated with its pension

and post-retirement benefit obligations Changes in interest rates

impact the liabilities associated with these benefit plans as well as

the amount of income or expense recognized for these plans Declines

in the value of the plan assets could diminish the funded status of

the pension plans and potentially increase the requirements to make

cash contributions to these plans See Note 16 Defined Benefit

Pension Plans and 17 Postretirement Healthcare and Life Insurance

Plans for additional information

Foreign Exchange The company primarily used foreign currency

forward and option contracts to hedge its exposure to adverse

changes in foreign currency exchange rates The companys exposure

to foreign currency exchange rates in 2011 existed primarily with

the European euro Australian dollar and Canadian dollar Hedging

was accomplished through the use of financial instruments as the

gain or loss on the hedging instruments offset the gain or loss on an

asset liability or basis adjustment to firm commitment At the

end of 2012 there is no significant foreign exchange rate risk as

result of the sale and/or spin-off of the majority of the companys

international operations in June 2012

Commodities The
company is purchaser of certain commodities

such as beef pork poultry packaging fruit seasoning blends wheat

corn corn syrup soybean and corn oils butter sugar natural gas

and diesel fuel These commodities are subject to price fluctuations

that may create price risk The company enters into either physical

forward contracts or derivative instruments to manage this price

risk The company has policies governing the hedging instruments

that can be ased In circumstances where commodity derivative

instruments are used there is high correlation between the com

modity costs and the derivative instrument
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For commodity derivative instruments held the company

uses sensitivity analysis technique to evaluate the effect that

10% change in the underlying commodity price would have on the

market value of the companys commodity derivative instruments

The impact is not significant compared with the earnings and

equity of the company

In eilIons 2012 2011

Effect of 10% change in market price

Grains oilseeds $7 $6

Energy

Other consmodities

RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

The company maintains risk management control systems to

monitor the interest rate and commodity risks and the companys

offsetting hedge positions The risk management control system uses

analytical techniques including market value sensitivity analysis

and value at risk estimations Prior to 2012 the company presented

analyses of market risk using VaR methodology for the analysis of

foreign currency and interest rate risks During 2012 the company

significantly reduced its foreign currency exposure and interest rate

risk as result of the disposition of the majority of its remaining

international business and the repayment or spin-off of virtually all

of its floating rate debt As such the company has begun using sensi

tivity analysis to assess foreign currency exchange rate and interest

rate risk because it believes that this measure is more useful pres

entation for management and the readers of its financial statements

Sensitivity Analysis The sensitivity analysis is the measurement

of the potential loss in future earnings fair values or cash flows of

market sensitive instruments resulting from one or more selective

hypothetical changes in interest rates foreign currency exchange

rates commodity prices and other market rates or prices over

selected time

Value at Risk The value at risk estimations are intended to measure

the maximum amount the company could lose from adverse market

movements in interest rates given specified confidence level over

given period of time Loss is defined in the value at risk estimation

as fair market value loss The value at risk estimation utilizes histor

ical interest rates from the past year to estimate the volatility and

correlation of these rates in the future The model uses the variance

covariance statistical modeling technique and includes all interest

rate-sensitive debt and swaps and their corresponding underlying

exposures The estimated value at risk amounts shown below represent

the potential loss the company could incur from adverse changes in

interest rates for one-day period The average value at risk amount

represents the simple average of the quarterly amounts for the past

year These amounts are not significant compared with the equity

historical earnings trend or daily change in market capitalization

of the company

In mlloss

Value at risk amounts

Interest rates

2012

2011

Foreign exchange

2012

2011

Interest rate value at risk decreased from 2011 due to decrease

in the overall amount of debt outstanding Foreign exchange risk

decreased from 2011 due to the disposition of majority of the

companys international operations

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

The following is an explanation of the non-GAAP financial measures

presented in this annual report Adjusted net sales excludes from

net sales the impact of businesses that have been exited or divested

for all periods presented and excludes the impact of an additional week

in those fiscal years with 53 weeks versus 52 weeks Adjusted oper

ating segment income excludes from operating segment income the

impact of significant items recognized by that portion of the business

during the fiscal period and the results of businesses exited or divested

for all periods presented Results for businesses acquired are included

from the date of acquisition onward It also adjusts for the impact of an

additional week in those fiscal years that include 53rd week Adjusted

operating income excludes from operating income the impact of

significant items recognized during the fiscal period and businesses

exited or divested for all periods presented It also adjusts for the

impact of an additional week in those fiscal years that include 53rd

week Results for businesses acquired are included from the date of

acquisition onward Adjusted BPS excludes from diluted BPS for con

tinuing operations the impact of significant items and the 53rd week

SIGNIFICANT ITEMS AFFECTING COMPARABILITY

The reported results for 2012 2011 and 2010 reflect amounts

recognized for restructuring actions and other significant amounts

that impact comparability

Significant items are income or charges and related tax impact

that management believes have had or are likely to have significant

impact on the earnings of the applicable business segment or on the

total company for the period in which the item is recognized are not

indicative of the companys core operating results and affect the com

parability of underlying results from period to period Significant items

may include but are not limited to charges for exit activities various

restructuring programs spin-off related costs impairment charges

pension partial withdrawal liability charges benefit plan curtailment

gains and losses tax charges on deemed repatriated earnings tax costs

and benefits resulting from the disposition of business impact of

tax law changes changes in tax valuation allowances and favorable or

unfavorable resolution of open tax matters based on the finalization of

tax authority examinations or the expiration of statutes of limitations

The impact of the above items on net income and diluted earnings

per share is summarized on the following page

Tnv Con fidvese

Amounts Averace ltereal Level

$18 icky

13 23 lday

lday

lday

95%

93%

95%

95%
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IMPACT OF SIGNIFICANT ITEMS ON INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

NET INCOME AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Feat ended July 22011

As Peutoted

Pretas Diluted

hnpoot Net EPSlenpact

Yenrended July 37010

An Iltntoted

Ptetoo Diluted

Inspect Net Inoonte EPS Import

Year onded June30 2012

Psotoo Dilutd

lnpaoO Not Ineante SIS InsporiIn millions eoropi per abase dote

Significant items affecting comparability of income

from continuing operations and net income

Continuing operations

Severance/retention charges 31 20 $0.17 40 25 $0.20 80.04

Lease contractual obligation exit costs 55 35 0.29 -- 0.04

Consulting advisory other costs 113 87 0.72 3l 27 0.22 14 0.06

Accelerated depreciation 46 29 0.25 0.01 10 0.05

Total
restructuring

actions 245 171 1.42 7t3 53 0.43 42 26 0.19

Other

Impairment charges 14 0.07 15 0.08 15 10 0.07

Litigation accrual 11 0.06 .-
..

Gain on HBI tax settlement 15 15 0.12

Pension curtailment/withdrawal/other 0.05 17 11 0.08

Mexican tax indemnification charge
0.03 26 26 0.19

Debt extinguishment costs 39 25 0.23 55 35 0.28

Impact on income from continuing

operations
before income taxes 300 198 1.65 1413 97 0.79 66 51 0.37

Significant tax matters

Tax audit settlements/reserve adjustments 0.01 0.03 103 0.75

Imnpactonincomefromcontinuingoperations 300 197 1.65 146 93 0.75 66 52 0.38

Discontinued operations

Severance/retention charges 73 55 0.46 13t3 97 0.77 49 35 0.26

Consulting advisory other costs 142 102 0.85 43 37 0.31 44 37 0.27

Lease contractual obligation exit costs 108 79 0.66 0.01

Accelerated depreciation 0.02 0.01

Impairment charges 414 365 3.05 0.04 13 0.07

Business disposition and exit activity 30 23 0.16

Pension curtailment/withdrawal 0.01 26 18 0.13

Thailandfloodloss 0.01

Indirect tax reserve Brazil 0.01

Antitrust provision/reversal 27 18 0.15 28 28 0.20

Licensing agreement termination charge 39 27 0.21

Gain on sale of discontinued operations 772 405 3.38 1304 731 5.85 158 84 0.61

Tax basis difference 186 1.56 120 0.96 0.01

Belgium tax proceeding j44 0.32

UK net operating loss utilization 11 0.08

Capital loss carryforward benefit 22 016

Deferred tax adjustment on repatriation
20 0.15

Tax credit adjustment 25 0.18

Tax on unremitted earnings 471 3.94 0.05 -- 548 3.97

Tax audit settlements/reserve adjustments 80 0.67 23 0.18 104 0.75

Valuation allowance adjustment 66 0.55 0.02 35 0.25

Impact on discontinued
operations

29 471 3.94 1098 719 5.76 36 442 3.20

Impact of using diluted versus basic shares 0.07

Impact on net income 8271 274 2.36 952 $626 5.01 8102 8390 $2.82

Impact on income from continuing

operations before income taxes

Cost of sales 31

Selling general and administrative expenses 135 35 31

Exit and business dispositions 81 39 18

Impairment charges 14 15 15

Impactonoperatingincome 261 91 66

Debt extinguishment costs 39 55

lotal $300 146 66

Diluted earnings per share continuing operations

As reported 80.18 0.45 $0.92

Less impact of significant items 1.65 0.75 0.38

Impact 0f 53rd week 0.02

Adjusted earnings per
share 1.47 1.20 $0.52

The earnings pci share EPS impart of individual unsountn in the table above are osnded to the neare St 1501 ond may not add to the total
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The companys summary of significant accounting policies is

discussed in Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The application of certain of these policies requires significant

judgments or complex estimation process that can affect the

results of operations and financial position of the company as well

as the related footnote disclosures The
company

bases its estimates

on historical experience and other assumptions that it believes are

most likely to occur If actual amounts are ultimately different from

previous estimates the revisions are included in the companys

results of operations for the period in which the actual amounts

become known and if material are disclosed in the financial state

ments The disclosures below also note situations in which it is

reasonably likely that future financial results could be impacted by

changes in these estimates and assumptions The term reasonably

possible refers to an occurrence that is more than remote but less

than probable in the judgment of management

SALES RECOGNITION AND INCENTIVES

Sales are recognized when title and risk of loss pass to the customer

Reserves for uncollectible accounts are based upon historical collec

tion statistics current customer information and overall economic

conditions These estimates are reviewed each quarter and adjusted

based upon actual experience The reserves for uncollectible trade

receivables are disclosed and trade receivables due from customers

that the company considers highly leveraged are presented in Note 15

Financial Instruments The company has significant number of

individual accounts receivable and number of factors outside of the

companys control that impact the collectibility of receivable It is

reasonably likely
that actual collection experience will vary from the

assumptions and estimates made at the end of each accounting period

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements specify

variety of sales incentives that the company offers to resellers and

consumers of its products Measuring the cost of these incentives

requires in many cases estimating future customer utilization and

redemption rates Historical data for simdar transactions are used in

estimating the most likely cost of current incentive programs These

estimates are reviewed each quarter and adjusted based upon actual

experience and other avadable information The company has sig

nificant number of trade incentive programs
and number of factors

outside of the companys control that impact the ultimate cost of

these programs It is reasonably likely that actual experience will

vary from the assumptions and estimates made at the end of each

accounting period

INVENTORY VALUATION

Inventory is carried on the balance sheet at the lower of cost or

market Obsolete damaged and excess inventories are carried at net

realizable value Historical recovery rates current market conditions

future marketing and sales plans and spoilage rates are key factors

used by the company in assessing the most likely net realizable value

of obsolete damaged and excess inventory These factors are evalu

ated at point in time and there are inherent uncertainties related

to determining the recoverability of inventory It is reasonably likely

that market factors and other conditions underlying the valuation

of inventory may change in the future

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY

Property is tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that its carrying value may not be recoverable

Such events include significant adverse changes in the business

climate the impact of significant customer losses current period

operating or cash flow losses forecasted continuing losses current

expectation that an asset group will be disposed of before the end of

its useful life or spun-off Recoverability of property is evaluated

by comparison of the carrying amount of an asset or asset group

to future net undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by

the asset or asset group If these comparisons indicate that an asset

is not recoverable the impairment loss recognized is the amount by

which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the estimated fair

value When an impairment loss is recognized for assets to be held

and used the adjusted carrying amount of those assets is depreci

ated over its remaining useful life Restoration of previously

recognized impairment loss is not allowed

There are inherent uncertainties associated with these judgments

and estimates and it is reasonably likely that impairment charges

can change from period to period Note Impairment Charges

discloses the impairment charges recognized by the
company

and

the factors which caused these charges It is also reasonably likely

that the sale of business can result in the recognition of an impair

ment that differs from that anticipated prior to the closing date

Given the companys ongoing efforts to improve operating effi

ciency it is reasonably likely
that future restructuring actions could

result in decisions to dispose of other assets before the end of their

useful life and it is reasonably likely that the impact of these deci

sions would result in impairment and other related costs including

employee severance that in the aggregate would be significant
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TRADEMARKS AND OTHER IDENTIFIABLE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The primary identifiable intangible assets of the company are

trademarks and customer relationships acquired in business combi

nations and computer software Identifiable intangibles with finite

lives are amortized and those with indefinite lives are not amortized

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset to the

company is based upon number of factors including the effects

of demand competition expected changes in distribution channels

and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain future

cash flows As of June 30 2012 the net book value of trademarks

and other identifiable intangible assets was $132 million of which

$88 million is being amortized The anticipated amortization over

the next five years is $48 million

Identifiable intangible assets that are subject to amortization

are evaluated for impairment using process similar to that used

to evaluate elements of property Identifiable intangible assets not

subject to amortization are assessed for impairment at least annu

ally in the fourth quarter and as triggering events may arise The

impairment test for identifiable intangible assets not subject to

amortization consists of comparison of the fair value of the intangi

ble asset with its carrying amount An impairment loss is recognized

for the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of

the asset The fair value of the intangible asset is measured using

the royalty savings method In making this assessment manage

ment relies on number of factors to discount anticipated future

cash flows including operating results business plans and present

value techniques Rates used to discount cash flows are dependent

upon interest rates and the cost of capital at point in time

There are inherent assumptions and estimates used in developing

future cash flows requiring managements judgment in applying

these assumptions and estimates to the analysis of intangible asset

impairment including projecting revenues interest rates the cost

of capital royalty rates and tax rates Many of the factors used in

assessing fair value are outside the control of management and it

is reasonably likely that assumptions and estimates will change in

future periods These changes can result in future impairments

Note Impairment Charges sets out the impact of charges taken

to recognize the impairment of intangible assets and the factors

which led to changes in estimates and assumptions

GOODWILL

Goodwill is not amortized but is subject to periodic assessments of

impairment and is discussed further in Note Intangible Assets

and Goodwill Goodwill is assessed for impairment at least annually

in the fourth quarter and as triggering events may arise The recov

erability of goodwill is first evaluated using qualitative factors to

determine if recoverability needs to be further assessed using the

two step process Some of the factors considered were the overall

financial performance of the business induding current and expected

cash flows revenues and earnings changes in macroeconomic or

industry conditions changes in cost factors such as raw materials

and labor and changes in management strategy or customers If

after assessing the totality of events or circumstances an entity

determines that it is not more likely than not that the fair value

is less than the carrying amount then the two step process of

impairment testing is unnecessary

The first step involves comparison of the fair value of reporting

unit with its carrying value If the carrying value of the reporting

unit exceeds its fair value the second step of the process involves

comparison of the implied fair value and carrying value of the

goodwill of that reporting unit If the carrying value of the goodwill

of reporting unit exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill

an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to the excess

Reporting units are business components at least one level below

the operating segment level for which discrete financial information

is available and reviewed by segment management In evaluating the

recoverability of goodwifi it is necessary to estimate the fair value of

the reporting units In making this assessment management relies

on number of factors to determine anticipated future cash flows

including operating results business plans and present value tech

niques Rates used to discount cash flows are dependent upon interest

rates and the cost of capital at point in time The fair value of

reporting units is estimated based on weighting of two models

discounted cash flow model and market multiple model The

discounted cash flow model uses managements business plans and

projections as the basis for expected future cash flows for the first

three years
and residual growth rate thereafter The market multiple

approach employs market multiples of revenues or earnings for com

panies comparable to the companys operating units Management

believes the assumptions used for the impairment test are consistent

with those utdized by market participant performing similar

valuations for our reporting units separate discount rate derived

from published sources was utilized for each reporting unit
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There are inherent assumptions and estimates used in developing

future cash flows requiring managements judgment in applying

these assumptions and estimates to the analysis of goodwill impair

ment including projecting revenues and profits interest rates the

cost of capital tax rates the companys stock price and the allocation

of shared or corporate items Many of the factors used in assessing

fair value are outside the control of management and it is reasonably

likely that assumptions and estimates can change in future periods

These changes can result in future impairments

SELF-INSURANCE RESERVES

The company purchases third-party insurance for workers

compensation automobile and product and general liability
claims

that exceed certain level The company is responsible for the pay

ment of claims under these insured limits and consulting actuaries

are utilized to estimate the obligation associated with incurred losses

Historical loss development factors are utilized to project the future

development of incurred losses and these amounts are adjusted

based upon actual claim experience and settlements Consulting

actuaries make significant number of estimates and assumptions

in determining the cost to settle these claims and many of the factors

used are outside the control of the company Accordingly it is reason

ably likely that these assumptions and estimates may change and

these changes may impact future financial results

INCOME TAXES

Deferred taxes are recognized for the future tax effects of temporary

differences between financial and income tax reporting using tax rates

in effect for the years in which the differences are expected to reverse

The companys effective tax rate is based on pretax income

statutory tax rates and tax planning opportunities available in the

various jurisdictions in which the company operates
There are inher

ent uncertainties related to the interpretation of tax regulations

in the jurisdictions in which the company transacts business We

establish reserves for income taxes when despite the belief that our

tax positions are fully supportable we believe that our position may

be challenged and possibly disallowed by various tax authorities

The companys recorded estimates of liability
related to income tax

positions are based on managements judgments made in consultation

with outside tax and
legal counsel where appropriate and are based

upon the expected outcome of proceedings with tax authorities in

consideration of applicable tax statutes and related interpretations

and precedents The reserves include penalties and interest on

these reserves at the appropriate statutory interest rates and these

charges are also included in the companys effective tax rate The

ultimate liability incurred by the company may differ from its esti

mates based on number of factors including the application of

relevant legal precedent the companys success in supporting its

filing positions with tax authorities and changes to or further

interpretations of law

The companys tax returns are routinely audited by federal and

state tax authorities Reserves for uncertain tax positions represent

provision for the companys best estimate of taxes expected to be

paid based upon all available evidence recognizing that over time as

more information is known these reserves may require adjustment

Reserves are adjusted when new information indicates differ

ent estimated reserve is appropriate the company
finalizes an

examination with tax authority eliminating uncertainty regarding

tax positions taken or tax authority does not examine tax

year within given statute of limitations also eliminating the

uncertainty with regard to tax positions for specific tax period

The actual amounts settled with respect to these examinations were

the result of discussions and settlement negotiations involving the

interpretation of complex income tax laws in the context of our fact

patterns Any adjustment to tax reserve impacts the companys

tax expense in the period in which the adjustment is made

The companys tax rate from period to period can be affected

by many factors The most significant of these factors are changes

in tax legislation the tax characteristics of the companys income

the timing and recognition of goodwill impairments acquisitions

and dispositions adjustments to the companys reserves related

to uncertain tax positions and changes in valuation allowances

It is reasonably possible that the following items can have mate

rial impact on income tax expense net income and liquidity in

future periods

Tax legislation in the jurisdictions in which the company does

business may change in future periods While such changes cannot

be predicted if they occur the impact on the companys tax assets

and obligations will need to be measured and recognized in the

financial statements
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The company has ongoing U.S and state tax audits for various

tax periods The U.S federal tax years from 2009 onward remain

subject to audit With few exceptions the company is no longer sub

ject to state and local income tax examinations by tax authorities

for years before 2005 The tax reserves for uncertain tax positions

recorded in the financial statements reflect the expected finalization

of examinations The
company regularly reviews its tax positions

based on the individual facts circumstances and technical merits of

each tax position If the
company

determines it is more likely
than

not that it is entitled to the economic benefits associated with tax

position it then considers the amounts and probabilities of the out

comes that could be realized upon ultimate settlement with taxing

authority taking into consideration all available facts circumstances

and information The company believes that it has sufficient cash

resources to fund the settlement of these audits

As result of audit resolutions expirations of statutes of

limitations and changes in estimate on tax contingencies in 2012

2011 and 2010 the company recognized tax benefit of $1 million

expense of $3 million and benefit of $90 million respectively

However audit outcomes and the timing of audit settlements are

subject to significant uncertainty The company estimates reserves

for uncertain tax positions but is not able to control or predict the

extent to which tax authorities will examine specific periods the

outcome of examinations or the time period in which examinations

will be conducted and finalized Favorable or unfavorable past audit

experience in any particular tax jurisdiction is not indicative of the

outcome of future examinations by those tax authorities Based on

the nature of uncertain tax positions and the examination process

management is not able to predict the potential outcome with respect

to tax periods that have not yet been examined or the impact of any

potential reserve adjustments on the companys tax rate or net earn

ings trends As of the end of 2012 the company believes that it is

reasonably possible that the liability for unrecognized tax benefits

will decrease by approximately $5 million to $30 million over the

next 12 months

Facts and circumstances may change that cause the company to

revise the conclusions on its ability to realize certain net operating

losses and other deferred tax attributes The company regularly

reviews whether it will realize its deferred tax assets Its review

consists of determining whether sufficient taxable income of the

appropriate character exists within the carryback and carryforward

period available under respective tax statutes The company considers

all available evidence of recoverability when evaluating its deferred

tax assets however the companys most sensitive and critical factor

in determining recoverability of deferred tax assets is the existence

of historical and projected profitability in particular jurisdiction

As result changes in actual and projected results of the companys

various legal
entities can create variability as well as changes in the

level of the companys gross deferred tax assets which could result

in increases or decreases in the companys deferred tax asset

valuation allowance

The
company cannot predict with reasonable certainty or

likelihood future results considering the complexity and sensitivity

of the assumptions above

Note 18 -- Income Taxes sets out the factors which caused the

companys effective tax rate to vary from the statutory rate and

certain of these factors result from finalization of tax audits and

review and changes in estimates and assumptions regarding tax

obligations and benefits

STOCK COMPENSATION

The company issues restricted stock units RSUs and stock

options to employees in exchange for employee services See Note

Stock-Based Compensation regarding stock-based compensation for

further information on these awards The cost of RSUs and stock

option awards is equal to the fair value of the award at the date of

grant and compensation expense is recognized for those awards

earned over the service period Certain of the RSUs vest based
upon

the employee achieving certain defined performance measures

During the service period management estimates the number of

awards that will meet the defined performance measures With

regard to stock options at the date of grant the company deter

mines the fair value of the award using the Black-Scholes option

pricing formula Management estimates the period of time the

employee will hold the option prior to exercise and the expected

volatility of the companys stock each of which impacts the fair

value of the stock options The company believes that changes in the

estimates and assumptions associated with prior non-performance

based grants
and stock option grants are not reasonably likely to have

material impact on future operating results However changes in

estimates and assumptions related to previously issued performance

based RSUs may have material impact on future operating results

DEFINED E3ENEFIT PENSION PLANS

See Note 16 -- Defined Benefit Pension Plans for information

regarding plan obligations plan assets and the measurements

of these amounts as well as the net periodic benefit cost and

the reasons for changes in this cost
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Pension costs and obligations are dependent on assumptions

used in calculating such amounts These assumptions include esti

mates of the present value of projected future pension payments

to all plan participants taking into consideration the likelihood of

potential future events such as salary increases and demographic

experience The assumptions used in developing the required esti

mates include the following key factors discount rates salary growth

expected return on plan assets retirement rates and mortality

In determining the discount rate the company utilizes yield

curve based on high-quality fixed-income investments that have

AA bond rating to discount the expected future benefit payments

to plan participants Salary increase assumptions are based on his

torical experience and anticipated future management actions In

determining the long-term rate of return on plan assets the company

assumes that the historical long-term compound growth rate of equity

and fixed-income securities will predict the future returns of similar

investments in the plan portfolio Investment management and

other fees paid out of plan assets are factored into the determination

of asset return assumptions Retirement rates are based primarily

on actual plan experience while standard actuarial tables are used to

estimate mortality Results that differ from these assumptions are

accumulated and amortized over future periods and therefore

generally affect the net periodic benefit cost in future periods

Net periodic benefit costs for the companys defined benefit

pension plans related to continuing operations were nil in 2012

$13 mfflion in 2011 and $57 million in 2010 and the projected benefit

obligation was $1680 billion at the end of 2012 and $1377 billion

at the end of 2011 The company currently expects its net periodic

benefit cost for 2013 to be approximately $5 million of income The

year-over-year change versus 2012 is primarily due to reduction in

interest expense resulting from lower discount rate and an increase

in expected return on assets due to higher plan assets at the end

of 2012 due to actuarial gains partially offset by an increase in the

amortization related to actuarial gains/losses as result of actuarial

losses during 2012 which increased the amount of unamortized

actuarial losses to be amortized

The following information illustrates the sensitivity of the net

periodic benefit cost and projected benefit obligation to change

in the discount rate and return on plan assets Amounts relating

to foreign plans are translated at the spot rate at the close of 2012

The sensitivities reflect the impact of changing one assumption at

time and are specific to base conditions at the end of 2012 It should

be noted that economic factors and conditions often affect multiple

assumptions simultaneously and that the effects of changes in

assumptions are not necessarily linear

Inrrense/Derease In

2812

7013 Penjeeted

Net Perodic Beeft

Assuptien Cbrnge Be/1 Cetl Oblignton

Discount rate 1% increase $215

1% decrease 246

Asset return 1% increase 15

1% decrease 15

The companys defined benefit pension plans had net

unamortized actuarial loss of $263 million in 2012 and $220 mil

lion in 2011 The unamortized actuarial loss is reported in the

Accumulated other comprehensive loss line of the Consolidated

Balance Sheet The increase in the net actuarial loss in 2012 was

primarily due to decrease in the weighted average discount rate

partially offset by actual asset performances in excess of the asset

return assumptions

As indicated above changes in the bond yields expected

future returns on assets and other assumptions can have material

impact upon the funded status and the net periodic benefit cost of

defined benefit pension plans It is reasonably likely that changes

in these external factors will result in changes to the assumptions

used by the company to measure plan obligations and net periodic

benefit cost in future periods

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Following is discussion of recently issued accounting standards

that the company will be required to adopt in future period

Comprehensive Income The Financial Accounting Standards

Board FASB amended the reporting standards for comprehen

sive income in June 2011 to eliminate the option to present the

components of other comprehensive income as part of the state

ment of changes in stockholders equity All non-owner changes in

stockholders equity are required to be presented either in single

continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate

but consecutive statements The amendments did not change the

items that must be reported in other comprehensive income or

when an item of other comprehensive income must be reclassified

to net income The amendment is retroactively effective for the

company beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2013 This standard

will not have an impact on our consolidated results of operations

financial position or cash flows
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Intangibles Trademarks arid Other Impairment Test In July 2012

the FASB amended its standards related to trademarks and other

intangible impairment testing with the objective being to simplify

the annual impairment process by allowing entities to use qualitative

factors first before performing the traditional two -step impairment

test The two-step impairment test is now only required if an entity

determines through this qualitative analysis that it is more likely

than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its

carrying value The new standard would be effective for the com

panys trademark and other intangible impairment test in 2014 but

we are permitted to adopt early However the company has not yet

determined if this standard will be adopted early Because the meas

urement of potential impairment has not changed the standard

will not have an impact on our consolidated results of operations

financial position or cash flows

Offsetting Assets and Liabilities In December 2011 the FASB

issued an amendment on disclosures about offsetting assets and

liabilities The amendment requires additional disclosures showing

the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements on an entitys

financial position including the effect or potential effect of rights of

setoff associated with certain financial instruments and derivative

instruments The amendment is retroactively effective for the com

pany beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2014 This standard will

only impact the companys disclosures in the Financial Instruments

note to the financial statements and will not have an impact on our

consolidated results of operations financial position or cash flows

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This document contains forward-looking statements regarding

I-lillshire Brands business prospects and future financial results

and metrics In addition from time to time in oral statements and

written reports the
company

discusses its expectations regarding

the companys future performance by making forward-looking state

ments preceded by terms such as anticipates intends expects

likely or believes These forward-looking statements are based

on currently available competitive financial and economic data and

managements views and assumptions regarding future events and

are inherently uncertain

Investors must recognize that actual results may differ from

those expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements and

the company wishes to caution readers not to place undue reliance

on any forward-looking statements Among the factors that could

cause Hillshire Brands actual results to differ from such forward-

looking statements are those described under Item 1A Risk Factors

in Hillshire Brands most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and

other SEC Filings as well as factors relating to

Hilishire Brands spin-off of its international coffee and tea

business in June 2012 including Hillshire Brands ability to gener

ate the anticipated benefits from the spin-off ii the transition of

leadership to new senior management team and the departure of

key personnel with historical knowledge iii impact of the spin-off on

Hilishire Brands relationships with its employees major customers

and vendors and on Hifishire Brands credit ratings and cost of funds

and iv potential tax liabilities and other indemnification obligations

The consumer marketplace such as intense competition

including advertising promotional and price competition ii changes

in consumer behavior due to economic conditions such as shift

in consumer demand toward private label iii fluctuations in raw

material costs Hillshire Brands
ability

to increase or maintain product

prices in response to cost fluctuations and the impact on profitabil

ity iv the impact of various food safety issues and regulations on

sales and profitability of Hillshire Brands products and inherent

risks in the marketplace associated with product innovations includ

ing uncertainties about trade and consumer acceptance

Hillshire Brands relationship with its customers such as

significant change in Hillshire Brands business with any of its major

customers such as Wal-Mart its largest customer and ii credit

and other business risks associated with customers operating in

highly competitive retail environment

Other business decisions such as Hilishire Brands ability to

generate margin improvement through cost reduction and produc

tivity improvement initiatives ii Hillshire Brands credit ratings

the impact cf Hillshire Brands capital plans on such credit ratings

and the impact these ratings and changes in these ratings may have

on Hillshire Brands cost to borrow funds and access to capital/debt

markets and iii the settlement of number of ongoing reviews of

l-lillshire Brands income tax
filing positions and inherent uncertainties

related to the interpretation of tax regulations in the jurisdictions

in which Hillshire Brands transacts business

In addition Hillshire Brands results may also be affected by

general factors such as economic conditions political developments

interest and inflation rates accounting standards taxes and laws

and regulations in markets where the company competes Hillshire

Brands undertakes no obligation to publicly update any forward

looking statements whether as result of new information future

events or otherwise
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

July 2012 July 2010

As ResIded As Reslaled
In millions except per

share s/ala lears curled June 30 21112

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Net sales $4094 $4019 $3972

Cost of sales 2961 2822 2733

Selling general and administrative expenses 964 918 1027

Net charges for exit activities asset and business dispositions 81 39 18

Impairment charges
14 15 15

Operating income 74 225 179

Interest expense
77 92 120

Interest income

Debt extinguishment costs 39 55

Income loss from continuing operations before income taxes 37 83 63

Income tax expense benefit 15 27 64

Income loss from continuing operations 22 56 127

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Income from discontinued operations net of tax expense benefit of $603 $82 and $668 465 485 328

Gain on sale of discontinued operations net of tax expense of $367 $573 and $74 405 731 84

Net income from discontinued operations 870 1216 412

Net income 848 1272 539

Less Income from noncontrolling interests net of tax

Discontinued operations
21

Net income attributable to Hilishire Brands 845 $1263 518

Amounts attributable to Hillshire Brands

Net income loss from continuing operations 22 56 127

Net income from discontinued operations
867 1207 391

Net income attributable to Hillshire Brands 845 $1263 518

Earnings per share of common stock

Basic

Income loss from continuing operations 0.18 0.45 0.92

Net income 7.13 $10.16 3.77

Diluted

Income loss from continuing operations 0.18 0.45 0.92

Net income 7.13 $10.11 3.75

The arsontpanying
Notes to Financial Statements croon integral part of these statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

lu/pT 2011

As RestatedIs milhsns Juno 30 2012

SETS

Cash and equivalents 235 74

Trade accounts receivable less allowances of $11 in 2012 and $12 in 2011 248 295

Inventories

Finished goods 196 187

Workinprocess 17 16

Materials and supplies 75 84

288 287

Current deferred income taxes 114

Income tax receivable 52 103

Other current assets 65 64

Assets held for disposal 3658

Total current assets
_______________________________________

1002 4485

Property

Land 25 26

Buildings and improvements 756 752

Machinery and equipment 1137 1196

Construction in progress 174 110

2092 2084

Accumulated depreciation 1245 1226

Property net 847 858

Trademarks and other identifiable intangibles net 132 158

Goodwill 348 348

Deferred income taxes 36 56

Other noncurrent assets 80 92

Noncurrent assets held for disposal 3485

$2450 $9482

The
wcompanyissg Notes to Financial Statements are an ossepral part of these ststemrnts
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Joly2 2011

As RestatedIn solhons June 30 2012

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Notes payable 198

Accounts payable 359 455

Accrued liabilities

Payroll and employee benefits 127 125

Advertising and promotion 116 90

Income taxes payable and current deferred taxes 452

Other accrued liabilities 226 398

Current maturities of long-term debt

Liabilities held for disposal 2392

Total current liabilities 833 4111

Long-term debt 939 1910

Pension obligation 166 121

Other liabilities 277 317

Noncurrent liabilities held for disposal 1130

Contingencies and commitments Note 14

Equity

Hilishire Brands common stockholders equity

Common stock authorized 1200000000 shares $0.01 par value

Issued and outstanding 120644345 shares in 2012 and 117419959 shares in 2011

Capital surplus 144 39

Retained earnings 295 2161

Unearned stock of ESOP 61 77

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss 144 265

Total Hillshire Brands common stockholders equity 235 1864

Noncontrolling interest 29

Total equity 235 1893

$2450 $9482

The accompanyIng Notes to Financial Statesneists are an Integral part ofthese statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

Jul/oh ire Brands Common Stockholders Equity

Accumulated

other

Conprehenctve

Income Lss
Common Capitol Retained Unearned Nancon trolling

In mtlltons Iotol Stock Surplus Earnings
Stock Interest

Balances at June 27 2009 as reported 2070 17 2721 $104 $605 34

Restatement adjustments 65 60

BALANCE AT JUNE 27 2009 AS RESTATED 2005 11 2661 104 604 34

Net income as restated 539 518 21

Translation adjustments net of tax of $71 as restated 85 85

Net unrealized gain loss on qualifying cash flow

hedges net of tax of $4
Pension/Postretirement activity net of tax of $74 235 235

Other comprehensive income activity net of tax of nil

Comprehensive income as restated 229 21

Dividends on common stock 302 -- 302

Dividends paid on noncontrolling interest/Other

Disposition of noncontrolling interest 25 25

Stock issuances restricted stock 27 27

Stockoptionandbenefitplans 19 19

Share repurchases and retirement 500 47 453

ESOP tax benefit redemptions and other

BALANCES AT JULY 2010 AS RESTATED 1459 11 2424 97 914 28

Net income as restated 1272 -- -- 1263

Translation adjustments net of tax of $47 as restated 325 325

Net unrealized gain loss on qualifying cash flow

hedges net of tax of $5
Pension/Postretirement activity net of tax of $125 317 -- 317

Comprehensive income as restated 1921

Dividends on common stock 278 278

Dividends paid on noncontrolling interest/Other

Disposition of noncontrolling interest

Stock issuances -- restricted stock 34 25 -- --

Stock option and benefit plans 58 58

Share repurchases and retirement 1313 ss 1257

ESOP tax benefit redemptions arid other 20 20

BALANCES AT JULY 2011 AS RESTATED 1893 39 2161 77 265 29

Net income 848 845

Translation adjustments net of tax of $17 23 23

Net unrealized gain loss on qualifying cash flow

hedges net of tax of nil

Pension/Postretirement activity net of tax of $26 21 21

Comprehensive income 806

Dividends on common stock 138 138

Dividends paid on noncontrolling interest/Other

Disposition of noncontrolling interest 29 29

Repurchase of noncontrolling interest 10

Spin-off of International Coffee and Tea business 2408 2566 163

Stock issuances restricted stock 14 21

Stock option and benefit plans 94 94

Reverse stock split

ESOP tax benefit redemptions and other 15 16

BALANCES AT JUNE 30 2012 235 $1 $144 295 61 $144

Ike
accompanying

Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of thett statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

J01y2 2011 Js/y3 2010

Jane 30 2012 As Restated As Restated

848 1272 539

In mIllions

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income

Less Cash received from contingent sale proceeds

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities

Depreciation

Amortization

Impairment charges

Net gain loss on business dispositions

Increase decrease in deferred income taxes

Pension contributions net of income/expense

Refundable tax on Senseo payments

Debt extinguishment costs

Other

Change in current assets and liabilities net of businesses acquired and sold

Trade accounts receivable

Inventories

Other current assets

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Accrued taxes

Net cash from operating activities

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

133

266 302 368

46 84 93

428 21 28

772 1305 138

400 180 525

226 80 211

43 --

39 55

70 19

66 116 58

34 206 57

30 42 26

29 62 43

94 171 19

60 178 274

249 447 952

Purchases of property and equipment 314 337 373

Purchase of software and other intangibles 188 18 12

Acquisitions of businesses and investments 30 119

Dispositions of businesses and investments 2033 2305 204

Cash balance of International Coffee and Tea business at spin-off 2061

Deposit on business disposition -- 203

Cash received from contingent sale proceeds
133

Cash received from used in derivative transactions 31 81 26

Sales of assets 14 22

Net cash from used in investment activities 521 2129 52

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issuances of common stock 84 52 13

Purchases of common stock 1313 500

Borrowings of other debt 851 1054 466

Repayments of other debt and derivatives 1811 1431 492

Net change in financing with less than 90day maturities 204 172 20

Stock compensation income tax benefits 15

Purchase of non-controlling interest 10

Payments of dividends 271 285 308

Net cash used in financing activities 1346 1751 801

Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates on cash 213 286 103

Increase decrease in cash and equivalents 1831 1111

Add Cash balance of discontinued operations at beginning of year 1992 911 818

Less Cash balance of discontinued operations at end of year 1992 911

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year
74 44 141

Cash and equivalents at end of year
235 74 44

Supplemental Cash Flow Data

Cash paid for restructuring charges
512 177 135

Cash contributions to pension plans
213 124 332

Cash paid for income taxes 209 325 427

The atrompanying Notes to Fisanstal Statements are an integral part aftlsese statements
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE NATURE OF OPERATIONS

AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

On June 28 2012 The Sara Lee Corporation successfully completed

the spin-off of its international coffee and tea huainess into an

independent company
named D.E MASTER BLENDERS 1753 NV

spin-off Immediately following the spin-off Sara Lee Corporation

changed its company name to The Hdlshire Brands Company The

Hillshire Brands Company corporation company or Hillshire Brands

is U.S-based company that primarily focuses on meat and meat-

centric food products It consists of Sara Lee Corporations former

North American retail and foodservice businesses as well as its

Australian bakery operations The companys principal product lines

are branded packaged meat products and frozen bakery products

Sales are made in both the retail channel to supermarkets ware

house clubs and national chains and the foodservice channel

The relative importance of each of the companys business

segments over the past three years as measured by sales and operat

ing segment income is presented in Note 19 Business Segment

Information of these financial statements

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the

company and all subsidiaries where we have controlling financial

interest The consolidated financial statements include the accounts

of variable interest entities VIEs for which the
company is deemed

the primary beneficiary The results of companies acquired or dis

posed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial

statements from the effective date of acquisition or up to the date

of disposal All significant intercompany balances and transactions

have been eliminated in consolidation

The fiscal year ends on the Saturday closest to June 30 Fiscal

2012 and 2011 were 52-week years Fiscal 2010 was 53-week year

Unless otherwise stated references to years relate to fiscal years

Reverse Stock
Split

On June 28 2012 the company executed

1-for-S reverse stock split All references to the number of shares

of common stock or earnings per share in this annual report have

been adjusted for the impact of the reverse stock split

Discontinued Operotions As result of the spin-off noted above the his

torical results of the international coffee and tea business are included as

part of discontinued operations in the companys consolidated financial

statements The North American foodservice beverage and European

bakery businesses are also being reported as discontinued operations

beginning in 2012 The results of the North American fresh bakery

North American refrigerated dough the household and body care opera

tions and the companys Mexican meats business had previously been

reported as discontinued operations in the companys 2011 annual

report The results of operations of these businesses through the date of

disposition are presented as discontinued operations in the Consolidated

Statements of Income for all periods presented Prior to disposition the

assets and liabilities of discontinued operations are aggregated and

reported on separate lines of the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Finonciol Srotement Corrections Hillshire Brands has restated its pre

viously issued financial statements for fiscal years 2010 and 2011 and

the unaudited financial data for the first three quarters of fiscal 2011

and 2012 to recognize the correction of the following accounting errors

On August 2012 D.E MASTER BLENDERS 1753 N.V announced

that it had discovered accounting irregularities involving previously

issued financial results for its Brazilian operations which would require

the restatement of their previously issued financial statements for the

periods from fiscal 2009 to 2012 The financial results of the Brazdian

operations are currently reported as part of discontinued operations

in the Hifishire Brands financial statements as result of the spin-off of

the internatLonal coffee and tea operations Hillshire Brands reflected

the correction of the accounting irregularities by first restating the as

reported historical financial results of the Brazilian operation and then

recognizing the restated results as part of discontinued operations

along with the other businesses that comprised the international coffee

and tea business As such the adjustments to net sales noted in the

following tables represent corrections associated with the accounting

irregularities in Brazil and do not relate to any business currently

included in continuing operations The accounting irregularities
iden

tified in the Brazil operations included the overstatement of accounts

receivable due to the failure to write-off uncollectible customer dis

counts improper recognition of sales revenues prior to shipments to

customers the understatement of accruals for various
litigation issues

and the failure to write-off obsolete inventory and other inventory

valuation issues These accounting irregularities resulted from an

ineffective control environment maintained by management in Brazil

including intentional overrides of internal controls and extensive

cross-functional collusion by company personnel and third parities

in Brazil These actions were designed to meet earnings targets

As result of these error corrections income from discontinued

operations was decreased by $18 million in 2011 and $2 million in

2010 The cumulative impact of the error corrections prior to fiscal

2010 reduced stockholders equity at June 27 2009 by $40 million

In addition to the error corrections noted above Hillshire Brands

has also corrected several errors related to continuing and discontin

ued operations and has restated the financial statements for 2010

2011 and the financial data for the first three quarters of 2011 and

2012 for these items These errors had been previously identified

and corrected in fiscal years subsequent to their origination The

company originally recorded the error corrections in the periods in

which they were discovered Management continues to believe that

these errors did not materially misstate the financial results of the

periods in which the errors originated or the periods in which the

errors were corrected but it has decided to record these adjustments

in the periods in which they originated in conjunction with the

financial statement corrections noted above As result of these

error corrections income from continuing operations was increased

by $1 million in 2011 and increased by $3 million in 2010 Income

from discontinued operations was decreased by $7 million in 2011

and increased by $11 million in 2010 The cumulative impact of the

error corrections prior to fiscal 2010 reduced stockholders equity

at June 27 2009 by $25 million

The impact of these error corrections are summarized in the

following tables
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME IMPACT

Yndediuly 2011

Discontinued

As Reported Adjustments Operations As Restated

Yea tsdodiuly3 2010

Di scotsunue

As Repotrrdt Adjustments Operations As Restated
In ntlhons

Continuing Operations

Net sales $8681 11 $4651 $4019 $8339 $4364 $3972

Costof sales 5868 3039 2822 5356 2624 2733

Selling general and administrative expenses 2060 1147 918 2183 1158 1027

Net charges for exit activities asset and business dispositions
105 66 39 84 63 18

Impairment charges
21 15 28 13 15

Contingent sale proceeds
133 133

Operating income 627 393 225 821 639 179

Interest expense 117 25 92 138 18 120

Interest income 32 27 23 19

Debt extinguishment costs 55 55

Income from continuing operations before tax 487 395 83 706 640 63

Income tax expense benefit 149 10 132 27 124 184 64

Income loss from continuing operations
338 19 263 56 582 456 127

Income from discontinued operations net of tax 222 263 485 139 11 456 328

Gain on sale discontinued operations net of tax 736 731 84 84

Net inconse from discontinued
operations

958 263 1216 55 11 456 412

Net income 1296 24 1272 527 12 539

Net income from non-controlling
interest 21 21

Net inconse attributable to Hilishire Brands $1287 24 $1263 506 12 518

Earnings per share Basic

Income loss from continuing operations 2.72 $0.16 2.11 0.45 4.23 $0.01 3.31 0.92

Net income 10.36 0.20 0.00 10.16 3.68 0.09 0.00 3.77

Earnings per
share Diluted

Income loss from continuing operations 2.70 $0.16 2.10 0.45 4.21 $0.01 3.30 0.92

Netincome 10.31 0.20 0.00 10.11 3.66 0.09 0.00 3.75

Amounts as reported mm the companyl frnotcioIstotemesmt sos iscludod is to Annual Report on Form 10 for tIre year ended July 2011

Sorter ended October 2011 Quurterrssdod October 2010

Discontinued Discontinued

In mnlIons Unaudited Its Iloportedt Adjustments Opersti sos AuReuti trod As Repurtcdi Adjustnsemsts Opemations As Restated

Continuing Operations

Net sales $1943 $925 $1025 $1727 16 741 $1002

Cost of sales 1327 595 740 1157 10 458 709

Selling general
and administrative expenses 455 229 227 409 181 235

Net
charges

for exit activities asset and business dispositions 32 11 21

Impairment charges
18 10

Operating income 111 82 27 157 100 56

Interest expense 30 -- 23 34 30

Interest income

Debt extinguishment costs 30 30

Income loss from continuing operations before tax 90 83 98 100

Income tax expense benefit 124 132 37 37

Income loss from continuing operations 34 49 12 61 63

Income loss from discontinued operations net of tax 273 49 322 44 63 107

Gain on sale discontinued operations net of tax 92 92 89 89

Net inconse loss front discontinued operations 181 49 230 133 63 196

Net income loss 215 218 194 197

Net income from non-controlling interest

Net income loss attributable to Hilishire Brands 217 220 192 195

Earnings per share Basic

Income loss from continuing operations
0.28 $0.02 $0.40 0.10 0.47 $0.02 $0.48 0.01

Net income loss 1.84 0.02 1.86 1.47 0.02 0.00 1.49

Earnings per
share Diluted

Income loss from continuing operations
0.28 $0.02 $0.40 0.10 0.46 $0.02 $0.48 0.01

Net income loss 1.84 0.02 1.85 1.46 0.02 0.00 1.48

Amounts as reported in the citnpanyh finauccol statement sin lu Quarterly Report on Form lII-Q for the quarter ended October 2011
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME IMPACT CONTINUED

Quartet ended Deietnber 312011

Discontinued

As Reported Ad Operations As Restated

Quarter esded Josuary 2011

Discontinued

As Repot ted3 Adjustments Operations As RestatedIs niilhctts Ilnaudited

Continuing Operations

Net sales $2081 988 $1088 $1958 11 885 $1062

Costof sales 1385 598 782 1281 539 736

Selling general and administrative expenses 497 262 231 463 231 232

Net
charges for exit activities asset and business dispositions 84 34 45 39 37

Impairment charges 14 10 --

Operating income 101 84 26 175 78 92

Interest expense 29 -- 22 28 21

Interest income 11 10 --

Debt extinguishment costs 25 25

Incotne from continuing operations
before tax 83 87 129 77 47

Income tax expense benefit 50 58 41 23 16

Income loss from continuing operations
33 90 53 88 54 31

Income from discontinued operations net of tax 65 90 155 255 54 309

Gain on sale discontinued operations net of tax 371 368 490 498

Net income from discontinued
operatIons

436 90 523 745 54 807

Net income 469 470 833 838

Net income from non-controlling interest

Net income attributable to Hillshire Brands 468 469 831 836

Earnings per share Basic

Income loss from continuing operations 0.28 $0.03 $O.75 0.44 0.69 $0.03 $0.42 0.24

Net income 3.95 0.01 0.00 3.96 6.51 0.03 0.00 6.54

Earnings per share Diluted

Income loss from continuing operations 0.27 $0.03 $0.75 0.44 0.69 $0.03 $0.42 0.24

Netincome 3.93 0.01 0.00 3.96 6.48 0.03 0.00 6.51

Amounts as reported in the companys financial statements in its Quarterly Rrpa ton Form 10 -Q for the quartet ended December31 2011

Sic Months ended Decrinber .31 2011 Sb Man ho ended anuary 2011

Di scott rued tiuccstnucd

Is mi//tons lJnauditrd As Reported Adjusimrsis Operations As Restated As Repcrted3 Adjticttnrnts Operaeians As Real ate

Continuing Operations

Net sales $4024 $1913 $2113 $3685 $1626 $2064

Costof sales 2712 1193 1522 2438 997 1445

Selling general and administrative expenses 952 491 458 872 412 467

Net
charges for exit activities asset and business dispositions 116 45 66 43 39

Impairment charges
32 18 14 --

Operating income 212 166 53 332 178 148

Interest expense 59 -- 14 45 62 11 51

Interest income 20 -- 18 12 10

Debt extinguishment costs 55 55

Income from continuing operations
before tax 173 170 10 227 177 44

Income tax expense benefit 174 129 51 78 60 1.2

Income loss from continuing operations 41 41 149 117 32

Income loss from discontinued operations net of tax 208 41 167 299 117 416

Gain on sale discontinued operations net of tax 463 460 579 587

Net income from discontinued
operatIons

255 41 293 878 117 1003

Net income 254 252 1027 1035

Net income from
non-controlling

interest

Net income attributable to Hillshire Brands 251 249 $1023 $1031

Earnings per
share Basic

Income loss from continuing operations 0.01 $0.01 0.35 0.35 1.15 $0.00 0.90 0.25

Net income 2.12 0.01 0.00 2.11 7.92 0.05 0.00 7.97

Earnings per
share -- Diluted

Income loss from continuing operations 0.01 $0.01 0.35 0.35 1.15 $0.00 0.89 0.25

Net income 2.12 0.01 0.00 2.31 7.88 0.05 0.00 7.94

Am aunts as re ported in the companys financial atabements in
its Quarterly Reput ton Form 10 fur she

quarter
ended December31 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME IMPACT CONTINUED

QtartdedApri/ 27011

Discontinued

As Reported4 Adjustments Operations As Restated
In njlhsnn Unsoudited

Qsisrtsrettded Marsh 31 2012

Discontinued

As Repsrted4 Adjustments Operations At Reststed

Continuing Operations

Net sales $1899 $929 965 $1860 10 911 939

Costof sales 1312 610 699 1226 570 651

Selling general
and administrative expenses 458 251 210 436 216 220

Net charges
for exit activities asset and buisiness dispositions

63 66

Operating income 66 12 52 194 124 65

Interest expense
29 22 25 18

Interest income 11

Income from continuing operations
before tax 48 12 32 178 125 48

Income tax expense benefit 10 58 57 54 38 14

Income loss from continuing operations
38 54 89 124 87 34

Income loss from discontinued operations net of tax 20 -- 54 34 87 87

Gain loss on sale discontinued operations net of tax 60 58 29 29

Net loss income front discontinued
operations

40 54 92 32 87 116

Net income loss
156 150

Net income from non-controlling
interest

Net income loss attributable to Hilishire Brands 153 147

Earnings per share Basic

Income loss from continuing operations
0.31 80.03 $0.46 0.75 1.03 $0.01 $0.73 $0.28

Net income 0.02 0.01 0.00 0.02 1.26 0.04 0.00 1.22

Earnings per
share Diluted

Income loss from continuing operations
0.31 80.03 $0.46 0.74 1.02 80.01 $0.73 $0.28

Net income 0.02 0.01 0.00 0.02 1.25 0.04 0.00 1.21

Amounts as reported in the compsnph financial stustement.s in its Quartet/p Re
port on Form 10-Q for the qu otter en ded March 31 2012

Nine Months ended March 3/ 2012 Nine Months endedApri/ 72011

Discontinued Dt.scontunsed

In millions Ilnasdited At Reporteda Adjustments Operations As Restated An Reported4 Adjustments Iperotinno As Resisted

Continuing Operations

Net sales $5923 82842 $3078 $5545 82537 $3003

Coutof sales 4024 1803 2221 3664 1567 2096

Selling general and administrative expenses 1410 742 668 1308 628 687

Net charges for exit activities asset and business dispositions 179 111 70 47 .- 40

Impairment charges
32 18 14

Operating income 278 168 105 526 11 302 213

Interest expense
88 21 67 87 18 69

Interest income 31 27 21 18

Debt extinguishment costs
55 55

Income from continuing operations before tax 221 174 42 405 11 302 92

Income tax expense benefit 184 187 132 98 26

Income loss from continuing operations
37 13 48 273 204 66

Income loss from discontinued operations net of tax 188 13 201 302 204 503

Gain on sale discontinued operations net of tax 403 402 608 616

Net income from discontinued operations
215 13 201 910 204 1119

Net income 252 249 1183 1185

Net income from non-controlling
interest

Net income attributable to Hillshire Brands 249 246 $1176 $1178

Earnings per
share Basic

Income loss from continuing operations
0.31 80.01 0.11 0.41 2.16 $0.02 1.62 0.53

Netincome 2.10 0.02 0.00 2.08 9.30 0.01 0.00 9.31

Earnings per share Diluted

Income loss from continuing operations
0.31 80.01 0.11 0.40 2.15 80.02 1.61 0.52

Net income 2.09 0.02 000 207 9.25 0.01 0.00 9.27

Amounts as reported is the cotnpsnpo fisanciol tssttmrsts in its Qunrterly Report on Form /0-Q for the quartet ended March 3/ 20/2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET IMPACT

July 2011

October 12011

Unaudited

Discontinued

As Reportedt Adjustments Opetations Au Restated

Discontinued

As Reportedt Adjustments Operations As RestatedIs millions

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets

Cash and equivalents $2066 $1992 74 $1685 $1630 55

Trade accounts receivable less allowances 929 110 524 295 766 85 389 292

Inventories 978 33 722 287 1025 21 705 341

Current deferred income taxes 54 50 43 39

Other current assets 274 22 85 167 297 236 59

Receivable for proceeds on business disposition 552 552

Assets held for sale 285 3373 3658 511 2999 3510

Total current assets 4584 99 4485 4879 66 4813

Property net of accumulated depreciation 1648 789 858 1321 486 834

Trademarks and other identifiable intangibles net 322 164 158 258 109 149

Goodwill 811 463 348 597 249 348

Deferred income taxes 256 11 211 56 185 177 14

Pension asset 265 257 362 -- 356

Other noncurrent assets 256 172 84 221 58 163

Nonrurrent assets held for sale 1391 2097 3485 1229 1435 2664

$9533 92 41 $9482 $9052 $61 $8991

Liabilities and Equity

Notes
payable 238 -- 40 198 439 104 335

Accounts payable 954 499 455 740 344 396

Income taxes payable and current deferred taxes 469 17 452 439 23 158 304

Other accrued liabilities 1681 11 1057 613 1299 805 485

Current maturities of long-term debt 473 472 443 443 --

Liabilities held for sale 307 2085 2392 533 1854 2387

Total currentliabilities 4122 11 4111 3893 14 3907

Long-term debt 1936 26 1910 1935 22 1913

Pension
obligation 218 97 121 206 89 117

Deferred income taxes 184 25 159 362 327 35

Other liabilities 826 508 317 726 425 301

Noncurrent liabilities held for sale 273 26 831 1130 294 863 1157

Total equity 1974 81 -- 1893 1636 75 -- 1561

$9533 92 41 $9482 $9052 561 $8991

Amounts represent the balance thee ts as originully reported in she companys filings for the respectice period esds
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET IMPACT CONTINUED

lit milliotn Uassdited

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets

Cash and equivalents $2751 $2610 141 $2655 $2555 100

Trade accounts receivable less allowances 760 87 407 266 734 95 393 246

Inventories 917 26 652 291 907 28 641 294

Current deferred income taxes 26 20 35 29

Other current assets 349 28 108 213 324 189 131

Receivable for proceeds on business disposition
376 376

Assets held for sale 78 3797 3875 3807 3812

Total current assets 5257 89 5168 4660 71 4589

Property net of accumulated
depreciation 1291 468 823 1300 490 809

Trademarks and other identifiable intangibles net 247 107 140 400 263 137

Goodwill 592 244 348 599 251 348

Deferred inconse taxes 145 109 40 139 73 73

Pension asset 354 -- 344 10 427 423

Other noncurrent assets 223 136 87 244 169 75

Noncurrent assets held for sale 77 1408 1485 1669 1674

$8186 $85 $8101 $7774 565 $7709

Liabilities and Equity

Notes payable
122 122 187 92 95

Accounts payable
728 345 383 693 293 400

Income taxes payable
and current deferred taxes 594 -- 12 582 615 24 47 592

Other accrued liabilities 1176 650 518 1061 603 449

Current maturities of long-term debt 390 389 985 980

Liabilities held for sale 70 1518 1591 1040 1041

Total current liabilities 3080 -- 3075 3541 16 3557

Long-term debt 1935 22 1913 954 19 935

Pension obligation
240 85 155 225 85 140

Deferred income taxes 212 212 211 211

Other liabilities 712 386 318 698 380 311

Noncurrent liabilities held for sale 705 708 695 695

Total equity 2004 72 1932 2145 74 2071

$8186 $85 $8101 $7774 565 $7709

Diro1inued

As Reported5 Ad Operations As Restated

December31 21111 March 31 2012

Lltseonlnsed

As Reported5 Adjustments Operarross As Restarts

Amounts represent the balance sheets as originally reported in the companys filings fot the ret pecsiee peried ends

The ltIishii IlranI Company 55



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CAS LOW IMPACT restatement impact with an offset to Increase decrease in deferred

The restatement did not change the total cash flows from operating taxes Other and/or Changes in Accounts receivable or Inventories

investing or financing activities for any of the quarters or full years The following table shows the impact of the restatements on the

impacted by the restatements However certain amounts within Cash previously reported cash flow items within Cash from Operating

from Operating Activities were impacted by the noncash adjustments Activities for 2011 and 2010

to correct the errors net income loss was adjusted to reflect the

July 2011 July 32010

In nsIliosss As Reported As Restated As Reported As Restated

Operating Activities

Net income $1296 $1272 527 539

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities

Amortization expense 84 84 94 93

Increase decrease in deferred income taxes 187 180 527 525

Other 20 19 22

Changes in current assets and liabilities net of businesses acquired and sold

Accounts receivable 105 116 55 58

Inventories 202 206 52 57

Other current assets 43 42 27 26

Accrued liabilities 170 171 19 19

Accrued taxes 155 178 274 274

Net cash from operating activities 447 447 952 952

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME IMPACT

July 2011 July 2010

In nsilliosss As R.ported As Restated As Reported As Rest ut.d

Comprehensive Income

Net income $1296 $1272 527 539

Translation adjustments net of tax 332 325 82 85

Net unrealized gain loss on qualifying cash flow hedges net of tax

Pension/Postretirement
activity net cf tax 317 317 235 235

Other comprehensive income
activity net of tax

Comprehensive income loss $1952 $1921 220 229

Qusrterersded Ortsb 13011 Quart essded December31 2011 Quartet endd Murls 31 2012

lit millions lJnsuthted As R.ported5 As Rtstatssi As Repstted6 As Restated As Reported As Reststed

Comprehensive Income

Net income loss $215 $218 $469 $470

Translation adjustments net of tax 142 133 14 16 193 192

Net unrealized gain loss on qualifying cash flow hedges net of tax

Pension/Postretirement activity net cf tax 10 10 12 12

Comprehensive income loss $348 $342 $462 $465 $181 $179

S.s Months ended December 31 2011 Nine Months ended Maeclt 31 2012

In millions lfnuudtted As Reported As Restoted As Reported6 As Restated

Comprehensive Income

Net income loss 254 252 $252 $249

Translation adjusttnents net of tax 128 117 65 75

Net unrealized gain loss on qualifying cash flow hedges net of tax 10 10 12 12

Pension/Postretirement activity net of tax 10 10

Comprehensive income loss 114 123 $295 $302

Amounts represent the balances as original relsorted in the use pony filings fat
the respeusoe pet ted sdo
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME IMPACT CONTINUED

In nilIsns Ilnoodited As Rrposted6 As Restated

Comprehensive Income

Net income loss $194 $197 $833 $838 $156 $150

Translation adjustments net of tax 193 191 39 40 129 127

Net unrealized gain loss on qualifying cash flow hedges net of tax 14 14

Pension/Postretirement activity net of tax 29 29 40 40 26 26

Comprehensive income loss $358 $359 $848 $852 $264 $256

Sio Meths ended January 2011 Nise Month endedAptil 2011

In millions Unosdted As Reported6 As Restated As Reported6 As Rest ated

Comprehensive Income

Net income $1027 $1035 $1183 $1185

Translation adjustments net of tax
154 151 283 278

Net unrealized gain loss on qualifying cash flow hedges net of tax 14 14 19 19

Pension/Postretirement activity net of tax
11 11 15 15

Comprehensive income loss $1206 $1211 $1470 $1467

NOTE SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in

the U.S CAAP
The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

in conformity with GAAP requires management to make use of

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of

assets and liabilities revenues and expenses
and certain financial

statement disclosures Significant estimates in these Consolidated

Financial Statements include allowances for doubtful accounts

receivable net realizable value of inventories the cost of sales incen

tives useful lives of property and identifiable intangible assets the

evaluation of the recoverability of property identifiable intangible

assets and goodwill self-insurance reserves income tax and valuation

reserves the valuation of assets and liabilities acquired in business

combinations assumptions used in the determination of the funded

status and annual expense of pension and postretirement employee

benefit plans and the volatility expected lives and forfeiture rates

for stock compensation instruments granted to employees Actual

results could differ from these estimates

REACQUIRED SHARES

The company is incorporated in the state of Maryland and under

those laws reacquired shares are retired As shares are reacquired the

cost in excess of par value first reduces capital surplus to the extent

available with any residual cost applied against retained earnings

SALES RECOGNITION AND INCENTIVES

The company recognizes sales when they are realized or realizable

and earned The company considers revenue realized or realizable

and earned when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists

delivery of products has occurred the sales price charged is fixed or

determinable and collectabiity is reasonably assured For the com

pany this generally means that we recognize sales when title to and

risk of loss of our products pass to our resellers or other customers

In particular title usually transfers upon receipt of our product at

our customers locations or upon shipment as determined by the

specific sales terms of the transactions

Sales are recognized as the net amount to be received after

deducting estimated amounts for sales incentives trade allowances

and product returns The company estimates trade allowances and

product returns based on historical results taking into consideration

the customer transaction and specifics of each arrangement The

company provides variety of sales incentives to resellers and con

sumers of its products and the policies regarding the recognition

and display of these incentives within the Consolidated Statements

of Income are as follows

Discounts Coupons and Rebates The cost of these incentives is

recognized at the later of the date at which the related sale is recog

nized or the date at which the incentive is offered The cost of these

incentives is estimated using number of factors induding historical

utilization and redemption rates Substantially all cash incentives of

this type are included in the determination of net sales Incentives

offered in the form of free product are included in the determination

of cost of sales

Slotting Fees Certain retailers require the payment of slotting fees

in order to obtain space for the companys products on the retailers

store shelves These amounts are included in the determination of

net sales when liability to the retailer is created

Volume-Based Incentives These incentives typically involve rebates

or refunds of specified amount of cash only if the reseller reaches

specified level of sales Under incentive programs of this nature the

company estimates the incentive and allocates portion of the incen

tive to reduce each underlying sales transaction with the customer

Quot trr eded Ott thee 2010 QuseteresdedJanoary 1.2011

As Repotsed As Restated

Qua rter rsded April 2011

As Reported As Restated

Ant aunts represent the bale sues as origtnaliy reported in the companys tilingo for the respectite period ends
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cooperative Advertising Under these arrangements the company

agrees to reimburse the reseller for portion of the Costs incurred

by the reseller to advertise and promote certain of the companys

products The
company recognizes the cost of cooperative advertising

programs in the period in which the advertising and promotional

activity first takes place The costs of these incentives are generally

included in the determination of net sales

Fixtures and Racks Store fixtures and racks are given to retailers to

display certain of the companys products The costs of these fixtures

and racks are recognized as expense in the period in which they are

delivered to the retailer

ADVERTISING EXPENSE

Advertising costs which include the development and production of

advertising materials and the communication of this material through

various forms of media are expensed in the period the advertising

first takes place Advertising expense is recognized in the Selling

general and administrative expenses line in the Consolidated

Statements of Income Total media advertising expense for continu

ing operations was $87 million in 2012 $82 million in 2011 and

$93 million in 2010

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

All highly liquid investments purchased with maturity of three

months or less at the time of purchase are considered to be

cash equivalents

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE VALUATION

Accounts receivable are stated at their net realizable value The

allowance for doubtful accounts reflects the companys best estimate

of probable losses inherent in the receivables portfolio determined

on the basis of historical experience specific allowances for known

troubled accounts and other currently available information

SHIPPING AND HANDLING COSTS

Shipping and handling costs are $268 million in 2012 $249 million

in 2011 and $265 million in 2010 These costs are recognized in the

Selling general and administrative expenses line of the Consolidated

Statements of Income

INVENTORY VALUATION

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market Cost is

determined by the first-in first-out FIFO method Rebates dis

counts and other cash consideration received from vendor related

to inventory purchases is reflected as reduction in the cost of the

related inventory item and is therefore reflected in cost of sales

when the related inventory item is sold

RECOGNITION AND REPORTING OF

PLANNED BUSINESS DISPOSITIONS

When deosion to dispose of business component is made it is

necessary to determine how the results will be presented within the

financial statements and whether the net assets of that business are

recoverable The following summarizes the significant accounting poli

cies and judgments associated with decision to dispose of business

Discontinued Operations discontinued operation is business

component that meets several criteria First it must be possible to

clearly distinguish the operations and cash flows of the component

from other portions of the business Second the operations need to

have been sold spun-off or classified as held for sale Finally after

the disposal the cash flows of the component must be eliminated

from continuing operations and the company may not have any signif

icant continuing involvement in the business Significant judgments

are involved in determining whether business component meets

the criteria for discontinued operation reporting and the period in

which these criteria are met The results for business to be spun-off

do not meet the criteria for discontinued operations reporting until

the completion of the spin-off

If business component is reported as discontinued operation

the results of operations through the date of sale are presented on

separate line of the income statement Interest on corporate level

debt is not allocated to discontinued operations Any gain or loss

recognized upon the disposition of discontinued operation is also

reported on separate line of the income statement Prior to dispo

sition the assets and liabilities of discontinued operations are

aggregated and reported on separate lines of the balance sheet

Gains and losses related to the sale of business components

that do not meet the discontinued operation criteria are reported

in continuing operations and separately disclosed if significant

Businesses Held for Sale In order for business to be classified

as held for sale several criteria must be achieved These criteria

include among others an active program to market the business

and locate buyer as well as the probable disposition of the business

within one year Upon being classified as held for sale the recover

ability of the carrying value of business must be assessed Evaluating

the recoverability of the assets of business classified as held for

sale follows defined order in which property and intangible assets

subject to amortization are considered only after the recoverability

of goodwill intangible assets not subject to amortization and other

assets arc assessed After the valuation process is completed the

held for sale business is reported at the lower of its carrying value or

fair value less cost to sell and no additional depreciation expense is

recognized related to property The carrying value of held for sale

business includes the portion of the cumulative translation adjust

ment related to the operation Once business is classified as held

for sale all of its historical balance sheet information is included

in assets and liabilities held for sale in the balance sheet
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Businesses Held for Use If decision to dispose of business is made

and the held for sale criteria are not met the business is considered

held for use and its assets are evaluated for recoverability in the

following order assets other than goodwill property and intangi

bles subject to amortization and finally goodwill In evaluating the

recoverability of property and intangible assets subject to amortiza

tion in held for use business the carrying value of the business is

first compared to the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected

to result from the use and eventual disposition of the operation

If the carrying value exceeds the undiscounted expected cash flows

then an impairment is recognized if the carrying value of the

business exceeds its fair value

There are inherent judgments and estimates used in determining

future cash flows and it is possible that additional impairment charges

may occur in future periods In addition the sale of business can

result in the recognition of gain or loss that differs from that

anticipated prior to the closing date

PROPERTY

Property is stated at historical cost and depreciation is computed using

the straight-line method over the lives of the assets Machinery and

equipment are depreciated over periods ranging from to 25 years
and

buildings and building improvements over periods of up to 40 years

Additions and improvements that substantially extend the useful

life of particular asset and interest costs incurred during the con

struction period of major properties are capitalized Leasehold

improvements are capitalized and amortized over the shorter of the

remaining lease term or remaining economic useful life Repairs and

maintenance costs are charged to expense Upon the sale or disposi

tion of property the cost and related accumulated depreciation are

removed from the accounts Capitalized interest was $5 million in

2012 $10 million in 2011 and $10 million in 2010

Property is tested for recoverability whenever events or changes

in circumstances indicate that its carrying value may not be recover

able Such events include significant adverse changes in the business

climate current period operating or cash flow losses forecasted con

tinuing losses or current expectation that an asset group
will be

disposed of before the end of its useful life or spun-off Recoverability

of property is evaluated by comparison of the carrying amount of

an asset or asset group to future net undiscounted cash flows expected

to be generated by the asset or asset group If the carrying amount

exceeds the estimated future undiscounted cash flows then an asset

is not recoverable The impairment loss recognized is the amount by

which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the estimated fair

value using discounted estimated future cash flows

Assets that are to be disposed of by sale are recognized in the

financial statements at the lower of carrying amount or fair value

less cost to sell and are not depreciated after being classified as held

for sale In order for an asset to be classified as held for sale the asset

must be actively marketed be available for immediate sale and meet

certain other specified criteria

TRADEMARKS AND OTHER

IDENTIFIABLE INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The primary identifiable intangible assets of the company are

trademarks and customer relationships acquired in business combi

nations and computer software The
company capitalizes direct costs

of materials and services used in the development and purchase of

internal-use software Identifiable intangibles with finite lives are

amortized and those with indefinite lives are not amortized The

estimated useful life of finite-lived identifiable intangible asset is

based upon number of factors including the effects of demand

competition expected changes in distribution channels and the level

of maintenance expenditures required to obtain future cash flows

Identifiable intangible assets that are subject to amortization

are evaluated for impairment using process similar to that used

in evaluating the recoverability of property plant and equipment

Identifiable intangible assets not subject to amortization are assessed

for impairment at least annually and as triggering events may occur

The impairment test for identifiable intangible assets not subject to

amortization consists of comparison of the fair value of the intangi

ble asset with its carrying amount An impairment loss is recognized

for the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of

the asset In making this assessment management relies on number

of factors to discount estimated future cash flows including operating

results business plans and present value techniques Rates used to

discount cash flows are dependent upon interest rates and the cost

of capital at point in time There are inherent assumptions and

judgments required in the analysis of intangible asset impairment

It is possible that assumptions underlying the impairment analysis

will change in such manner that impairment in value may occur

in the future

GOODWILL

Goodwill is the difference between the purchase price and the fair

value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business

combination When business combination is completed the assets

acquired and liabilities assumed are assigned to the reporting unit

or units of the company given responsibility for managing control

ling and generating returns on these assets and liabilities Reporting

units are business components at or one level below the operating

segment level for which discrete financial information is available

and reviewed by segment management In many instances all of the

acquired assets and liabilities are assigned to single reporting unit

and in these cases all of the goodwill is assigned to the same reporting

unit In those situations in which the acquired assets and liabilities

are allocated to more than one reporting unit the goodwill to be

assigned to each reporting unit is determined in manner similar

to how the amount of goodwill recognized in the business combina

tion is determined
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Goodwill is not amortized however it is assessed for impairment

at least annually and as triggering events may occur The company

performs its annual review for impairment in the fourth quarter of

each fiscal year

In 2012 the company adopted the recently amended accounting

standards regarding goodwill impairment reviews that permit an

entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is

more likely
than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less

than its carrying amount as basis for determining whether it is

necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment test The

more-likely-than-not threshold is defined as having likelihood of

more than 50% Some of the factors considered in the qualitative

assessment process were the overall financial performance of the

business including current and expected cash flows revenues and

earnings changes in macroeconomic or industry conditions changes

in cost factors such as raw materials and labor and changes in man

agement strategy or customers If after assessing the totality of

events or circumstances an entity determines that it is not more

likely than not that the fair value is less than the carrying amount

then the two step process of impairment testing is unnecessary

However if the qualitative assessment discussed above indicates

that there may be possible impairment then the first step of the

goodwill impairment test is required to be performed The first step

involves comparison of the fair value of reporting unit with its

carrying value If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its

fair value the second step of the
process is necessary

and involves

comparison of the implied fair value and the carrying value of the

goodwill of that reporting unit If the carrying value of the goodwill

of reporting unit exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill

an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to the excess

In evaluating the recoverability of goodwill it is necessary

to estimate the fair values of the reporting units In making this

assessment management relies on number of factors to discount

anticipated future cash flows including operating results business

plans and present value techniques The fair value of reporting units

is estimated based on weighting of two models discounted cash

flow model and market multiple model The discounted cash flow

model uses managements business plans and projections as the basis

for expected future cash flows for the first three years and residual

growth rate thereafter depending on the growth prospects for the

reporting unit The market multiple approach employs market mul

tiples of revenues and earnings for companies comparable to the

companys reporting units Management believes the assumptions

used for the impairment test are consistent with those utilized by

market participant performing similar valuations for our reporting

units separate discount rate derived from published sources was

utdized for each reporting unit Rates used to discount cash flows

are dependent upon interest rates market-based risk premium and

the cost of capital at point in time Because some of the inherent

assumptions and estimates used in determining the fair value of these

reporting units are outside the control of management including

interest rates market-based risk premium the cost of capital and

tax rates changes in these underlying assumptions and our credit

rating can also adversely impact the business units fair values The

amount of any impairment is dependent on these factors which

cannot be predicted with certainty

EXIT AND DISPOSAL ACTIVITIES

Exit and disposal activities primarily consist of various actions to

sever employees exit certain contractual obligations and dispose of

certain assets Charges are recognized for these actions in the period

in which the liability is incurred Adjustments to previously recorded

charges resulting from change in estimated liability are recognized

in the period in which the change is identified Our methodology

used to record these charges is described below

Severance Severance actions initiated by the
company are generally

covered under previously communicated benefit arrangements which

provides for termination benefits in the event that an employee is

involuntarily terminated Liabilities are recorded under these
arrange

ments when it is probable that employees will be entitled to benefits

and the amount can be reasonably estimated This generally occurs

when management with the appropriate level of authority approves

an action to terminate employees who have been identified and

targeted for termination within one year

Nonconceloble Lease ond Contractual Obligations Liabilities are

incurred for noncancelable lease and other contractual obligations

when the company terminates the contract in accordance with

contract terms or when the
company ceases using the right conveyed

by the contract or exits the leased space The charge for these items

is determined based on the fair value of remaining lease rentals

reduced by the fair value of estimated sublease rentals that could

reasonably be obtained for the property estimated using an

expected present value technique

Other For other costs associated with exit and disposal activities

charge is recognized at its fair value in the period in which the

liability
is incurred estimated using an expected present value tech

nique generally when the services are rendered
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STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The company recognizes the cost of employee services received in

exchange for awards of equity instruments over the vesting period

based upon the grant date fair value of those awards

INCOME TAXES

The companys tax rate from period to period is affected by many

factors The most significant of these factors includes changes in

tax legislation the tax characteristics of the companys income the

timing and recognition of goodwill impairments and acquisitions and

dispositions In addition the companys tax returns are routinely

audited and finalization of issues raised in these audits sometimes

affects the tax provision It is reasonably possible that tax legislation

in the jurisdictions in which the company
does business may change

in future periods While such changes cannot be predicted if they

occur the impact on the companys tax assets and obligations will

need to be measured and recognized in the financial statements

Deferred taxes are recognized for the future tax effects of

temporary differences between financial and income tax reporting

using tax rates for the years in which the differences are expected

to reverse Federal income taxes are provided on that portion of the

income of foreign subsidiaries that are expected to be remitted to

the U.S and be taxable

The management of the company periodically estimates the

probable tax obligations of the company using historical experience

in tax jurisdictions and informed judgments in accordance with GAAP

For tax benefit to be recognized tax position must be more-likely-

than-not to be sustained upon examination by the taxing authority

The company adjusts these reserves in light of changing facts and

circumstances however due to the complexity of some of these

situations the ultimate payment may be materially different from

the estimated recorded amounts Any adjustment to tax reserve

impacts the companys tax expense in the period in which the

adjustment is made

DEFINED BENEFIT POSTRETIREMENT

AND LIFE-INSURANCE PLANS

The company recognizes the funded status of defined pension and

postretirement plans in the Consolidated Balance Sheet The funded

status is measured as the difference between the fair market value

of the plan assets and the benefit obligation The company measures

its plan assets and liabilities as of its fiscal year
end For defined

benefit pension plan the benefit obligation is the projected benefit

obligation for any other defined benefit postretirement plan such as

retiree health care plan the benefit obligation is the accumulated

postretirement benefit obligation Any overfunded status should be

recognized as an asset and any underfunded status should be recog

nized as liability Any transitional assetlliability prior service cost

credit or actuarial gain/loss that has not yet been recognized as

component of net periodic cost is recognized in the accumulated other

comprehensive income section of the Consolidated Statements of

Equity net of tax Accumulated other comprehensive income will

be adjusted as these amounts are subsequently recognized as

component of net periodic benefit costs in future periods

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The company uses financial instruments including forward exchange

options futures and swap contracts to manage its exposures to

movements in interest rates foreign exchange rates and commodity

prices The use of these financial instruments modifies the exposure

of these risks with the intent to reduce the risk or cost to the com

pany The company does not use derivatives for trading purposes

and is not party to leveraged derivatives

The company uses either hedge accounting or mark-to-market

accounting for its derivative instruments Under hedge accounting

the company formally documents its hedge relationships including

identification of the hedging instruments and the hedged items as

well as its risk management objectives and strategies for undertak

ing the hedge transaction This process
includes linking derivatives

that are designated as hedges of specific assets liabilities firm com

mitments or forecasted transactions The company also formally

assesses both at inception and at least quarterly thereafter whether

the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly

effective in offsetting changes in either the fair value or cash flows

of the hedged item If it is determined that derivative ceases to be

highly effective hedge or if the anticipated transaction is no longer

likely to occur the company discontinues hedge accounting and
any

deferred gains or losses are recorded in the Selling general and

administrative expenses line in the Consolidated Statements of

Income Derivatives are recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

at fair value in other assets and other liabilities For more information

about accounting for derivatives see Note 15 Financial Instruments

SELF-INSURANCE RESERVES

The company purchases third-party insurance for workers

compensation automobile and product and general liability
claims

that exceed certain level The company is responsible for the payment

of claims under these insured limits The undiscounted obligation

associated with these claims is accrued based on estimates obtained

from consulting actuaries Historical loss development factors are

utilized to project the future development of incurred losses and

these amounts are adjusted based upon actual claim experience and

settlements Accrued reserves excluding any amounts covered by

insurance were $41 million as of June 30 2012 and $56 million as

of July 2011

The iftIiy Brands Company 61



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

With respect to business acquisitions the company ia required to

recognize and measure the identifiable assets acquired liabilities

assumed contractual contingencies contingent consideration and

any noncontrolling interest in an acquired business at fair value

on the acquisition date In addition the accounting guidance also

requires expensing acquisition costs when incurred restructuring

costs in periods subsequent to the acquisition date and any adjust

ments to deferred tax asset valuation allowances and acquired

uncertain tax positions after the measurement period to be

reflected in income tax expense

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are translated

into U.s dollars at exchange rates existing at the respective balance

sheet dates Translation adjustments resulting from fluctuations

in exchange rates are recorded as separate component of other

comprehensive income within common stockholders equity The

company translates the results of operations of its foreign subsidiaries

at the average exchange rates during the respective periods Gains

and iosses resulting from foreign currency transactions the amounts

of which are not material are included in selling general and

administrative expense

NOTE INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

The primary components of the intangible assets reported in

continuing operations and the related amortization expense follows

Accunulatrd Nstflooh

Arnoi iizaas Valuesnillos Grass

012

Intangible assets subject to amortization

Trsdemsrks 31 29

Customer relationships
72 44 28

Computer software 128 100 28

Other contractual agreements

$234 $146 88

Trademarks and brand names

not subject to amortization 44

Net book value of intangible assets $132

ROll

Intangible assets subject to amortization

Trademarks 31 31

Customer relationships 72 42 30

Computer software 137 87 50

Other contractual agreements

$243 $129 114

Trademarks and brand names

not subject to amortization 44

Net book value of intangible assets $158

The year-over-year change in the value of trademarks and brand

names and customer relationships is primarily due to the impact of

amortization during the
year

In 2011 the North American Retail

segment acquired Aidells gourmet sausage company which created

$31 million of trademarks and brand names $30 million of customer

relationships and $3 million of other contractual agreements The

amortizatioss expense reported in continuing operations for intangible

assets subject to amortization was $21 million in 2012 $31 million

in 2011 and $25 million in 2010 The estimated amortization expense

for the next five years assuming no change in the estimated useful

lives of identifiable intangible assets or changes in foreign exchange

rates is as follows $12 million in 2013 $11 million in 2014 $11 mil

lion in 2015 $10 million in 2016 and $4 million in 2017 At June 30

2012 the weighted average remaining useful life for trademarks is

19 years customer relationships is 14 years computer software is

years
and other contractual agreements is years

GO DW

In May 2011 the North American Retad segment acquired Aidells

gourmet sausage company for $87 million and recognized

$36 million of goodwill

The goodwill reported in continuing operations associated with

each business segment and the changes in those amounts during

2012 and 2011 are as follows

TotalIc millions Retail

Net book value at July 2010

Gross goodwill $103 622 725

Accumulated impairment losses 382 382

Net goodwill 103 240 343

Acquisitions 36 36

Held for disposal 31 31

Net book value at July
2011

Gross goodwill 139 591 730

Accumulated impairment losses 382 382

Net goodwill 139 209 348

Net book value at June 30 2012

Gross
goodwill

139 591 730

Accumulated impairment losses 382 382

Net
goodwill

$139 209 348

Voadarroce/

Other
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NOTE IMPAIRMENT CHARGES

The company recognized impairment charges in 2012 2011 and

2010 and the significant impairments are reported on the

Impairment charges line of the Consolidated Statements of

Income The tax benefit is determined using the statutory tax rates

for the tax jurisdiction in which the impairment occurred The

impact of these charges is summarized in the following tables

In oiIhos

so

General corporate expenses $14 $5

2011

Foodservice/Other $15 $5 $10

2010

Poodservice/Other $15 $5 $10

The company currently tests goodwill and intangible assets not

subject to amortization for impairment in the fourth quarter of its

fiscal year and whenever significant event occurs or circumstances

change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of

these intangible assets Other long-lived assets are tested for recover

ability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that its

carrying value may not be recoverable The following is discussion

of each impairment charge

2012

Copitolized Computer Software The company recognized $14 million

impairment charge related to the write-down of capitalized computer

software which was no longer determined to have any future use

by the company These charges were recognized as part of general

corporate expenses

2011

Foodservice/Other Property The company recognized $15 million

impairment charge related to the write-down of manufacturing

equipment associated with the foodservice bakery operations of

the Foodservice/Other segment

2010

Foodservice/Other Property The company recognized $15 million

impairment charge related to the write-down of manufacturing

equipment associated with the foodservice bakery operations of the

Foodservice/Other segment due to the loss of customer contract

NOTE DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On August 2012 D.E MASTER BLENDERS 1753 NV announced

that it had discovered accounting irregularities involving previously

issued financial results for its Brazilian operations which would

require the restatement of their previously issued financial state

ments for the periods from fiscal 2009 to 2012 The financial results

of the Brazilian operations are reported as part of discontinued

operations in the Hillshire Brands financial statements as result of

the spin-off of the international coffee and tea operations As such

Hillshire Brands has restated the historical financial results of its

discontinued operations to reflect the correction of the accounting

irregularities in the Brazilian operations See Note Nature of

Operations and Basis of Presentation for additional information

The following businesses are presented as discontinued operations

for all periods presented North American fresh bakery international

beverage international household and body care North American

refrigerated dough foodservice beverage and European bakery The

assets and liabilities of these disposed businesses meet the account

ing criteria to be classified as held for sale or disposition and have

been aggregated and reported on separate lines of the Condensed

Consolidated Balance Sheets for all periods presented

NORTH AMERICAN OPERATIONS

North American Presh Bakery On October 21 2011 the company

announced an agreement
with Grupo Bimbo that allowed the parties

to complete the previously announced sale of its North American

fresh bakery business for purchase price of $709 million The

sale also included small portion of business that was part of the

North American Foodservice/Other segment which is not reflected

as discontinued operations as it did not meet the definition of

component pursuant to the accounting rules The transaction closed

on November 2011 and Hillshire Brands received $717 million

which induded working capital
and other purchase price adjustments

The company entered into customary transition services agree

ment with the purchaser of this business to provide for the orderly

separation of the business and transition of various administrative

functions and processes The services agreement is for period of

one year but may be extended up to an additional two years

The buyer of the North American Fresh Bakery business assumed

all the pension and postretirement medical liabilities associated

with these businesses including any multi-employer pension liabili

ties An actuarial analysis under ERISA guidelines was performed to

determine the final plan assets that should be transferred to support

the pension liabilities assumed by the buyer The transfer of the

benefit plan liabilities to the buyer resulted in the recognition of

$36 million settlement loss related to the defined benefit pension

plans and $71 million settlement gain and $44 million curtailment

gain related to the postretirement benefit plans These amounts

have been included in the gain on disposition of this business

Pretax

Impairment

Char5e Tax senefit

After Tax

Cho5e

The IlWshite Brxods Company 63



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

North American Foodservice Beverage On October 24 2011 the

company announced that it had entered into an agreement to sell

the majority of its North American foodservice beverage operations

to the J.M Smucker Company Smuckers for $350 million The

transaction closed on December 31 2011 resulting in the recogni

tion of pretax gain of $222 million in the second quarter of 2012

The company received $376 million of proceeds which included

working capital adjustment The company entered into customary

transition services agreement with Smuckers to provide for the

orderly separation of the business and the transition of various

administrative functions and processes The company also entered

into 10 year partnership to collaborate on liquid coffee innovation

that will pay the company approximately $50 million plus growth-

related royalties over the 10 year period While this arrangement

provided continuation of cash flows subsequent to the divestiture

it did not represent significant continuing cash flows or significant

continuing involvement that would have precluded classification

of the North American foodservice beverage component as discon

tinued operation This partnership agreement was subsequently

transferred to the international coffee and tea business as part of the

spin-off The company performed an updated impairment analysis

for the remaining assets for sale in North American foodservice

beverage and recognized pretax impairment charge of $6 million

in 2012 which has been recognized in the operating results for

discontinued operations The company has also recognized exit

related costs for this business which is included in the operating

results for discontinued operations

North American Foodservice Refrigerated Dough On August 2011

the company announced it had entered into an agreement to sell its

North American refrigerated dough business to Ralcorp for $545 mil

lion The company received $552 million of proceeds which included

working capital adjustments The company entered into customary

transitional services agreement with the purchaser of this business

to provide for the orderly separation of the business and the orderly

transition of various functions and processes

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS

International Coffee and Tea On June 28 2012 the companys

international coffee and tea business was spun off into new public

company call D.E MASTER BLENDERS 1735 N.y The separation

was effected as follows distribution of all of the common stock of

U.S subsidiary that held all of the companys international coffee

and tea business CoffeeCo was made to an exchange agent on

behalf of the companys shareholders of record Immediately after

the distribution of CoffeeCo common stock CoffeeCo paid $3.00

per share dividend which totaled $1.8 billion After the payment of

the dividend CoffeeCo merged with subsidiary of D.E MASTER

BLENDERS 1753 NV As result of the spin-off the historical results

of the international coffee and tea business have been reported as

discontinued operation in the companys consolidated financial

statements The company entered into master separation agree

ment that provided for the orderly separation of the business and

transition of various administrative functions and processes The

company does not have any significant continuing involvement in

the business and does not expect any material direct cash inflows

or outflows with this business

European Bakery During the first quarter of 2012 management

decided to divest the Spanish bakery and French refrigerated dough

businesses collectively referred to as European bakery requiring

that these businesses be tested for impairment under the available

for sale model Based on an estimate of the anticipated proceeds

for these businesses the
company recognized pretax impairment

charge of $379 million for the Spanish bakery and French refrigerated

dough businesses in 2012 tax benefit of $38 million was recognized

on these impairment charges On October 10 2011 the company

announced that it had signed an agreement to sell the Spanish bakery

business to Grupo Bimbo for 115 million and closed the transaction

in the second quarter of 2012 recognizing pretax gain of $15 mil

lion In the third quarter of 2012 the company also completed the

disposition of its French refrigerated dough business for 115 mil

lion $10 million pretax loss was recognized in 2012 on the sale of

both the Spanish bakery and French refrigerated dough businesses

Global Body Care and European Detergents In December 2010

the company completed the disposition of its global body care and

European detergents business Using foreign currency exchange rates

on the date of the transaction the company received cash proceeds of

$1.6 billion and reported an after tax gain on disposition of $488 mil

lion The company entered into customary transitional services

agreement
with the purchaser of this business to provide for the

orderly separation of the business and the orderly transition of various

functions and processes which was completed by the end of 2011

Air Care Products Business In July 2010 the company sold majority

of its air care products business Using foreign currency exchange rates

on the date of the transaction the company received cash proceeds

of $411 million which represented the majority of the proceeds

received on the disposition of the Aircare business and reported an

after tax gain on disposition of $94 million When this business was

sold certain operations were retained in Spain until production

related to non-air care businesses ceased at the facility The sale

of the Spanish facility
closed in the third quarter of 2012 and the

company received $44 million of proceeds and recognized pretax

loss on the sale of this facility of $10 million
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Australia/New Zealand Bleach In February 2011 the company

completed the sale of its Australia/New Zealand bleach business

Using foreign currency exchange rates on the date of the transaction

the company received cash proceeds of $53 million and reported an

after tax gain on disposition of $31 million

Shoe Care Business In May 2011 the company completed the sale

of the majority of its shoe care businesses Using foreign currency

exchange rates on the date of the transaction the company received

cash proceeds of $276 million and reported an after tax gain on dis

position of $117 million Certain other shoe care businesses were to

be sold on delayed basis In 2012 the company closed on the sale of

its shoe care business in Malaysia China and Indonesia and received

$56 million of proceeds which included working capital adjustments

Non-Indian Insecticides Business The company entered into an

agreement to sell all of its non-Indian insecticides business for

154 million to SC Johnson and received deposit of 152 million

in December 2010 on the sale of these businesses Due to competi

tion concerns raised by the European Commission the two parties

abandoned the transaction as originally agreed but were able to com

plete the sale of the insecticides businesses outside the European

Union Malaysia Singapore Kenya and Russia as well as limited

number of businesses inside the European Union in 2012 The com

pany also divested the remaining insecticides businesses inside the

European Union to another buyer and transferred the net proceeds

received from the divestiture of those businesses to SC Johnson

The company recognized pretax gain of $255 million on the

dispositions in 2012

Godrej Sara Lee Joint Venture In May 2010 the company completed

the disposition of its Godrej Sara Lee joint venture business which

was part of the International Household and Body Care segment and

recognized an after tax gain on the disposition total of $230 million

of cash proceeds was received from the disposition of this business

RESULTS OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The amounts in the tables below reflect the operating results of

the businesses reported as discontinued operations up through the

date of disposition The amounts of any gains or losses related to

the disposal of these discontinued operations are excluded

Th llis Nt SaIes

2012

North American Fresh Bakery 724 29 163

North American Refrigerated Dough 74 13

North American Foodservice Beverage 330 15

International Coffee and Tea 3728 224 662

European Bakery 262 384 358

International Household and Body Care 111

Total $5229 $138 465

201 AS RESTATED
North American Fresh Bakery $2037 58 159

North American Refrigerated Dough 307 42 27

North American Foodservice Beverage 538

International Coffee and Tea 3537 399 276

European Bakery 591 16

International Household and Body Care 1078 72 36

Total as restated $8088 567 485

2010-AS RESTATED
North American Fresh Bakery $2128 46 35

North American Refrigerated Dough 326 56 37

North American Foodservice Beverage 512 17 13

International Coffee and Tea 3218 645 463

European Bakery 650 22 21

International lIousehold and Body Care 2126 254 199

Total as restated $8960 996 328

In 2012 as consequence of the spin-off the company
released

approximately $623 million of deferred tax liabilities on its balance

sheet related to the repatriation of foreign earnings with correspon

ding reduction in the tax expense of the discontinued international

coffee and tea business In 2011 the North American fresh bakery

operations recognized $122 million tax benefit associated with

the excess tax basis related to these assets

In 2010 the household and body care operations reported

$453 million of tax expense which includes the following significant

tax amounts $428 million tax charge related to the companys

third quarter decision to no longer reinvest overseas earnings

attributable to overseas cash and the net assets of the household

and body care businesses ii $40 million tax benefit related to

the reversal of tax valuation allowance on United Kingdom net

operating loss carryforwards as result of the gain from the house

hold and body care business dispositions and iii $22 million tax

benefit related to the anticipated utilization of U.S capital loss

carryforwards available to offset the capital gain resulting from

the household and body care business dispositions Also in 2010

$10 million pretax curtailment loss was recognized in the results

of discontinued operations

Pretax

Lass Loss
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Contingent Sale Proceeds In the first quarter of 2010 the company

received the final 95 mfflion payment of contingent sale proceeds

related to the previous sale of its European cut tobacco business

The contingent sale proceeds are reported as part of the results

of discontinued operations

GAIN LOSS ON THE SALE

OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The gain loss on the sale of discontinued operations recognized

in 2012 2011 and 2010 are summarized in the following tables

ni/Sons

Pretax Tax

GoP Loss Eopense/ After Too

on Sole Once
f/t

GaP Loot

SOS
North American Fresh Bakery 94 33 61

North American Foodservice Beverage 222 76 146

North American Refrigerated Dough 198 156 42

European Bakery 11 45 34

Non-European Insecticides 249 59 190

Air Care Products 10 11

Other Household and Body Care 11

Total 772 $367 $405

Soil -AS RESTATED

Global Body Care and European Detergents 867 $379 $488

Air Care Products 273 179 94

Australia/New Zealand Bleach 48 17 31

ShoeCareProducts 115 117

Other Household and Body Care Businesses

Total as restated $1304 $573 $731

010

Godre Sara Lee joint venture 150 72 78

Other

Total 158 74 84

In 2012 the $156 million tax expense recognized on the sale of

the North American refrigerated dough business was impacted by

the $254 million of goodwill that had no tax basis and the $45 mil

lion of tax expense recognized on the sale of the European bakery

businesses was impacted by $140 million of cumulative translation

adjustments that had no tax basis The tax expense recognized on

the sale of the household and body care businesses in 2011 includes

$190 million charge related to the anticipated repatriation of the

cash proceeds received on the disposition of these businesses In the

fourth quarter of 2011 repatriation tax benefit of $79 million was

recognized on the gain transactions which was reflected in the

income taxes on the shoe care products gain

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS CASH FLOWS

The companys discontinued operations impacted the cash flows

of the company as follows

In njlhxa 2012 2017 2010

Discontinued operations impact on

Cash from operating
activities 112 302 936

Cash from used in investing
activities 364 2296 117

Cash used in financing
activities 1524 1802 856

Effect of changes in foreign

exchange rates on cash 216 285 104

Net cash impact of

discontinued operations $1992 1081 93

Cash balance of discontinued operations

At start of period 1992 911 818

At end of period 1992 911

Increase decrease in cash

of discontinued operations $1992 1081 93

The cash used in financing activities primarily represents the net

transfers of cash with the corporate office The net assets of the dis

continued operations includes only the cash noted above as most of

the cash of those businesses with the exception of the international

coffee and tea business has been retained as corporate asset

The following is summary of the net assets held for sale or

disposition as of June 30 2012 and July 2011 which primarily con

sists of the net assets of the North American fresh bakery refrigerated

dough and foodservice beverage businesses and the international

coffee and tea and household and body care businesses at July 2011

July

June00 2011

In nnlliono 2012 Rn Restated

Cash and cash equivalents $1992

Trade accounts receivable 698

Inventories 806

Other curreot assets 162

Total current assets held for sale 3658

Property 1346

Trademarks ard other intangibles
427

Goodwill 1075

Deferred assets 159

Other noncurrent assets 478

Assets held for sale $5 $7143

Accounts payable 673

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 1231

Current maturities of long-term debt 488

Total current liabilities held for sale 2392

Long-term debt 105

Other liabilities 1025

Liabilities held for sale $3522

Noncontrolling interest 29
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The net assets of the discontinued businesses as of July 2011

reflect the correction of errors related to the international coffee and

tea operations in Brazil and other error corrections These corrections

reduced assets held for sale by $80 million and increased liabilities

held for sale by $17 million at July 2011

NOTE EXIT DISPOSAL

AND RESTRUCTURING ACTIVITIES

The company has incurred exit disposition and restructuring charges

for initiatives designed to improve its operational performance and

reduce cost In addition in June 2012 the company completed the

spin-off of its international coffee and tea operations into new

public company which resulted in the company incurring certain

costs in conjunction with the spin-off These costs include restruc

turing actions such as employee termination costs and costs related

to renegotiating contractual agreements third party professional

fees for consulting and other services that are directly related to the

spin-off and the costs of employees solely dedicated to activities

directly related to the spin-off

The nature of the costs incurred includes the following

Exit Activities Asset and Business Disposition Actions

These amounts primarily relate to

Employee termination costs

Lease and contractual obligation exit costs

Gains or losses on the disposition of assets or asset

groupings that do not qualify as discontinued operations

Restructuring/Spin-off Costs Recognized in Cost of Sales and

Selling General and Administrative Expenses

These amounts primarily relate to

Expenses associated with the installation of information systems

Costs to retain and relocate employees

Consulting costs

Costs associated with the transition of services to an outside third

party vendor as part of business process outsourcing initiative

Restructuring/spin-off costs are recognized in Cost of Sales or

Selling General and Administrative Expenses in the Consolidated

Statements of Income as they do not qualify for treatment as an exit

activity or asset and business disposition pursuant to the account

ing rules for exit and disposal activities However management

believes that the disclosure of these charges provides the reader

with greater transparency to the total cost of the initiatives

The following is summary of the income expense associated

with new and ongoing actions which also highlights where the costs

are reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Income along with

the impact on diluted EPS

2010

IIio 2012 2011 Puatd

Exit and business dispositions
81 39 18

Selling general and

administrative expenses 118 35 14

Reduction in income from continuing

operations before income taxes 199 74 32

Income tax benefit 57 22 12

Reduction in income from

continuing operations
142 52 20

Impact on diluted EPS from

continuing operations
$1.17 $0.42 $0.14

The impact of these actions on the companys business segments

and unallocated corporate expenses is summarized as follows

2010

eillios 2012 2011 Rsttd

Retail 14 $11

Foodservice/Other

Australian Bakery

Decrease in business segment income 21 14 10

Increase in
general corporate expenses 178 60 22

Total $199 $74 $32

The following discussion provides information concerning the

exit disposal and restructuring/spin-off activities for each
year

where actions were initiated and material reserves exist

2012 ACTIONS

During 2012 the company approved certain actions related to exit

disposal restructuring and spin-off activities and recognized charges

of $200 million related to these actions Each of these activities is

expected to be completed within 12-month period after being

approved and include the following

Recognized charge to implement plan to terminate

approximately 520 employees related to the retail foodservice and

corporate office operations and provide them with severance benefits

in accordance with benefit plans previously communicated to the

affected employee group or with local employment laws Of the

520 targeted employees approximately 270 have been terminated

The remaining employees are expected to be terminated within the

next 12 months

Recognized costs associated with renegotiating global IT contracts

and spin-off related advisory fees
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Recognized third party and employee costs associated with

the planned spin-off of the companys international coffee and

tea operations

The following table summarizes the net charges taken for the

exit disposal other restructuring and spin-off activities approved

during 2012 and the related status as of June 30 2012 The accrued

amounts remaining represent those cash expenditures necessary to

satisfy remaining obligations The majority of the cash payments to

satisfy
the accrued costs are expected to be paid in the next 12 months

Approximately $65 million to $75 million of additional charges are

expected to be recognized within the next twelve month period

related to these restructuring actions and other actions associated

with cost reduction efforts related to the spin-off See the Business

Overview section of the Financial Review for additional information

Ta toIn millions

Exit disposal and other costs

recognized during 2012 28 $117 55 200

Charges recognized in

discontinued operations
-- 12

Cash payments 10 94 51 155

Non-cash charges

Accrued costs as of June 30 2012 25 16 17 55

2011 ACTIONS

lIuring 2011 the company approved certain actions related to exit

disposal restructuring and spin-off activities and recognized charges

of $77 million related to these actions Each of these activities was

expected to be completed within 12-month period after being

approved and include the following

Recognized charge to implement plan to terminate

approximately 630 employees related to the North American

retail and foodservice businesses and the corporate office operations

and provide them with severance benefits in accordance with benefit

plans previously communicated to the affected employee group or

with local employment laws Of the 630 targeted employees approxi

mately 570 have been terminated The remaining employees are

expected to be terminated within the next 12 months

Recognized costs associated with the transition of services

to an outside third party vendor as part of business process

outsourcing initiative

Recognized third party and employee costs associated with

the planned spin-off of the companys International coffee and

tea operations

The following table summarizes the net charges taken for the

exit disposal restructuring and spin-off activities approved during

2011 and the related status as of June 30 2012 The accrued amounts

remaining represent those cash expenditures necessary to satisfy

remaining obligations The majority of the cash payments to satisfy

the accrued costs are expected to be paid in the next 12 months

Oasalnsllaana

Exit disposal and other costs

recognized during 2011 32 36 77

Charges recognized
in

discontinued operations 25 26

Cash payments 42 44

Non-cash charges

Accrued costs as of July 2011 31 18 58

Change in estimate

Cash payments 15 18 42

Accrued costs as of June 30 2012 15 15

2010 ACTIONS

During 2010 the company approved certain actions related to exit

disposal and other restructuring activities and recognized charges

of $34 mfflion in continuing operations related to these actions Each

of these activities was to be completed within 12-month period

after being approved and include the following

Recognized charge to implement plan to terminate

approximately 720 employees primarily related to the North

American foodservice operations and provide them with severance

benefits in accordance with benefit plans previously communicated

to the affected employee group or with local employment laws

Recognized costs associated with the transition of services

to an outside third party vendor as part of business process

outsourcing initiative

As of June 30 2012 all of the above restructuring actions have

been completed and there are no accrued liabilities remaining in the

Consolidated Balance Sheet related to these completed 2010 actions

OTHER RESTRUCTURING ACTIONS

Prior to 2010 the company
had approved and completed various

actions to exit certain defined business activities and lower its cost

structure and these actions have had minimal impact on current

year results In 2012 adjustments were made to certain accrued

obligations remaining for these completed actions These adjust

ments related to the final settlement of certain planned termination

Employee

Termination

and Other

Pease its

Net-

cancellable

IT and 1easrs/

Other Contractual

Lasts lbligalosa

Employer

Tea-titan Orion

and Other

ileint fats

Nan

caacellablr

lTcand Leases

Ilther ontratual

Costs ObEgataaaas
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actions which increased income from continuing operations before

income taxes by $1 million and are reported in the Net charges

for exit activities asset and business dispositions line of the

Consolidated Statements of Income

As of June 30 2012 the accrued liabilities remaining in the

Consolidated Balance Sheet related to these completed actions total

$6 million and represent certain severance obligations These accrued

amounts are expected to be satisfied in cash and will be funded

from operations

NOTE COMMON STOCK

On June 28 2012 the company effected 1-for-S reverse stock split

of Hillshire Brands common stock As result every five shares of

l-lillshire Brands common stock were converted into one share of

Hillshire Brands common stock Any reference to the number of

shares outstanding or any per
share amounts has been adjusted to

reflect the impact of this reverse stock split

Changes in outstanding shares of common stock for the past

three years were

Shares in tlouasmdn 2112 2011 2110

Beginning balances 117420 132424 139132

Stock issuances

Stock option and benefit plans 1104 642 211

Restricted stock plans 2119 398 348

Reacquired shares 16044 7283

Other
16

Ending balances 120644 117420 132424

Common stock dividends and dividend-per-share amounts

declared on outstanding shares of common stock were

In millions eXcept per share ii cia

Common stock dividends declared

Dividends
per

share amount declared

During 2010 the companys Board of Directors had authorized

$3.0 billion share repurchase program In March of 2010 the com

pany repurchased 7.3 million shares at cost of $500 million under

this program using an accelerated share repurchase program ASR
The ASR provides for final settlement adjustment at termination

in either shares of common stock or cash based on the final volume

weighted average stock price In 2011 the company paid $13 million

as final settlement on the ASR During 2011 the company
also

repurchased 16.0 million shares at cost of $1.3 billion The share

amounts reflect the 1-for-5 reverse stock split in June 2012

As of June 30 2012 after adjusting for the 1-for-S reverse

stock split in June 2012 the remaining amount authorized for

repurchase is $1.2 billion of common stock under an existing share

repurchase program plus 2.7 million shares of common stock that

remain authorized for repurchase under the companys prior share

repurchase program However the company currently does not

expect to do any share repurchases in the near term

NOTE ACCUMULATED OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income are

Net Unrealized Pension/

Gain Loss Post- Accumulated

Cumulative an Qualifying retirement Other

Translation Cash Floe Liability comprelsensee

Ad1ustment 1-ledges/Other Adjustment Income Laus

270 50 227

219 490 265

127 -- 127

-- 70 70

-- 24 24

180 343 163

150 26 122

16 1168 1144

21 $11 $572 1604

14 14

19 19

323 323

-- 27 27

--

99 10 46 43

106 807 014

55 -- 55

16 16

326 326

25 25

In millions

Balance at June 27 2009

as restated

Disposition
of Godrej J.V

Amortization of net actuarial

loss and
prior

service credit

Net actuarial loss arising

during the period

Pension plan curtailment

Pension and postretieement

plan amendments

Other comprehensive

income loss activity

Balance at July 2010

as restated

Disposition of Household

Body Care businesses

Amortization of net actuarial

loss and prior service credit

Net actuarial gain arising

during the period

Pension plan curtailment

2012 2011 2010

T17 275
Other comprehensive

income loss activity

$1.15 $2.30 $2.20
Balance at July 2011

as restated

Business dispositions

Amortization of net actuarial

loss and
peior

service credit

Net actuarial loss arising

during the period

Pension plan curtailments/

settlements

Spin-off of International

Coffee and Tea hiss mess

Other comprehensive

income loss activity

Balance at June 30 2012
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NOTE 9- STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
The company has various stock option and stock award plans

At June 30 2012 21.1 million shares were available for future
grant

in the form of options restricted shares or stock appreciation rights

The company will satisfy the requirement for common stock for

share-based payments by issuing shares out of authorized but

unissued common stock

STOCK OPTIONS

The exercise price of each stock option equals the market price of

the companys stock on the date of grant Options can generally be

exercised over maximum term of 10 years Options generally cliff

vest and expense is recognized on straightline basis during the

vesting period

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of

grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the follow

ing weighted average assumptions

millivts eeept per share dat 2012 2011 2010

Number of options exercisable

at end of fiscal
year 5704 7784 8482

Weighted average
exercise price

of options exercisable

at end of fiscal
year $2265 $26.38 $27.31

Weighted average grant date

fair value of options granted

during the fiscal year 6.35 5.29 2.92

Total intrinsic valise of options

exercised during the fiscal
year

23.5 8.0 0.9

Fair value of options that vested

during the fiscal
year 169 4.5 6.3

STOCK UNIT AWARDS
21112 2111 2010

Restricted stock units RSUs are granted to certain employees to

7.0
years 7.2 years 8.0

years
incent performance and retention over periods ranging from one to

three
years Upon the achievement of defined parameters the RSUs

1.37% 2.08% 3.03% are generally converted into shares of the companys common stock

28 38% 91 68% 02 15%
on one-for-one basis and issued to the employees portion of all

RSUs vest solely upon continued future service to the company
28.1% 28.0% 27.2% portion of RSUs vest based upon continued future employment and

the achieverrient of certain defined performance measures The cost
28.1 28.3% 27.3 30.0% 27.2 27.6%

of these awards is determined using the fair value of the shares on
2.5% 2.9% 4.4%

the date of grant and compensation is recognized over the period

during which the employees provide the requisite service to the

company All RSUs immediately vested upon the completion of the

spin-off with the exception of the RSUs granted in November 2011

summary of the changes in the stock unit awards outstanding

under the companys benefit plans during 2012 is presented below

The company received cash from the exercise of stock options

during 2012 of $84 million As of June 30 2012 the company had

$2.3 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to

stock option plans that will be recognized over the weighted average

period of 1.1 years

Weighted average

expected lives

Weighted average

risk-free interest rates

Range of risk-free

interest rates

Weighted average

expected volatility

Range of

expected volatility

Dividend yield

The
company uses historical volatility for period of time that is

comparable to the expected life of the option to determine volatility

assumptions

summary of the changes in stock options outstanding under

the companys option plans during 2012 is presented below

Weighted

Average

Eucrcine

Price

Vceighted

Average

Remaining

Ceiractual

lerm leave

Aggregate

In tritiuir

Valve

itt million
.5/ores in ihousonels Shores

Options outstanding

at
July 2011 11515 $24.33 4.6 $66

Granted 503 28.75

Exercised 3608 25.16

Canceled/expired 2146 27.86

Options outstanding

at June 30 2012 6264 $23.01 3.2 $38

Options exercisable

at June 30 2012 5704 $22.65 2.7 $37

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

Fair Value

Weighied

Average

Remaining

Contractual

Te Years

Aggregate

lritrntie

Value

in tnilliess
Shares in thousand Shares

Nonvested shape units

at July 201.1 4993 $19.73 1.1 $149

Granted 767 29.09

Vested 4463 19.81

Forfeited__ 957 24.56

Nonvested shaie units

at June 30 2012 340 $26.24 07 10

Exercisable share units

at June 30 2012 84 $20.67 4.8
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As of June 30 2012 the company had $2 million of total unrec

ognized compensation expense related to stock unit plans that will

be recognized over the weighted average period of 1.74 years

In I/ions esoopt porshssre data 2012 2011 200

Stock Unit Awards

Fair value of share-based units

that vested during the fiscal year
88 42 35

Weighted average grant date

fair value of share based units

granted during the fiscal year $29.09 $23.40 $15.56

All Stock-Based Compensation

Total compensation expense 35 41 35

Tax benefit on compensation expense 11 15 13

NOTE 0- EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLANS ESOP
The company

maintains an ESOP that holds common atock of the

company that is used to fund portion of the companys matching

program for its 401k savings plan for domestic non-union employ

ees The purchase of the original stock by the ESOP was funded both

with debt guaranteed by the company and loans from the company

The debt guaranteed by the company was fully paid in 2004 and only

loans from the company to the ESOP remain Each year the company

makes contributions that with the dividends on the common stock

held by the ESOP are used to pay loan interest and principal Shares

are allocated to participants based upon the ratio of the current years

debt service to the sum of the total principal and interest payments

over the remaining life of the loan The number of unallocated shares

in the ESOP was million at June 30 2012 and million at July

2011 Expense recognition for the ESOP is accounted for under the

grandfathered provisions contained within US GAAP

The expense for the 401k recognized by the ESOP amounted

to $14 million in 2012 $15 million in 2011 and $7 million in 2010

Payments to the ESOP were $6 million in 2012 $23 million in 2011

and $11 million in 2010

NOTE II EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net income loss per share basic is computed by dividing income

loss attributable to Hillshire Brands by the weighted average number

of common shares outstanding for the period Net income loss

per share diluted reflects the potential dilution that could occur

if options and fixed awards to be issued under stock-based compen

sation arrangements were converted into common stock

Options to purchase 384 thousand shares of common stock at

June 30 2012 5.4 million shares of common stock at July 2011

and 10.4 million shares of common stock at July 2010 were not

included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the

exercise price of these options was greater than the average market

price of the companys outstanding common stock and therefore

anti-dilutive In 2012 the dilutive effect of stock options and award

plans were excluded from the earnings per share calculation because

they would be antidilutive given
the loss in the period

The following is reconciliation of net income loss to net

income loss per share basic and diluted for the years ended

June 30 2012 July 2011 and July 2010

2011 2010

As //sstatod As IlestotedIs nII jo ossopt earnings per share 2012

Income loss from continuing operations

attributable to Hilishire Brands 22 56 127

Net income from discontinued
operations

attributable to Hiilshire Brands 867 1207 391

Net income attributable to Hiilshire Brands 845 $1263 518

Average shares outstanding basic 119 124 138

Dilutive effect of stock compensation

Diluted shares outstanding 119 125 138

Income loss per
common share Basic

Income loss from continuing operations $0.18 0.45 $0.92

Income from discontinued operations
7.31 9.71 2.85

Net income 7.13 $10.16 $3.77

Income loss per common share Diluted

Income loss from continuing operations $0.18 0.45 $0.92

Income from discontinued operations 7.31 9.66 2.83

Net income 7.13 $10.11 $3.75
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NOTE 12-DEBT INSTRuMENT5

The composition of the companys long-term debt which includes

capital lease obligations is summarized in the following table

slrnss Mnty Dov 2012 20J

Senior debt

3.875% notes 2013 500

10% zero coupon notes

$19 million face value 2014 16 15

10% 14.25% zero coupon notes

$105 million face value 2015 82 72

2.75% notes 2016 400 400

4.1%notes 2021 278 400

6.125% notes 2033 152 500

Total senior debt 928 1887

Obligations under capital lease

Other debt 15 16

Total debt 945 1904

Unamortized discounts

Hedged debt adjustment to fair value 12

Total long-term debt 944 1911

Less current portion

$939 $1910

In May 2012 the
company issued $650 million in senior notes

through private placement The offering consisted of $232 million

of 3.60% senior notes due May 15 2019 $120 million of 3.81% sen

ior notes due May 15 2020 $124 million of 4.03% senior notes due

May 15 2021 and $174 million of 4.20% senior notes due May 15

2022 The proceeds were used to payoff existing indebtedness and

for general purposes As part of the spin-off the company satisfied

its obligations under these notes by effectively transferring the

$650 million of indebtedness as part of the spin-off

In April 2012 the company completed tender offer for up to

$470 million of combined
aggregate principal amount of three series

of its outstanding debt securities 6.125% Notes due Nov 2032

4.10% Notes due 2020 and 2.75% Notes due 2015 Upon the expira

tion of the tender the
company accepted for purchase $348.4 million

of 6.125% Notes and $121.6 million of the 4.10% Notes and recognized

$26 million of charges associated with the early extinguishment

of this debt

In April 2012 the company redeemed all of its 3.875% Notes

due 2013 of which the aggregate principal amount outstanding was

$500 million charge of $13 million was incurred related to the early

extinguishment of this debt

On September 2010 the company completed tender offer

for any and all of its 6/% Notes due September 15 2011 of which

$1.11 billion aggregate principal amount was outstanding At the

time of expiration of the tender offer $653.3 million of the 6/4%

notes had been validly tendered On September 2010 the com

pany announced that it was redeeming the remaining $456.7 million

of aggregate principal outstanding of the 6Y4% Notes This debt was

redeemed on October 2010 The company recognized total

charge of $55 million in 2011 associated with the early extinguish

ment of this debt

The charges associated with the early extinguishment of debt are

reported on the Debt extinguishment costs line of the Consolidated

Income Statement

In September 2010 the company issued $400 million 2.75%

Notes due in September 2015 and $400 million 4.1% Notes due in

September 2020 the proceeds of which were used to fund portion

of the redemption of the 6V5% Notes The remaining portion of the

redemption of the 6/% Notes in the second quarter of 2011 was

funded by cash on hand and the net proceeds from commercial

paper issuances

Payments required on long-term debt during the years ending 2013

through 2017 are $5 million $18 million $82 mfflion $400 million

and nil respectively The
company

made cash interest payments

of $73 million $99 million and $118 million in 2012 2011 and

2010 respectively

The
company had $1.2 billion revolving credit facility that

matured on the date on which the spin-off was consummated It was

replaced by $750 million revolving credit
facility

that matures in May

2017 The credit facility has an annual fee of 0.15% as of June 30

2012 Pricing under this
facility

is based on the companys current

credit rating As of June 30 2012 the company did not have any

borrowings outstanding under the credit
facility

This agreement

supports commercial paper borrowings and other financial instru

ments The company had $57 million of letters of credit under this

facility outstanding as of June 30 2012 The companys credit
facility

and debt agreements contain customary representations warranties

and events of default as well as affirmative negative and financial

covenants with which the company is in compliance One financial

covenant includes requirement to maintain an interest coverage

ratio of not less than 2.0 to 1.0 The interest coverage ratio is based

on the ratio of EBIT to consolidated net interest expense with con

solidated EBIT equal to net income plus interest expense income

tax expense and extraordinary or non-recurring non-cash charges

and gains For the 12 months ended June 30 2012 the companys

interest coverage ratio was 8.0 to 1.0
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sillises

Maximum month-end borrowings

Average borrowings during the year

Year-end borrowings

Weighted average
interest rate

during the
year

Weighted average interest rate

at year-end

Ic milIics

Gross book value of capital lease assets

included in property

Net book value of capital lease assets

included in property ____________

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Thereafter

Total minimum lease payments

Amounts representing
interest

Present value of net minimum payments

Current portion

Noncurrent portion

NOTE 4- CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The company is party to various pending legal proceedings claims

and environmental actions by government agencies The company

records provision
with respect to claim suit investigation or

proceeding when it is probable that liability has been incurred and

the amount of the loss can reasonably be estimated Any provisions

are reviewed at least quarterly and are adjusted to reflect the impact

and status of settlements rulings advice of counsel and other infor

mation pertinent to the particular matter

0.34% 0.31% 0.26%
Aria This is consolidation of cases filed by individual complainants

with the Republic of the Philippines Department of Labor and

0.30 0.32
Employment and the National Labor Relations Commission NLRC

from 1998 through July 1999 The complaint alleges unfair labor

practices due to the termination of manufacturing operations in the

Philippines by Aris Philippines Inc Aris former subsidiary of

the company The complaint names the company as party defen

dant In 2006 the arbitrator ruled against the company
and awarded

the plaintiffs approximately $80 million in damages and fees This

ruling was appealed by the company and subsequently set aside by

the NLRC in December 2006 Both the complainants and the corn

Juc 30 July

pany have filed motions for reconsideration The company continues

2012 2011

to believe that the plaintiffs claims are without merit however it

$4 $4 is reasonably possible that this case will be ruled against the corn-

pany and have material adverse impact on the companys results

of operations and cash flows The company has initiated settlement

discussions for this case and has established an accrual for the

estimated settlement amount

Multi-Employer Pension Plans The company participates in

multi-employer pension plan that provides retirement benefits

Cuptul Ou.rtcg
to certain employees covered by collective bargaining agreements

$1 23 MEPP Participating employers in MEPP are jointly responsible

19 for any plan underfunding MEPP contributions are established by

13 the applicable collective bargaining agreements however the MEPPs

may impose increased contribution rates and surcharges based on

82
the funded status of the plan and the provisions of the Pension

-i Protection Act which requires substantially underfunded MEPPs to

implement rehabilitation plans to improve funded status Factors

that could impact funded status of MEPP include investment per

________
formance changes in the participant demographics financial stability

of contributing employers and changes in actuarial assumptions

The financial covenants also include requirement to maintain

leverage ratio of not more than 3.50 to 1.00 The leverage ratio is

based on the ratio of consolidated total indebtedness to an adjusted

consolidated EBITDA For the 12 months ended June 30 2012 the

leverage ratio was 2.3 to 1.0

Selected data on the companys short-term obligations follow

2012 2011 2010

$335 $503 $95

97 242 27

198 22

NOTE 13-LEASES

The company leases certain facilities equipment and vehicles under

agreements that are classified as either operating or capital
leases The

building leases have original terms that range from 10 to 15 years

while the equipment and vehicle leases have terms of generally less

than seven years

Future minimum payments by year and in the aggregate under

capital leases and noncancelable operating leases having an original

term greater than one year at June 30 2012 were as follows

$1

millos

Depreciation of capital
lease assets

Rental expense under operating leases

2012 2011 2010

$1 $1 $1

23 28 33
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In addition to regular contributions the
company

could be

obligated to pay additional contributions known as complete or

partial withdrawal liability if MEPP has unfunded vested benefits

These withdrawal liabilities which would be triggered if the company

ceases to make contributions to MEPP with respect to one or more

collective bargaining units would equal the companys proportionate

share of the unfunded vested benefits based on the year in which

the
liability is triggered The company believes that the MEPP in

which it currently participates has significant unfunded vested

benefits Withdrawal
liability triggers could include the companys

decision to close plant or the dissolution of collective bargaining

unit Due to uncertainty regarding future withdrawal
liability triggers

we are unable to determine the amount and timing of the companys

future withdrawal liability if any or whether the companys participa

tion in MEPPs could have
any material adverse impact on its financial

condition results of operations or liquidity Disagreements over

potential withdrawal
liability may lead to legal disputes

The companys regularly scheduled contributions to MEPPs

related to continuing operations totaled approximately $2 million

in 2012 $3 million in 2011 and $4 million in 2010

GUARANTEES

The company is party to variety of agreements under which it

may be obligated to indemnify third party with respect to certain

matters Typically these obligations arise as result of contracts

entered into by the company under which the
company agrees to

indemnify third party against losses arising from breach of repre

sentations and covenants related to matters such as title to assets

sold the
collectibility

of receivables specified environmental mat

ters lease obligations assumed and certain tax matters In each of

these circumstances payment by the company is conditioned on the

other party making claim pursuant to the procedures specified in

the contract These procedures allow the company to challenge the

other partys claims In addition the companys obligations under

these agreements may be limited in terms of time and/or amount

and in some cases the company may have recourse against third

parties for certain payments made by the company It is not possible

to predict the maximum potential amount of future payments under

certain of these
agreements due to the conditional nature of the

companys obligations and the unique facts and circumstances

involved in each particular agreement Historically payments made

by the company under these agreements have not had material

effect on the companys business financial condition or results of

operations The company believes that if it were to incur loss in

any of these matters such loss would not have material effect on

the companys business financial condition or results of operations

The material guarantees for which the maximum potential

amount of future payments can be determined are as follows

Contingent Leose Ob/igations The company is contingently liable

for leases on property operated by others At June 30 2012 the

maximum potential amount of future payments the company could

be required to make if all of the current operators default on the rental

arrangements is $27 million The minimum annual rentals under

these leases are $9 million in 2013 $9 million in 2014 $8 million in

2015 $1 million in 2016 and nil thereafter The largest components

of these amounts relate to number of retail store leases operated

by Coach Inc Coach Inc is contractually obligated to provide the

company ort an annual basis with standby letter of credit approxi

mately equal to the next years rental obligations The letter of credit

in place at the dose of 2012 was $7 million This obligation to provide

letter of credit expires when the companys contingent lease obliga

tion is substantially extinguished The company has not recognized

liability for the contingent obligation on the Coach Inc leases

Contingent Debt Ob/igations and Other The company has guaranteed

the payment of certain third-party debt The maximum potential

amount of future
payments

that the company could be required to

make in the event that these third parties default on their debt obli

gations is $15 million At the present time the company does not

believe it is probable that any of these third parties will default on

the amount subject to guarantee

In 2010 the
company recognized $26 million charge for

Mexican tax indemnification related to the companys direct selling

business that was sold in 2006

NOTE 15- FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The company uses derivative financial instruments including

forward exchange futures options and swap contrscts to manage

its exposures to foreign exchange commodity prices and interest rate

risks The use of these derivative financial instruments modifies the

exposure of these risks with the intent to reduce the risk or cost to

the company The
company does not use derivatives for trading or

speculative purposes and is not party to leveraged derivatives

More information concerning accounting for financial instruments

can be found in Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
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TYPES OF DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Interest Rate and Cross Currency Swaps The company utilizes

interest rate swap derivatives to manage interest rate risk in order

to maintain targeted amount of both fixed-rate and floating-rate

long term debt and notes payable Interest rate swap agreements

that are effective at hedging the fair value of fixed-rate debt agree

ments are designated and accounted for as fair value hedges The

company currently has fixed interest rate on virtually 100% of

long-term debt and notes payable issued

The company
has issued certain foreign-denominated debt

instruments and utilizes cross currency swaps to reduce the
variability

of functional currency cash flows related to the foreign currency

debt Cross currency swap agreements that are effective at hedging

the variability of foreign-denominated cash flows are designated

and accounted for as cash flow hedges In 2012 the company paid

$156 million to settle 333 million notional value cross currency

swap This derivative instrument had effectively converted the cur

rency base of 2002 U.S dollar debt issuance into euros The cash

outflow has been reflected in the Repayments of other debt and deriv

atives line in the Financing section of the Consolidated Statement of

Cash Flows In the fourth quarter of 2012 the company entered

into an offsetting cross currency swap to neutralize the remaining

229 million due under an existing cross currency swap that matures

in June 2013 The net cash due upon settlement of both derivative

instruments is approximately $40 million

Currency Forward Exchange Futures and Option Contracts Prior

to the spin-off of the majority of its international operations in

June 2012 the company used forward exchange and option contracts

to reduce the effect of fluctuating foreign currencies on short-term

foreign-currency-denominated intercompany transactions foreign-

denominated investments including subsidiary net assets and

other known foreign currency exposures Gains and losses on the

derivative instruments were intended to offset losses and gains on

the hedged transaction in an effort to reduce the earnings volatility

resulting from fluctuating foreign currency exchange rates Forward

currency exchange contracts which were effective at hedging the fair

value of recognized asset or liability were designated and accounted

for as fair value hedges Forward currency contracts that act as

hedge of changes in the underlying foreign currency denominated

subsidiary net assets were accounted for as net investment hedges

All remaining currency forward and options contracts are accounted

for as mark-to-market hedges The principal currencies that were

hedged by the company include the European euro Australian dollar

and Canadian dollar The company hedged virtually all foreign

exchange risk derived from recorded transactions and firm commit

ments and only hedged foreign exchange risk related to anticipated

transactions where the exposure was potentially significant

Commodity Futures and Options Contracts The company uses

commodity futures and options to hedge portion of its commodity

price risk The principal commodities hedged by the company include

hogs beef natural gas diesel fuel corn wheat and other ingredients

The company does not use significant levels of commodity financial

instruments to hedge commodity prices and primarily relies upon

fixed rate supplier contracts to determine commodity pricing In

circumstances where commodity-derivative instruments are used

there is high correlation between the commodity costs and the

derivative instruments For those instruments where the commodity

instrument and underlying hedged item correlate between 80 125%

the company accounts for those contracts as cash flow hedges

However the majority of commodity derivative instruments are

accounted for as mark-to-market hedges The company only enters

into futures and options contracts that are traded on established

well-recognized exchanges that offer high liquidity transparent

pricing daily cash settlement and collateralization through

margin requirements

NON-DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Prior to the spin-off of the international coffee and tea operations

the company used non-derivative instruments such as non-U.S

dollar financing transactions or non-U.S dollar assets or liabilities

including intercompany loans to hedge the exposure of changes

in underlying foreign currency denominated subsidiary net assets

and they were declared as Net Investment Hedges
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NOTIONAL VALUES

Hedge

Coverage

June 30 July Hint/oct of

2002 2011 Mont/uroilliono

Swap contracts

Rec fixed/pay float

Interest rate swap notional -- 150 --

Rec fixed/pay fixed

cross
currency swaps norionalt 40 813 12

Foreign currency forward contracts

Commitments to purchase

foreign currencies 943

Commitments to sell

foreign currencies 945

Commodity contracts

Commodity future contracts3

Grains and oilseeds 56 63

27 38 12

25 16

$4052

Energy

Other commodities

Commodity options

1/et investment hedges

The notional value sealeulated using the exchange roraa an of reporting date

Option contract notional values are determines by the rat is of the change in option

nalue to the change in the underlying hedged ten

Commodity futnrescorttroctt are detennined by the initial unt of the cottrecc

CASH FLOW PRESENTATION

The cash receipts and payments from derivative instrument are

classified according to the nature of the instrument when realized

generally in investing activities unless otherwise disclosed However

cash flows from derivative instrument that is accounted for as

fair value hedge or cash flow hedge are classified in the same cate

gory as the cash flows from the items being hedged provided the

derivative does not include financing element at inception If

derivative instrument includes financing element at inception all

cash inflows and outflows of the derivative instrument are considered

cash flows from financing activities If for any reason hedge account

ing is discontinued any remaining cash flows after that date shall

be classified consistent with mark-to-market instruments

CONTINGENT FEATURES

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

All of the companys derivative instruments are governed by

International Swaps and Derivatives Association i.e ISDA master

agreements requiring the company to maintain an investment grade

credit rating from both Moodys and Standard Poors credit rating

agencies If the companys credit rating were to fall below investment

grade it would be in violation of these provisions and the counter-

parties to the derivative instruments could request immediate

payment or demand immediate collateralization on the derivative

instruments in net liability positions The aggregate fair value of all

derivative instruments with credit-risk-related contingent features

that are in
liability position was $40 million on June 30 2012

and $259 million on July 2011 for which the company has posted

no collateral If the credit-risk-related contingent features underly

ing these agreements were triggered on June 30 2012 and July

2011 the company would be required to post collateral of at most

$40 million and $259 million respectively with its counterparties

large number of major international financial institutions are

counterparties to the companys financial instruments including

cross currency swaps interest rate swaps and
currency exchange

forwards and swaps The
company enters into financial instrument

agreements only with counterparties meeting very stringent credit

standards credit rating of A-/A3 or better limiting the amount

of agreements or contracts it enters into with any one party and

where legally available executing master netting agreements These

positions are continually monitored While the company may be

exposed to credit losses in the event of nonperformance by individ

ual counterparties of the entire group of counterparties it has not

recognized any losses with these counterparties in the past and

does not anticipate material losses in the future

Trade accounts receivable due from customers that the
company

considers highly leveraged were $52 million at June 30 2012 and

$133 million at July 2011

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell

an asset or paid to transfer
liability i.e exit price in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value must be categorized into

one of three different levels depending on the assumptions i.e

inputs used in the valuation Level provides the most reliable

measure of fair value while level generally requires significant

management judgment Assets and liabilities are classified in their

entirety based on the lowest level of input significant to the fair

value measurement

The carrying amounts of cash and equivalents trade accounts

receivables accounts payable derivative instruments and notes

payable approximate fair values due to their short-term nature The

carrying value of derivative instruments approximate fair value but

may be considered Level or Level based on the valuation inputs

used see balance sheet classification and fair value determination

in the table presented later in this disclosure The fair value of the

companys long-term debt considered Level including the cur

rent portion is estimated using discounted cash flows based on the

companys current incremental borrowing rates for similar types

of borrowing arrangements

June 311 2012 July 2011

hair Corrytng Eotr Corryittg

Value Amount Value AmountIn millions

Long-term debt including

current portion $1004 945 $1914 1911
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Information on the location and amounts of derivative fair values

in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet at June 30 2012 and

July 2011 is as follows

Current Assets
Other

Jane 30 July Juno 30 July June 30 July June 30 July

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

In millions

DERIVATIVES DESIGNATED AS HEDGING INSTRUMENTS

Interest rote contracts
$12

Foreign exchange contracts
40 191 66

Total derivatives designated as hedging instruments 12 40 191 66

DERIVATIVES NOT DESIGNATED AS HEDGING INSTRUMENTS

Foreign exchange contracts
11

Commodity contracts

Total derivatives not designated as hedging instruments 12

Total derivatives
$1 $12 $12 $40 $193 $66

Categorized us level Fair value of level suet and liabilities as sI June 30 2012 are nil and nil and at July 2011 are $1 million and nil respectively

Categorioodas leooI2 Fair value of leeel2 assets and liabilities as of June 30 2012 ore $1 million and $40 million and at July 2011 ore $23 million usd0259 million respectively

Information related to our cash flow hedges net investment

hedges fair value hedges and other derivatives not designated as

hedging instruments for the periods ended June 30 2012 and

July 2011 follows

Intoront Rate Foreign Eschange Commodity

Contracts Contracta Contra its Totrl

June 30 July June 30 July June 30 July June 30 July

In millions
Yea ended 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

CASH FLOW DERIVATIVES

Amount of gain loss recognized in

other comprehensive income OCIt $8 $2 69 $13 $14 53

Amount of gain loss reclasuified

from AOCI into earnings
82 15 64

Amount of ineffectiveness recognized in earnings34
10

Amount of gain loss expected to be reclassified

into earnings during the next twelve months
10 10

NET INVESTMENT DERIVATIVES

Amount of gain loss recognized
in OCI 604 672 -- 604 672

Amount of gain loss recognized
from OCI into earnings0

446 12 446 12

Amount of gain loss recognized
from OCI into spin-off

dividend7 324 324

FAIR VALUE DERIVATIVES

Amount of derivative gain loss recognized in earnings7

Amount of hedged item gain loss recognized in earn1ngs

DERIVATIVES NOT DESIGNATED

AS HEDGING INSTRUMENTS

Amount of gain loss recognized
in Cost of Sales --

Amount of
gain loss recognized in SGA 15 24 15 30

Other Other

Non-Current Assets

Assets
Liabilities

Accrued

Liabilities Otle

Effestioe portion

Gain loss ieolsisified fuom AOCI into eaisisgs is repoited in ittserent or debt extinguishment for interest inst swaps in ssllstg general end odminstatiee SGA csyenses for foreign excluosgecotttractn and in cost

of soles for commodity costrocts

Cam loss reiagnord in earnings is related so she ineffective portion an1 amousnis escluded from she assessmenl of liedgiu offeciioeni.ss

Gain loss recognized is earnings is reported us in teresi enpense for fOreign exchange contract arid SGISA
expenses far commodity contracts

The amounts gain loss recognized is earnings an she dorioati so contra cts and she related hedged item is reported in in nereut or debt exoisguishmont for the interesi rate controcts ssd SGA for the foreign eschsngecsstrsots

The gain loss recognized from OCI into turnings is reported in gain on sole of discontinued operations

The gain loss rerognioed from OCI into else spin-off dividend is reporred is Retained Esrnings osaresult of the spun-off

The l-lsllshoc llriod Company 77



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In 2012 the company recognized $1 million of settlement

losses associated with plan settlements resulting from the payment

of lump-sum benefits to plan participants The disposition of the

North American fresh bakery business resulted in the recognition of

$36 million net settlement loss in 2012 as result of the assumption

of the related plan liabilities by the buyer In 2011 the
company

recognized curtailment loss of $5 million associated with the fresh

bakery businesses as result of the expected decline in expected

years of future service associated with the planned disposition of

this business The amounts recognized in 2011 are being reported

as part of the results of discontinued operations See Note

Discontinued Operations for additional information

In March 2010 the
company announced changes to its U.S

2012 2011 2010 defined benefit pension plans for salaried employees whereby partic

ipants would no longer accrue benefits under these plans All future

5.5% 5.4% 6.5A
retirement benefits will be provided through defined contribution

65 7.3 7.6

plan The benefit plan changes resulted in the elimination of anyNA NA

expected years of future service associated with these plans As

4.2% 55% result pretax curtailment gain of $25 million was recognized of

NA NA NA which $20 million impacted continuing operations and $5 million

impacted discontinued operations The curtailment gain resulted

from the recognition of $3 million of previously unamortized net

prior service credits associated with these benefit plans as well as

$22 million reduction in the projected benefit obligation associated

with one of the plans

In 2010 the
company also recognized curtailment loss of

$10 million associated with its household and body care businesses

as result of the expected decline in expected years of future service

This amount is being reported as part of the results of discontinued

operations See Note Discontinued Operations for additional

information

The net periodic benefit cost associated with the North American

fresh bakery operations are recognized in discontinued operations

as the buyer assumed all of the pension liabilities associated with

those businesses

The net periodic benefit cost of the defined benefit pension

plans in 2012 was $13 million lower than in 2011 The decrease was

primarily due to reduction in the amortization of net actuarial losses

due to actuarial gains recognized during 2011 which reduced the

amount of actuarial losses to be amortized as of the end of 2011

2012 2011 2010
The net periodic benefit cost of the companys defined

benefit pension plans in 2011 was $44 million lower than in 2010

The decrease was primarily due to an increase in expected return

17
on assets due to an increase in plan assets resulting from improved73 73 75

86 81 66
assets returns as well as $200 million contribution into the U.S

plans in the fourth quarter of 2010 The benefit costs were also favor-

ably impacted by reduction in service cost and amortization due to

13 33 the freezing of the U.S salaried pension plan which not only reduced

13 57 the amount of actuarial loss to be amortized but also increased the

period of time over which the amount is to being amortized

NOTE 6- DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

The
company sponsors number of U.S and Canadian pension plans

to provide retirement benefits to certain employees The benefits

provided under these plans are based primarily on years of service

and compensation levels

MEASUREMENT DATE AND ASSUMPTIONS
fiscal year end measurement date is utilized to value plan assets

and obligations for all of the companys defined benefit pension plans

The weighted average actuarial assumptions used in measuring

the net periodic benefit cost and plan obligations of continuing

operations were as follows

Net periodic benefit Cost

Discount rate

Long-term rate of return on plan assets

Rate of compensation increase

Plan obligations

Discount rate

Rate of compensation increase

The discount rate is determined by utilizing yield curve based

on high -quality fixed-income investments that have IsA bond rating

to discount the expected future benefit payments to plan participants

Compensation increase assumptions are based upon historical expe

rience and anticipated future management actions Compensation

changes for participants in the U.S plans no longer have an impact

on the benefit cost or plan obligations as the participants in the U.S

salaried plan will no longer accrue additional benefits In determining

the long-term rate of return on plan assets the company assumes

that the historical long-term compound growth rates of equity and

fixed-income securities and other plan investments will predict the

future returns of similar investments in the plan portfolio Investment

management and other fees paid out of plan assets are factored into

the determination of asset return assumptions

NET PERIODIC BENEFIT COST AND FUNDED STATUS

The components of the net periodic benefit cost for continuing

operations were as follows

Is sIIiss

Components of defined benefit

net periodic benefit cost

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on assets

Amortization of

Prior service cost

Net actuarial loss

Net
periodic benefit cost
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The amount of prior service cost and net actuarial loss that

is expected to be amortized from accumulated other comprehen

sive income and reported as component of net periodic benefit

cost in continuing operations during 2013 is $1 million and

$5 million respectively

The funded status of defined benefit pension plans at the

respective year-ends was as follows

Its ecilIov 2012 2011

Projected benefit obligation

Beginning of
year

$1377 $1378

Service cost

Interest cost 73 73

Plan amendments/other

Benefits paid
73 64

Actuarial gain loss 294 26

Foreign exchange

End of
year

$1680 $1377

Fair value of plan assets

Beginningof year
$1259 $1136

Actual return on plan assets 321 180

Employer contributions

Benefits paid 73 64

Foreign exchange

End of
year

1515 1259

Funded status 165 118

Amounts recognized on the

consolidated balance sheets

Noncurrent asset

Accrued liabilities

Pension obligation
166 120

Net asset liability recognized 165 118

Amounts recognized in

accumulated other

comprehensive income

Unamortized prior service cost

Unamortized actuarial loss net 263 220

Total 270 227

The underfunded status of the plans increased from $118 million

in 2011 to $165 million in 2012 due to $303 million increase in

plan obligations resulting from $294 million of actuarial losses driven

by the decline in the discount rate which was only partially offset by

$256 million increase in plan assets The increase in plan assets was

the result of the strong investment performance during the year

The accumulated benefit obligation is the present value of

pension benefits whether vested or unvested attributed to employee

service rendered before the measurement date and based on employee

service and compensation prior to that date The accumulated bene

fit obligation differs from the projected benefit obligation in that it

includes no assumption about future compensation levels The accu

mulated benefit obligations of the companys pension plans as of

the measurement dates in 2012 and 2011 were $1680 billion and

$1 .376 billion respectively

The projected benefit obligation accumulated benefit obligation

and fair value of plan assets for pension plans with accumulated

benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were

Its tslliost 2012 2011

Projected benefit obligation
$1351 $1113

Accumulated benefit obligation
1350 1113

Fair value of plan assets 1180 987

PLAN ASSETS EXPECTED

BENEFIT PAYMENTS AND FUNDING

The fair value of pension plan assets as of June 30 2012 was

determined as follows

Qucird

Prices in

Active Srgncfkant

Market fec Other

Identtcal Observable

Tetsl Psi Assets Inputs

Is tncllcans Value Level Level

Equity securities

Non-U.S securities pooled funds 38 38

Fixed income securities

Government bonds 247 247

Corporate bonds 934 934

U.S pooled funds 168 168

Non-U.S pooled funds

Total fixed income securities 1349 1349

Real estate 21 21

Cash and equivalents
14 14

Derivatives 83 74

Other 10 10

Total fair value of assets $1515 $1506 $9

Quoted

Active

Msrket for

Identical

Total Fair Assets

Value Levellv viIlccss

Equity securities

Non-U.S securities pooled funds 45 45

Fixed income securities

Government bonds 110 110

Corporate bonds 829 829

U.S pooled funds 157 157

Non-U.S pooled funds

Total fixed inconue securities 1096 1096

Real estate
20 20

Cash and equivalents

Derivatives 81 61 20

Other 11 11

Total fair value of assets $1259 $1239 $20

The fair value of pension plan assets as of July 2011 was

determined as follows

Significant

Other

Observable

Inputs

Level
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Level assets were valued using market prices based on daily net

asset value NAV or prices available through public stock exchange

Level assets were valued primarily using market prices derived from

either an active market quoted price which may require adjustments

to account for the attributes of the asset or an inactive market trans

actiun The company did not have any level assets which would

include assets for which values are determined by non -observable

inputs See Note 15 Financial Instruments for additional infor

mation as to the fair value hierarchy

The percentage allocation of pension plan assets based on

fair value basis as of the respective year-end measurement dates

is as follows

Asset
category

_______________

Equity securities

Debt securities

Real estate

Cash and other
________________

Total

The overall investment objective is to manage the plan assets

so that they are sufficient to meet the plans future obligations while

maintaining adequate liquidity to meet current benefit payments and

operating expenses The actual amount for which these obligations

will be settled depends on future events and actuarial assumptions

These assumptions include the life expectancy of the plan participants

and salary inflatiun The resulting estimated future obligations are

discounted using an interest rate curve that represents return that

would be required from high quality corporate bonds The company

has adopted liability
driven investment LDI strategy which consists

of investing in portfolio of assets whose performance is driven by

the performance of the associated pension liability This means that

plan assets managed under an LDI strategy may underperform general

market returns but should provide for lower volatility of funded

status as its return matches the pension liability movement Over

time as pension obligations become better funded the company

will further de-risk its investments and increase the allocation to

fixed income

As noted in the above table on an aggregate fair value basis the

plan is currently at 91% fixed income securities and 6% equity secu

rities On notional value basis the plan assets include investments

in equity market futures which effectively moves the asset allocation

to the established targets of 84% fixed income and 9% equity Fixed

income securities can include but are not limited to direct bond

investments pooled or indirect bond investments and cash Other

investments can include but are not limited to international and

domestic equities real estate commodities and private equity

Derivative isistruments may also be used in concert with either fixed

income or equity investments to achieve desired exposure or to hedge

certain risks Derivative instruments can include but are not limited

to futures options swaps or swaptions The assets are managed by

professional investment firms and performance is evaluated against

specific
benchmarks The responsibility for the investment strategies

typically lies with committee and the composition of the committee

depends on plan jurisdiction

2012 20 Pension assets at the 2012 and 2011 measurement dates do

not include any direct investment in the companys debt or equity

6% securities Substantially all pension benefit payments are made from
91 89

assets of the pension plans It ss anticipated that the future benefit

payments will be as follows $69 million in 2013 $71 million in 2014

100% 100%
million in 2015 $77 million in 2016 $81 million in 2017 and

$450 million from 2018 to 2022 The company expects to contribute

approximately $4 million of cash to its pension plans in 2013

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

The company sponsors defined contribution plans which cover

certain salaried and hourly employees The companys cost is

determined by the amount of contributions it makes to these plans

The amounls charged to expense for contributions made to these

defined contribution plans related to continuing operations totaled

$21 million in 2012 $27 million in 2011 and $25 million in 2010

MULTI-EMPLOYER PLANS

The company participates in multi-employer plan that provides

defined benefits to certain employees covered by collective bargaining

agreements Such plans are usually administered by board of trustees

composed of the management of the participating companies and

labor representatives In September 2011 the FASB issued guidance

for disclosures of multiemployer pension and other postretirement

benefit plans The guidance requires an employer to provide additional

quantitative and qualitative disclosures for these plans that provide

more detailed information about an employers participation in

these types of plans
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The company previously contributed to several multiemployer

defined benefit pension plans under the terms of collective-bargaining

agreements that covered various union-represented employees but

currently only contributes to one of these plans The risks of partici

pating in these multiemployer plans are different from single-employer

plans Assets contributed to the multiemployer plan by one employer

may be used to provide benefits to employees of other participating

employers If participating employer stops contributing to the plan

the unfunded obligation of the plan may be borne by the remaining

participating employers If we stop participating in plan we may

be required to pay that plan an amount based on the underfunded

status of the plan referred to as withdrawal liability
None of the

contributions to the pension funds for continuing operations was in

excess of 5% or more of the total plan contributions for plan years

2012 2011 and 2010 There are no contractually required minimum

contributions to the plans as of June 30 2012

The net pension cost of these plans is equal to the annual

contribution determined in accordance with the provisions of negoti

ated labor contracts The contributions for plans related to continuing

operations were $2 million in 2012 $3 mdlion in 2011 and $4 mil

lion in 2010 Assets contributed to such plans are not segregated or

otherwise restricted to provide benefits only to the employees of the

company The future cost of these plans is dependent on number of

factors including the funded status of the plans and the ability of the

other participating companies to meet ongoing funding obligations

The companys participation in these multiemployer plans for

fiscal 2012 is outlined below The EIN/Pension Plan Number column

provides the Employer Identification Number EIN and the three

digit plan number if applicable Unless otherwise noted the most

recent PPA zone status available in 2012 and 2011 is for the plans

year beginning January 12012 and 2011 respectively The zone

status is based on information that the company has received from

the plan and is certified by plans actuaries Among other factors

plans in the red zone are generally less than 65 percent funded

plans in the yeHow zone are less than 80 percent funded and plans

in the green zone are at least 80 percent funded The FIP/RP Status

Pending/Implemented column indicates plans for which financial

improvement plan PIP or rehabilitation plan RP is either pending

or has been implemented The last column lists the expiration

dates of the collective-bargaining agreements to which the plans

are subject There have been no significant changes that affect the

comparability of contributions from year to year

In addition to regular contributions the company could be

obligated to pay additional contributions known as complete or

partial withdrawal liabilities if multi-employer pension plan MEPP

has unfunded vested benefits The company recognized partial

withdrawal liability of $22 million in 2010 related to one collective

bargaining agreement The charge was recognized in the results of

discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Income

as it related to the North American fresh bakery business

NOTE 17-POSTRETIREMENT HEALTH-CARE

AND LIFE-INSURANCE PLANS

The company provides health-care and life-insurance benefits to

certain retired employees and their covered dependents and benefi

ciaries Generally employees who have attained age
55 and have

rendered 10 or more years of service are eligible for these postretire

ment benefits Certain retirees are required to contribute to plans

in order to maintain coverage

MEASUREMENT DATE AND ASSUMPTIONS

fiscal year
end measurement date is utilized to value plan assets

and obligations for the companys postretirement
health-care and

life-insurance plans pursuant to the accounting rules

The weighted average
actuarial assumptions used in measuring

the net periodic benefit cost and plan obligations for the three years

ending June 30 2012 were

2012 2011 2010

Net periodic benefit cost

Discount rate
5.3% 5.1% 6.3%

Plan obligations

Discount rate
3.8 5.3 5.1

Health-care cost trend assumed

forrhenextyesr 7.5 8.0 80

Rate to which the cost ttend is

assumed to decline 5.0 5.0 5.0

Year that tate reaches the

ultimate trend tate 2017 2017 2016

EIN/Pen ties

Plan Nsnbor

Expiration Date

Surche r0e of collective

Imposed Oergainisg Agrecmoo

PPA Zone Status PIP/OP Status Cesrrbatesa in millions

2011

Pending/

lmplemen led2012 2002 2010 2000

FcNSI0N FUND PLAN NAME

Bakery and Confectionary Union Pendsng-
5% Junl

Industcy Intl Pension Fund 52-6118572/001 Red Green no later than $2 $2 $3 Dec31 2012 Oct 2014

Nov2012 10% in 2013

All other plans

N/A N/A
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In m2IIrons

Accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation

Beginning of
year

Service cost

Interest cost

Net benefits paid

Plan participant contributions

Actuarial gain loss

End of
year

Pair value of plan assets

Funded status

Amounts
recognized on the

consolidated balance sheets

Accrued liabilities

Other liabilities

Total liability recognized

Amounts
recognized in accumulated

other comprehensive loss

Unamortized
prior service credit

Unamortized net actuarial loss

Unamortized net initial asset

EXPECTED BENEFIT PAYMENTS AND FUNDING

Substantially all postretirement health-care and life-insurance

benefit payments are made by the company Using expected future

service it is anticipated that the future benefit payments that will

be funded by the company will be as follows $7 million in 2013

through 2017 and $38 million from 2018 to 2022

The Medicare Part subsidy received by the
company was

million in 2012 and 2010 The subsidy received in 2011 was

less than $1 million

________ NOTE IS- INCOME TAXES

The provisions for income taxes on continuing operations computed

by applying the U.S statutory rate to income from continuing opera

tions before taxes as reconciled to the actual provisions were

Income loss from continuing

operations before income taxes

United States

Foreign
________

Tax expense benefit at U.S
statutory

rate

State income taxes

Finalization cf tax reviews and audits and

changes in estimate on tax contingencies 2.1 4.1 143.5

Domestic production deduction 3.9 77
Employee benefit deductions 8.1 4.7 1.9

Non-taxable indemnification agreements 20.9 14.4

Non-deductible professional fees 27.8 3.6

Tax provision adjustments 6.8 4.3 3.0

Other net 3.1 0.7

Taxes at effective worldwide tax rates 41.7% 32.5 102.1%

The tax expense related to continuing operations decreased

2012 2Q11
$42 million in 2012 due primarily to decline in pretax income from

continuing operations of $120 million

84 The tax expense related to continuing operations increased

$91 million in 2011 The increase in tax expense in 2011 was due

primarily to the year-over-year impact of net tax benefit reported

in 2010 that included $90 million tax benefit for the release of

certain contingent tax obligations after statutes in multiple jurisdic

101 84
tions lapsed and certain tax regulatory examinations and reviews

were resolved

$000 $83 The company intends to continue to reinvest all of its earnings

outside of the U.S and therefore has not recognized U.S tax expense

on these earnings U.S federal income tax and withholding tax on

these foreign unremitted earnings would be immaterial
$6

94 77

$000 $83

The discount rate is determined by utilizing yield curve based

on high-quality fixed-income investments that have AA bond rating

to discount the expected future benefit payments to plan participants

Assumed health-care trend rates are based on historical experience

and managements expectations of future cost increases one-

percentage-point change in assumed health-care cost trend rates

would have the following effects

One

Percentage

Point

millions

Effect on total service and interest components

Effect on postretirernent benefit obligation 10

On

Percentage

Point

Tease

$2

NET PERIODIC SEN EFIT COST AND FUNDED STATUS

The components of the net periodic benefit cost associated with

continuing operations were as follows

In nilhos 2012 2011 2010

Components of defined benefit

net periodic cost income

Service cost

Interest cost

Net amortization and deferral

Net periodic benefit cost income $3 $2 $2

2011 2010

2012 Restated As Restated

89.8%

10.2

100.0%

35.0%

0.3

104.4

4.4

100.0%

35.0%

2.7

The amount of the prior service credits net actuarial loss and

net initial asset that is expected to be amortized from accumulated

other comprehensive income and reported as component of net

periodic benefit cost during 2013 is $9 million of income $1 million

of expense and $1 million of income respectively

The funded status of postretirement health-care and life-insurance

plans related to continuing operations at the respective year-ends were

92.6

7.4

100.0

35.0

3.9

29 $23

25 12

________________________________
Total $14
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2551 2010

in millions 2012 As Restated As Restated

Current Deferred Currest Deferred Current Defected

U.S $116 $4 $29 $l50 $79

Foreign

State

$14 $1 $27 $144 $80

Current and deferred tax provisions henefits were There are state net operating losses of $49 million that begin

to expire in 2013 through 2030

Valuation allowances have been established on net operating

__________________________________________________________________ losses and other deferred tax assets in certain U.S state jurisdic

_______________________________________________________________________ tions as result of the companys determination that there is less

than 50% likelihood that these assets will be realized

The company records tax reserves for uncertain tax positions

taken or expected to be taken on tax return For those tax benefits

to he recognized tax position must be more-likely-than-not to

be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities The amount

recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is

greater than 50% likely
of being realized upon audit settlement

Due to the inherent complexities arising from the nature of

the companys businesses and from conducting business and being

taxed in substantial number of jurisdictions significant judgments

and estimates are required to be made Agreement of tax liabilities

between Hillshire Brands and the many tax jurisdictions in which

the company files tax returns may not he finalized for several years

Thus the companys final tax-related assets and liabilities may

ultimately be different from those currently reported

Our total unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized would

affect our effective tax rate were $71 million as of June 30 2012

This amount differs from the balance of unrecognized tax benefits

as of June 30 2012 primarily due to uncertain tax positions that

created deferred tax assets in jurisdictions which have not been real

ized due to lack of profitability in the respective jurisdictions At

this time the company estimates that it is reasonably possible that

2011
the liability for unrecognized tax benefits will decrease by approxi

2052 An Restated
mately $5 to $30 million in the next 12 months from variety of

73 54
uncertain tax positions as result of the completion of various

1113 135
worldwide tax audits currently in process and the expiration of

180 the statute of limitations in several jurisdictions

63 54 The company recognizes interest and penalties related to

49 51 unrecognized tax benefits in tax expense During the years ended

257 June 30 2012 July 2011 and July 2010 the company recog

16 nized benefit of $3 million expense of $2 million and benefit

of $21 million respectively of interest and penalties in continuing

537 operations tax expense The tax benefit in 2012 and 2010 was the

result of the finalization of tax reviews and audits and changes in

estimates of tax contingencies As of June 30 2012 July 2011 and

July 2010 the company had accrued interest and penalties of

___________________________________________________________
approximately $10 million $21 million and $21 million respectively

Other

Gross deferred tax assets 314

Less valuation allowances 60

Net deferred tax assets 254

Deferred tax liabilities

Property plant and equipment 69 117

Intangibles
35 48

Unreparriated earnings
763

Deferred tax liabilities 104 928

Total net deferred tax liabilities $1SO 391

Cash payments for income taxes from continuing operations were

$26 million in 2012 $36 million in 2011 and $176 million in 2010

Hillshire Brands and eligible
subsidiaries file consolidated U.S

federal income tax return The company uses the asset-and-liability

method to provide income taxes on all transactions recorded in the

consolidated financial statements This method requires that income

taxes reflect the expecteil future tax consequences of temporary

differences between the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities for

book and tax purposes Accordingly deferred tax liability or asset

for each temporary difference is determined based upon the tax rates

that the company expects to be in effect when the underlying items of

income and expense are realized The companys expense for income

taxes includes the current and deferred portions of that expense

valuation allowance is established to reduce deferred tax assets to

the amount the company expects to realize

The deferred tax liabilities assets at the respective year-ends

were as follows

In nil/ions

Deferred tax assets

Pension liability

Employee benefits

Unrealized foreign exchange

Nondeductible reserves

Net operating loss and other tax rarryforwards

Investment in subsidiary
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The companys management uses operating segment income on

an as reported and an as adjusted basis which is defined as oper

ating income before general corporate expenses mark-to-market

derivative gains/losses and amortization of trademarks and cus

tomer relationship intangibles to evaluate segment performance and

allocate resources Management believes it is appropriate to disclose

this measure to help investors analyze the business performance and

trends of the various business
segments Interest and other debt

expense as well as income tax expense are centrally managed and

accordingly such items are not presented by segment since they

are not included in the measure of segment profitability reviewed

June 30 July July by management The accounting policies of the segments are the

2012 2011 2010

same as those described in Note Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies

In millions Year ended

Unrecognized tax benefits

Beginning of year balance 83 $88 227

Increases based on current

period tax positions

Increases based on prior

period tax positions 24

Decreases based on prior

period tax positions 17

Decreases related to settlements

with tax authorities 33 131

Decreases related to lapse of

applicable statute of limitation

End of
year

balance $74 $83 88

NOTE 19- BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

The following are the companys three business
segments and the

types of products and services from which each reportable segment

derives its revenues

Retail sells variety of packaged meat and frozen bakery

products to retail customers in North America It also includes

gourmet sausage and salami products

Foodservice/Other sells variety of meats and bakery products

to foodservice customers in North America such as broad-line

foodservice distributors restaurants hospitals and other large

institutions and includes commodity meat products

Australian Bakery sells variety of bakery products to retail

and foodservice customers in Australia and other parts of the

Pacific-rim region

In nnIliaes 2012 2011 2010

SALES

Retail $2884 $2760 $2708

Foodservice/Other 1080 1136 1145

Australian Bakery 136 135 135

4100 4031 3988

Intersegment 12 16
Total $4094 $4019 $3972

2011 2010

In mIlnonu 2012 As Restated An Restated

INCOME ILCSSI FROM

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

BEFORE INC TAXES

Retail 274 303 343

Foodservice/Other 79 85 50

Australian_Bakery

Total
operating segment income 351 386 398

General
corporate expenses 272 159 211

Markto market derivative gain/loss

Amortization of intangibles

Total operating income 74 225 179

Net interest expense 72 87 116

Debt extinguishment costs 39 55

Income loss from continuing

operations before income taxes 37 83 63

The reported operating segment results include the impact of

various significant items the results of businesses disposed of or

exited and the impact of the 53rd week The table below summarizes

the increase decrease to operating income related to these items

The companys tax returns are routinely audited by federal state

and foreign tax authorities and these audits are at various stages of

completion at any given time The Internal Revenue Service IRS has

completed examinations of the companys U.S income tax returns

through June 28 2008 With few exceptions the
company is no

longer subject to state and local income tax examinations by tax

authorities for years before July 2005

The following table presents reconciliation of the beginning

and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended

June 30 2012 July 2011 and July 2010
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108 107 96

22 22 30

136 135 135

Totalbusinesssegmentsales 4100 4031 3988

$1443 $1430 $1292 Intersegment elimination 12 16

366 382 450 Total net sales $4094 $4019 $3972

58 66 58

867 1878 1800
Meat category includes lunchmeat hot dogs breakfast sausage

7143 6332

578 461 646

smoked sausage and other meat products Meat-centric category

$2450 $9482 $8778
includes breakfast sandwiches breakfast convenience corn dogs

and other ready to eat meal items Bakery category includes cakes

128 98 97 pies cheesecakes and other bakery products Commodities/Other

15 category includes commodity turkey and pork

Hillshire Brands operations are principally in the United States

135 110 115
With respect to operations

outside of the United States no single

100 181 232

31 11 21
foreign country or geographic region was significant Foreign net

302 368
sales were $154 million $153 million and $149 million in 2012

2011 and 2010 respectively virtually all of which was in Australia

160 232 163 The long-lived assets located outside of the United States are

not significant

ADDITIONS TO LONG-LIVED ASSETS

Retail

Foodservice/Other

Australian Bakery

170 240 170

177 242 176

Othert
_______________________________________________________________

Total additions to long.lived assets

Prcash attd cash equivoettts cert at corporate ftsed assets deferred tax ossets

and cr5 at other nonrrest assets

In mt//tons

Retail

Foodservice/Other

Australian Bakery

Subtotal

General corporate expenses

Total

20/2 20/I 2010 Net sales by product type within each business segment

39 $11 $8
are as follows

17 23

Is tnt//ian
2012 2011 20/ti

45 28 15 _______ -______________

208 60 46
SALES

Retail

5253 $88 561
Meat

Meat-centric

Significant items include but are not limited to restructuring Bakery

actions impairment charges pension curtai.lments litigation accruals Commodities/Other

an HBI settlement and debt extinguishment costs Total retail

Net sales for business segment may include sales between Foodservice/Other

segments Such sales are at transfer prices that are equivalent to market Meat

value Revenues from Wal-Mart Stores Inc represent approximately
Meat-centric

$1.0 billion of the companys consolidated revenues for continuing

ery

Commodities/Other

operations in 2012 2011 and 2010 Each of the companys business
Total Foodservice/Other

segments sells to this customer except Australian Bakery Australian Bakery

Meat-centric

Bakery

2011 2010
Other

In mt//toss 20/2 As Restated As Restated Total Australian Bakery

$2117 $1984 $1958

647 639 585

118 135 164

2884 2760 2708

ASSETS

Retail

Foodservice/Other

Australian Bakery

520 501 470

86 81 77

382 446 488

92 108 110

1080 1136 1145

Net assets held for sale/disposition

Other1

Total assets

DEPRECIATION

Retail

Foodservice/Other

Attstralian Bakery

Discontinued operations

Othert

Total depreciation
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NOTE 20- QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA UNAUDITED Fourth Quortor7Oll

The companys quarterly results for 2012 and 2011 are as follows Discontinued

Jo millions As Reported Adjustments Operations An Restated

Continuing operations

Jo nsA/ions As Resisted Quottor First Second Thud Foucth Net sales $2297 $1275 $1016
2012

Gross profit 694 404 290

Continuing operations Income loss 48 16 42 10
Net sales $1025 $1088 $965 $1016 Income loss per

Gross profit 285 306 266 276
common share

Income loss 12 53 89 70
Basic 0.41 0.15 0.35 0.09

Income loss per
Diluted 041 0.15 0.35 0.09

common share
Net income loss 113 26 87

Basic 010 0.44 075 058 Net income loss per

Diluted 0.10 0.44 0.74 0.58 common share

Net income loss 218 470 599
Basic 095 22 0.72

Net income loss per Diluted 0.94 0.22 0.72

common share

Basic 1.86 3.96 0.02 5.02

The quarterly financial data for 2012 and 2011 shown above
Diluted 1.8 3.96 0.02 5.02

has been restated to reflect the error corrections related to theCash dividends declared 0.58 0.58

Market price0
discontinued operations in Brazil as well as the other errors in

High 30.39 29.69 33.95 the income statements related to continuing and discontinued

Low 24.54 24.12 28.67 27.56 operations discussed in Note Nature of Operations and Basis

Close 25.19 29.15 33.17 28.99 of Presentation The fiscal 2012 quarterly financial statements will

BOll
be restated in the companys fiscal 2013 filings on Form 10-Q

Continuing operations
The quarterly financial data shown above includes the impactNet sales $1002 $1062 $939 $1016

Gross
profit 293 326 288 290

of significant items Significant items may include but are not

Income loss 31 34 10 limited to charges for exit activities restructuring costs spin-off

Income loss per costs impairmeni charges pension partial withdrawal liability

share
charges benefit plan curtailment gains and losses tax charges on

Basic 0.01 0.24 0.28 0.09 deemed repatriated earnings tax costs and benefits resulting from
Diluted 0.01 0.24 0.28 0.09

the disposition of business impact of tax law changes changes
Net income loss 197 838 150 87

in tax valuation allowances and favorable or unfavorable resolution
Net income loss per

of open tax matters based on the finalization of tax authoritycommon share

Basic 1.49 6.54 122 0.72
examinations or the expiration of Statutes of limitations Further

Diluted 1.48 6.51 1.21 0.72
details of these items are included in the Financial Review section

Cash dividends declared --- 0.58 0.58 1.15 of the Annual Report
Market pricer

High 23.72 27.30 31.21 30.50

Low 20.37 21.57 25.34 27.53

Close 20.69 26.97 27.57 29.76

rhe historical market
prices

have been adjusted rrf len the impair of the spin-off of the international

of fee and tea business undo 1-for-S reverse stock split en June 25 2012 porsisn of the originsil msmrkes

price was allssated to Jill/shire Brands approximately 30% sods portion so the international coffee and

too busneno opprosimately 70% based on the sorme Fe centsges to housed to silos ate oh eost of n/tate

of common ntoek for ion basis purposes Alter the nsrket price sttrrbutoble to lb//shire Broods woo

determined it was adjutted is rollers she I-fur tree me stock op/it
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REOISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINO FIRM

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS OF

THE HILLSHIRE BRANDS COMPANY

In our opinion the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

and the related consolidated statements of income equity and cash

flows present fairly in all material respects
the financial position of

The Hillshire Brands Company and its subsidiaries at June 30 2012

and July 2011 and the results of their operations and their cash

flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30 2012

in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America Also in our opinion the Company did not

maintain in all material respects effective internal control over

financial reporting as of June 30 2012 based on criteria established

in Internal Control Integrated Pro oiework issued by the Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO

because material weakness in internal control over financial reporting

related to an ineffective control environment maintained by manage

ment in its Brazil operations existed as of that date material weakness

is deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control

over financial reporting such that there is reasonable possibility

that material misstatement of the annual or interim financial

statements will not be prevented or detected on timely basis The

material weakness referred to above is described in the accompanying

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We considered this material weakness in determining the nature

timing and extent of audit tests apphed in our audit of the 2012

consolidated financial statements and our opinion regarding the

effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial report

ing does not affect our opinion on those consolidated financial

statements The Companys management is responsible for these

financial statements for maintaining effective internal control over

financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting included in managements

report referred to above Our responsibility is to express opinions on

these financial statements and on the Companys internal control

over financial reporting based on our integrated audits We conducted

our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require

that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstate

ment and whether effective internal control over financial reporting

was maintained in all material respects Our audits of the financial

statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing

the accounting principles used and significant estimates made

by management and evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting

included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial

reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of

internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also included

performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in

the circumstances We believe that our audits provide reasonable

basis for our opinions

As described in Note to the consolidated financial statements

the Company has restated its 2011 and 2010 consolidated financial

statements to correct for errors

companys internal control over financial reporting is process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the mainte

nance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and
fairly

reflect

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company

ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance

with authorizations of management and directors of the company

and iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition

of the companys assets that could have material effect on the

financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over

financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are

subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of

changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

L/a

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chicago Illinois

September 14 2012
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MANAGEMENTS REPORT

MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining

adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in

Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f under the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended The companys internal control over financial

reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of the companys financial reporting and the preparation

of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles

The companys internal control over financial reporting includes

those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance

of records that in reasonable detail accurately and
fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company iiprovide

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary

to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance

with authorizations of management and directors of the company
and iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition

of the companys assets that could have material effect on the

financial statements

Internal control over financial reporting because of its inherent

limitations may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projec

tions of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject

to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes

in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate

The companys management has assessed the effectiveness of

its internal control over financial reporting as of June 30 2012 In

making this assessment the
company used the criteria established

in Internol Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission These

criteria are in the areas of control environment risk assessment

control activities information and communication and monitoring

of controls The companys assessment included documenting

evaluating and testing of the design and operating effectiveness

of its internal control over financial reporting

Management determined control deficiency existed related to

an ineffective control environment maintained by management in its

Brazil operations including intentional overrides of internal controls

extensive cross-functional collusion by personnel in Brazil and com
munication and actions by management in Brazil that in certain

instances overly emphasized meeting earning targets contributing

to the lack of adherence to existing internal control procedures

and U.S GAAP This control deficiency resulted in the restatement

of the companys consolidated financial statements for fiscal years

2010 and 2011 and of the companys unaudited interim financial

data for the first three quarters of fiscal years 2011 and 2012 The

restatement consisted of corrections for accounting irregularities

identified in the Brazil operations due to the deficiency including

the overstatement of accounts receivable due to the failure to write

off uncollectible customer discounts improper recognition of sales

revenue prior to shipments to customers the understatement of

accruals for various litigation issues the failure to write-off obsolete

inventory and other inventory valuation issues in Brazil during the

periods restated Additionally this control deficiency could result

in future misstatement of the aforementioned account balances

or disclosures that would result in material misstatement to the

annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would

not be prevented or detected

Accordingly management determined that this control

deficiency constitutes material weakness material weakness

is deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control

over financial reporting such that there is reasonable possibility

that material misstatement of the entitys annual or interim finan

cial statements will not be prevented or detected on timely basis

Management is not permitted to conclude that the companys internal

control over financial reporting is effective if there are one or more

material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting

Because of this material weakness management has concluded that

the company did not maintain effective internal control over financial

reporting as of June 30 2012

The effectiveness of the companys internal control over

financial reporting as of June 30 2012 has been audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP an independent registered public

accounting lirm as stated in their report that appears herein

Sean Connolly

Chief Execur/ve Officer

%4t JZj4
William Kelley Jr

Senior Vice President

Controller ond

ChiefAccounting Officer

Maria Henry

Executive Vice President

Chief Finoncial Officer
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

$100 invested on 06/30/07 in stock or odes including reinvestment of dividends Indexes calculated on month-end basis

COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE

TOTAL STOCKH OLDER RETU RN

The above graph compares the five-year cumulative total returns of

The Hillshire Brands Company the SP 500 Index the SP Midcap 400

Index and the SP Packaged Foods Meats Index Hillshire Brands

uses the SP Packaged Foods Meats Index to represent compa

rable peer group As of June 30 2012 the index was comprised of

the following companies Campbell Soup Company ConAgra Foods

Inc Dean Foods Company General Mills Inc H.J Heinz Company

Hershey Foods Corporation Hormel Foods Corporation Kellogg

Company Kraft Foods Inc McCormick Company Inc Mead

Johnson Company Smucker JM Company and Tyson Foods Inc

The returns for Hillshire Brands were calculated as follows

Hillshire Brands percentage of market equity value at the time

of Sara Lees spin-off of D.E MASTER BLENDERS 1753 NV

was multiplied by Sara Lees trading price at the beginning of the

investment period That same percentage was also used to calculate

the dividends received as well as the share price at which those

dividends were reinvested

During fiscal 2012 Hillshire Brands was moved from the SP
500 Index to the SP Midcap 400 Index As result this is the

last year in which the SP 500 line will appear in the graph Going

forward the SP Midcap 400 Index which is shown separately in

the graph above will replace the SP 500 Index
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Director since 2012 Kent Magill 59

Executive Vice President

Ellen Brothers 56 General Counsel and
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Mattell Inc

Director since 2012 Donald Davis 51

Senior Vice President

Virgis Colbert 72 .S President Foodservice

Retired Executive Vice President

Miller Brewing Company Jeff George 47

Director since 2006 Senior Vice President

Research Development

Laurette Koeliner 57

Executive Chairman Sally Grimes 41

InternationalLease Finance Corporation Senior Vice President

Director since 2003 Chief Innovation Officer

Sir Ian Prosser 69 Jonathan Harris 44

Retired Chairman Senior Vice President

InterContinental Hotels Group PLC Chief Communications Officer

Director since 2004

William Kelley Jr 48

Jonathan Ward 58 Senior Vice President

Operating Partner Controller and

Kohl berg Co Chief Accounting Officer

Director since 2005

Sean Reid 45

Senior Vice President

Chief Customer Officer
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